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Delivering Value

Swire Pacific is one of the leading companies in Hong Kong with five

operaling divisions: Property, Aviation, Beverages, Marine Services

“and Trading & Industrial. The Group's operations are predominantly in

Greater China where the name Swire or A ™ has been established for

over 130 years. Swire Pacific is deeply committed to Hong Kong where

our subsidiaries, jointly controlled and associated companies employ
over 43,000 staff. Globally we employ over 70,000 staff.

We are committed 10 ensuring that our
affairs are conducted with high ethical
standards which is a key component

of our long-term success. This reflects
our belief that in achieving our business
objectives, it is imperative that we

act with high standards of probity,
transparency and accountability,

and with 'aignity, respect and in a
socially responsible manner within the

communities in which we operate.

We focus on the long-term development
of businesses where we can create
shareholder value in accordance with
the return on capital appropriate to
each business. In this respect, we are
well placed to contribute lo and benefit
from the growth of Mainland China
where we will leverage our-industry-
specific experience and focus on our
core strengths.

2 Swire Pacific

The Group's total net assets employed
increased by HK$32.2 billion during
2007 to HK$159.2 billion at the year-
end. The profit attributable to the
Company's shareholders in the year
was HK3$26.3 billion, against HK$22.6
billion in 2006.

The Property Division employed
HK$124.2 hillion (78%; of the Group’s
net assets at the year-end and generated
profits of HK$19.2 billion giving an
average return on equily atiributable to
the Company’s shareholders of 21.7%.
The division’s profit on an underlying
basis was HK$3.3 billion against HK$3.1
billion in 2006 and average return on
underlying equity attributable to the
Company’s shareholders was 3.2%.

Net assels employed by the Aviation
Division increased by HK$2.3 billion
at the year-end to HK$22.2 billion.
Profits attributable to the Company's
shareholders in the year were HK$3.3
billion providing an averape return on
equity attributable to the Company's
shareholders of 15.9%.

Excluding the impact of the sale

of the Group’s interest in Shekou
Container Terminals during the year,
the other divisians’ total net assets
employed increased by HK$1.1 bilfion
to HK$11.7 billion at the year-end.
Profits attributable 10 the Company’s
shareholders for the year were HK$2.4
billion giving an average return on
equity attributable to the Company’s
shareholders of 21.4%.

The Group overall achieved an average
return on equity attributable to the
Company’s shareholders of 21.0%,
down from 21.6% in 2006 reflecting
ihe significant investment in ongoing
properly development projects in

the year. On an underlying basis the
Group's average return was 7.3%
against 7.5% in 2006.




At a glance

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
Turnover

Property

Beverages

Marine Services

Trading & Industrial

Head Office

Profit attributable to the Company’s shareholders
Property

Aviation

Beverages

Marine Services

Trading & Indlustrial

Head Ofiice

Less:
Interim and final dividends for the year
Share repurchases

Retained profit less share repurchases

BALANCE SHEET

Net assets employed

Property — cost and working capital
- valuation surptus

Aviation

Beverages

Marine Services

Trading & Industrial

Head Ofiice

Financed by

Equity attriburable to the Company’s sharcholders
Minorily inlerests

Net debt

‘A’ shares

Earnings/{loss) per share

Dividends per share

Equity attributable 1o sharcholders per share
‘B’ shares

Earnings/(loss) per share

Dividends pers share

Equity atiributable to shareholders per share

Ratio

Return on average equity atirthutable 1o the
Company‘s shareholders

Return on average equity altributable (o the
Company's shareholders (histaric cost)

Guaring ralio

Interest caver — fimes

Dividend cover — times

Underlying
Profit (HK$M}
Equity attributable to Company’s sharcholders (HK$M)
Return on average equity atiributable to
Company's sharehalders
Earnings per ‘A’ share {HK$)
Earnings per '8’ share (HKS)
Equity attributable Io
‘A’ shareholders per share [HKS)
Equity attributable 1o
'B° shaschotders per share (HKS)
Gearing ratio
Interest cover - timus
Rividend cover — times




Ten-Year Financial Summary

Turnover Profit attributable to the Company’s
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1998 1999 1000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
HK$M HK$M  HK$M  HK§M  HK$M  HK$M  HKSM  HK$M  HK$M = HK$M
PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
Turnaver
Property 6,363 7,024 5,787 6,163 5,798 7,539 7,306 6197 5.595 6,060
Beverages 4,552 4,450 4,439 4,513 4,787 4,955 4,978 5,187 5,750 7066
Marine Services 970 809 843 893 991 1,216 1,297 1.492 1,997 3,104
Trading & Industrial 4,851 4,420 3.816 3,453 3,442 3,637 4,704 6,036 5,554 5,306
Head Office 28 21 2] 29 28 40 39 25 215 17
16764 16,724 14,906 15051 15046 17,387 18,324 18917 1911 21,553
Profit attributable 1o the Company's sharcholders
Property (23,137} 5,341 4,881 (2,956) (2,129} 6B 15097 12,684 16,983 19,225
Aviation (106) 1,040 2,510 520 2,128 843 2,393 1928 3,605 3,330
Beverages 266 164 153 235 276 363 3as 474 480 507
Marine Services 626 467 505 617 658 bAG 741 3,035 B34 2,550
Trading & Industrial (198) €n (84} 130 4 228 388 520 444 399
Head Office {413} {475) (187) (193} __ (300) 1132) (186} e 220 249
Less: 22,962) 6,629 7778 (1,647} 637 2016 18,818 18,757 22,566 26,260
Interim and final dividends for the year 1,304 1,707 1,734 1,738 1,996 2,052 3,062 3,154 4,3 4,899
Share repurchases - - - - 540 60 - - - 1,296
Retained profil less share repurchases (24,266) 4922 6,040  (3.385) {189} (96) 15756 15603 18245 20,065
BALANCE SHEET
Net assets employed
Praperty - cost and working capital 28,550 29,346 27,272 33,932 33,380 324 30,041 29609 30,558 39,023
- valyation surplus 26,956  30.N0 38141 28,510 23,011 20217 36,004 48,483 05,694 85,173
Avialion 13,381 14,323 16,740 15898 16,565 16260 17304 18,431 19,874 212082
Bevcrages 3,723 3,838 3,509 3,369 3,479 3m 2,936 2,930 320 3,403
Marine Services 2,569 2962 2752 2899  3EB14 4335 4772 5,061 6,026 6,496
Trading & Industrial 2,283 1,994 1,849 1.767 1,379 1,042 1,363 1,540 1L.715 1,774
Head Qffice 540 637 a7 102 27 253 410 166 (114} 1,118
78,002 83,210 90350 86477 81655 77362 92,830 106,220 126954 159,170
Financed by
Equily attributable to the Company’s shareholders 56,649 62,473 68,923 65,507 62,983 62,440 78,625 94,843 114414 135,517
Minarily interests 3,494 3972 4,69 4,291 4,537 4,806 5,943 5,929 610 1,161
Net debt 17859 16,765 16,736 16670 14,135 10116 _ B262 5448 11,930 22,492
78,002 83,210 90350 BG477  B16SS 77362 92,830 106,220 126354 159170
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK3$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS HK$
‘A’ shares
Earnings/(loss) per sharc (14.75) 4.27 5.02 {1.0b6) 0.4 1.32 12.29 12,25 14.74 17.26
Dividends per share 0.84 110 112 1.12 1.30 1.34 .00 2.06 .83 n
Equity altributable 10 sharcholders per share 36.50  40.25 44.41 4220 4109 4079 5135 61.95 74.73 89.38
‘B’ shares
Earnings/(loss) per share (2.93) 0.85 1.00 (0.21}) 0.08 0.26 2,46 245 295 3.45
Dividends per share a7 0.22 0.22 0.22 0.26 0.27 0.40 0.41 0.57 0.65
Equity attributable to shareholders per share 7.30 8,05 8.88 B.44 8.22 8.16 1027 12,39 14.95 17.88
Ratio
Return on average equity attributable to the
Company’s shareholders 233.16%  11L13% 11.84% -2.45%  D99%  1.21% 26.68% 21.63% 21.57% 11.01%
Return on average equity attributabie to the
Company's shareholders (historic cost) 4.62% 1I5%  9.53% 10.7%  1L.76% 10.30% 12.80% 1546% 14.24%  15.42%
Gearing ratio 29.69% 25.23% 22.73% 2390% 2093% 15.04% 9.77% 541% 10.37% 16.46%
Interest cover ~ times (85.69) 14,87 22.28 (4.57} {1.96}) 4.45 21.72 14.09 46.65 539N
Dividend cover - times (17.61) 3.68 4.48 {0.95) 0.32 0.98 615 54895 522 5.36
Underlying
Profit (HKSM) 1,701 4,235 3,792 4,307 5,189 4,942 5,538 B,742 8,716 10,283
Equity aitdbutable to Company’s sharcholders (HKSM) 63,333 69,541 76,985 72,540 68957 68,107 87020 105300 (28,496 153,341
Return on average equity aitribytable to
Company's shateholders 7% 6% 548%  576%  762%  T7.2V%  B843% 90%%h 746% 7.30%
Earnings per ‘A’ share (HK$) 1.09 2.73 2.45 2.77 3.49 3.23 4.27 5.71 5.69 6.76
farnings per ‘B’ share (HKS} 0.22 0.55 0.49 0.55 070 0.65 0.85 114 114 1.35
Equily atiributable to
‘A’ sharcholders per share (HKS} 40.81 44,81 49.60 46.74 44,98 44,50 56.84 68,77 83,93 101.13
Equity attributable to
'8’ sharcholders per share (HK$) B.16 8.96 9.92 9.35 9.00 8.90 1.37 13.75 16.79 20.23
Gearing ratio 26.72% 22.78% 2043% 21.66% 19.18% 13.82% 8.84% 4.87% 9.24% 14.56%
Interest cover - rimes 8.09 7.62 8.23 B8.30 7.63 9.47 5.34 12.82 13.44 14.73
Dividend cover — times 1.30 2.48 2.18 2.48 .70 2.41 214 2.77 2.02 2,10

Nales:

1. The informatian 1oe all years is shown in acandance with the Gioup's curnent accounting policies and diveknure. Comequently years prion to 2006 may be difievent to thase originally presented.
. The equlty atuributable 1o the Company’s sharehalders acd ity retusa by division for 2005-2007 are thawn in the Financlal Review — tnvestment Appralsal and Perbormance Roview on page 44,

3. Undhredying profit and equity are discued on gage 38,
4. Pigase soe Glossary On page 176 for deiinnipns and ratios.
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Chairman’s Statement

Swire Pacific reported an attributable profit in 2007 of HK$26,260 million compared to HK$22,566

Dividends

The Directors have recommended final
dividends of HK¢233.0 per ‘A’ share and
HK¢46.6 per ‘B’ share, which together
with interim dividends paid in October
2007, amount to full year dividends of
HK¢323.0 per ‘A’ share and HK¢64.6
per ‘B’ sharc.

Key Developments

In February 2007 Swire Properties
completed the acquisition of 2 1.3
million square foot retail development
and a 99-room hotel under construction
in Sanlitun, Beijing, for a consideration
of RMB4,800 million,

In June 2007 apreement was reached
with the Hong Kong Government to

pay a lease modification premium of
HK$807 million to allow redevelopment
of a site owned by the Group on Stubbs
Road in Hong Kong as a 12-storey
residential building.

6 Swire Pacific

-

committed as at the year-end across all key areas of the Group.

In November 2007 Swire Properties
acquired the Tai Sang Commercial
Building in Wanchai, Hong Kong,
{for HK$1,360 million.

In Feburary 2008 Swire Properties
acquired a 50% joint-veniure interest
in a retail-led mixed-use development
near Jiang Tai in the Chaoyang District
of Beijing. The total investment by
Swire Properties in the development
is estimated to be approximately
RMB2.000 million.

In August 2007 Swire Pacific Offshore
acquired the trade and assets of Salvin
Far East Pte Limited (*SFE”) resulting in
an immediate and significant expansion
of its selsmic exploration business.
Including those acquired with SFE,

five vessels were added to the fleet in

2007 and four older vessels were sold,

In February 2007 the Group
completed the sale of its interest in
Shekou Container Terminals, realising
a galn of HK$1,078 miltion.

. million in 2006. Underlying attributable profit, which primarily adjusts for net property revaluation

' gains, was HK$10,283 million, an increase of 18% on 2006, desi)ite a MK$317 million reduction in
capital profits. The increase in underlying profit was driven by increased property rental income and
exceptionally strong performances from the Group’s aviation interest; and Swire Pacific Offshore.

2007 has been a year of consolidation, with focus placed on developing our property foolprint in

key cities in Mainland China and integrating aviation interests following their reorganisation in 2006.
Swire Pacific Offshore and the Beverages Division both enjoyed significant expansion in activity, with
Swire Pacific Offshore reporting record profits on exceptionally strong demand for its services. Total
investments of over HK$15,500 million were made in the year and a further HK$18,254 million was

Operating Performance
Property rentals and occupancy levels
in Hong Kong remained high during

the year as a result of continued strong -
demand and the absence of significant
additional new supply. Swire Properties’
underlying attributable profit grew by
7% as a result.

The Cathay Pacific group performed
strongly in 2007, as additional
frequencies and capacity coupled with
continued robust passenger demand
offset a weaker than expected cargo
market. Synergies from the acquisition
of Dragonair in September 2006
supported Cathay Pacific's results and
added significant connectivity henefits
to users of the Hong Kong hub.

The HAECQ group had a strong year,
with robust demand filling expanded
capacity.




The Beverages Division recorded strong
volume growth in Mainland China but
high raw material costs continued to
depress margins. However, a strong
performance from the USA, with
improved pricing, resulted in a small

increase in overall eamings.

Swire Pacific Offshore had another
outstanding year with record high
charter rates and strong vessel

utifisation.

Profit from the Trading & industrial
Division fell by 10% in 2007. This
was attributable to continued weak
consumer sentiment in Taiwan which
depressed sales at Taikoo Motors.

Finance

Net debt at the year-end was
HK$22,492 million, an increase of
HK$10,562 million from the start of the
year as a result of new investments in
property, vessels and repurchases of
the Company’s shares. Newly arranged
debt facilities included a five-year
HK$10,000 million syndicated loan and
HK$3,600 million of bilateral revolving
credit facilities. Gearing rose during
the year by 6.1 percentage points from
10.4% 10 16.5%.

Corporate Governance
Swire Pacific’s governance principles
and the processes adopted to safeguard
the interests of sharehalders are set out
on pages 53 to bS.

Sustainable Development
It is Swire Pacific’s policy to adopt

best practice in its relations with ils
stakeholders, including employees

and the communities in which we are
involved. We also acknowledge the
need to protect the natural environment
in which we operate. During 2007 the
Group has formalised its framework
around those areas, previously reporled
under “corporate social responsibility”,
through the adoption of a Sustainable
Development Policy. This is discussed
on pages 75 lo 81.

Prospects

in Hong Kong Swire Froperties will
open the 70-storey One Island East
office building in Quarry Bay in the
first-half of 2008. The 350-room EAST
hotel ad'iacem to the site is scheduled
to be completed in 2009.

Re-development of 53 Stubbs Road
has begun with completion expected
in 2010

Swire Properties’ relail and hotel
development at Sanlitun in Beijing,

its first major development to be
completed in Mainland China, will be
opened progressively during 2008.

Construction of the mixed-use 3.6
miltion square foot development at
TaiKoo Hui, Guangzhou, is progressing
weli, with completion expected in 2010.

In Shanghai, our joint-venture
development at Dazhongli is at site-
clearance stage, with completion
expected in 2012,

Swire Hotels has been formed to
create and manage small luxury hotels
in Hong Kong and Mainland China,
where the hotels will be an integral
part of Swire Properties’ retail and
office developments, and in the United
Kingdom.

On completion of current developments,
Swire Properties will have a property
portfolio of over 15.5 million square feet
in Hong Kong and 7.9 million 'square
feer in Mainland China.

Cathay Pacific expects further synergies
to be realised from its acquisition of
Dragonair and opportunities arising
from its cross-shareholding relationship
with Air China continue to be explored.
Fuel prices are expected o remain high
and the Aviation Division’s profitability
remains sensitive 1o further increases.
Cathay Pacific and Dragonair are
committed to significant capacity
expansion over the next five years,

with 51 aircrafi currently on order.

2007 Annual Report



Chairman’s Statement

Cathay Pacific is the subject of anti-
trust investigations by competition
authorities in various jurisdictions and
is cooperating fully with the relevant
authaorities. Given the uncertainties
surrounding these issues, no reliable
estimate of any potential liability can
be made at this time. Accordingly the
matter is disclosed as a contingent
liability in the accounts (see note 38c¢
on page 134).

The HAECO group's prospects are
goad given expected robust demand
for its core services and its capacity
expansion programme in Hong Kong

and Xiamen,

The Beverages Division is expected
10 continue to benefit from sales
growlh in Mainland China. However,

the division’s margins will remain

sensitive to pressure from high raw

material prices.

Swire Pacific Offshore is ideally

placed to benefit from continued rebusl
demand for its services irom the offshore

oil and gas sector. The company has
a total of 24 new vessels on order of
which eight will be delivered in 2008.

The Trading & Industrial Division
expects strong performances from
its investments in ICl Swire Paints and

CROWN Beverage Cans and a steady
performance from its other businesses in

2008.

B Swire Pacific

O

Despite increased uncertainty aboul
the strength of the global economy,

the fundamentals of the Hong Kong
and Mainland China economies remain
strong. The Group is well placed to
beneiit from this.

The continued prosperity of the

Group could not have been achieved
without the drive and dedication of aur
employees and | take this opportunity
to express my graiitude to them.

Christopher Pratl

Chairman
Hong Kong, 6th March 2008




Financial Highlights

2007 2006 Change
HK$M HK$M %
(Reslated)
Turnover 21,553 19, +12.8
Operating profit 26,579 23,513 +13.0
Profit attributable 1o the Company’s shareholders 26,260 22,566 +16.4
Cash generated from operations 5,880 5,748 +2.3
Net cash oulflow before financing (4,924) (3,164} +55.6
Total equity (including minority interesis) 136,678 15,024 +18.6
Net debt 22,492 11,930 +BB.5
HKS HK$
Earnings per share”
‘A’ shares 17.26 14.74 171
‘B’ shares 3.45 2.95
Dividends per share
‘A shares 3.230 2.830 4.
‘B’ shares 0.646 0.566 ]
Equity attributable to the Company’s shareholders per share
‘A shares 89.38 74.73
+12.6
‘B’ shares 17.88 14.95
Underlying Profit**
2007 2006 Change
HK3M HK$M %
Underlying profit attributable to the Company’s shareholders 10,283 8,716 +18.0
HK$ HKS
Underlying earnings per share®
‘A’ shares 6.76 5.69 +18.8
‘B’ shares 1.35 104
Underlying equily attributable 10 the Company’s sharcholders per share
‘N shares 10113 83.92 +305
‘8’ shares 20.23 16.79 )

Notes:
* Sece nole 13 to the accounts.
** A reconciliation between the repurted and enderlying profit and equily attributable 10 1he Company’s sharcholders is provided on page 18.
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Expanding Portfolio

Swire Properties’ invesiment portiolio comprises a combination

commercial and residential properties and haotels 1otalling 13.6 m

feet, with a turther 10.3 million square feet under development.

Conserving Energy

of completed

illion square

Water-cooled air-conditioning systems operate in 90%. of Swire Fropertics’

buildings, reducing emissions of carbon dioxicde into the atmosp
3,000 tonnes a yvear. Swire Properties has successfully developed
wide range of systems for monitoring and reducing its carbon io

been at the forefront of developing energy-eilicient buildings in

1ere by over
and applied a
siprint and has

Hong Kong.




Property Division

Swire Properties’ investment property portfolio in Hong Kong comprises office and retail premises in prime
locations, as well as serviced apariments, hotel interests and other luxury residential accommodation. The
completed portfolio totals 13,1 million square feet of gross floor area. Current property pending or under
development in Hong Kong comprises a further 2.4 million square feet, mainly of office space. In Mainland
China, Swire Properties has interests in major commercial mixed-use developments totalling 7.9 million
square feet under construction in Beijing and Guangzhou and undergoing site clearance in Shanghai. In the
United States, Swire Properties owns a 75% interest in the Mandarin Oriental Hotel in Miami, Florida. in the
United Kingdom, Swire Properties owns four boutique hotels. '

Swire Properties’ trading portfolio comprises land and apartments under development in Hong Kong and
Florida. Swire Properties currently has no inventory of completed units.

Particulars of the Group’s key properties are set out on pages 163 to 173.

2007 2006

HKSM HKSM
Turnover
Gross rental income derived from
Offices 2,700 2n8
Retail 2,616 2,420
Residential 261 262
Other revenue* B6 72
Property investment 5,663 4,872
Properly trading 10 554
Sale of investmeni properties 283 180
Hotels 148 7
Total urnover 6,104 5,631
Operating profit derived from
Property investment 4,040 3,450
Valuation gains on investmeni properiies 19,377 16,990
Property teading (33 190
Sale of investment properties 90 -
Sale of available-for-sale investmem - 155
Hotels 6 2
Total operating profit 23,440 20,787
Share of post-tax profits from jointly controlled and associated companies
Normal operations 33 267
Non-recurring itemns - 132
Attributable profit 19,225 16,983

* Other revenue is mainly estate management fees.
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Review of Operanons - Property Division

Additional information is provided below to reconcile reported and underlying profit attributable to the Company's shareholders.

These reconciling items principally adjust for the impact of HKAS 40 and HKAS-Int 21 on investment properties and deferred

taxation respectively.

2007 2006
HKSM HK$M
Reported attributable profit 19,225 16,983
Profit on sale of investment properties 100 140
Valuation gains from subsidiaries (19,377) {16,990)
Share of net valuation gains from jointly controlled and associated companies {153) (173)
Depreciation of investment properties occupied by the Group 9 16
Deferred tax on revaluation movements 3,498 3,096
Minority interests - 2
Underlying attributable profit 3,302 3,074

HKSM
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Review of Operations — Property Division

Property investment portfolio - gross floor area {000 square feet)

Lecation Total Office Retail Residential Hotels
Completed
Pacific Place 3,675 2,186 71 443 335
TaiKoo Place 4,455 4,455* - - -
Cityplaza 2,738 1,633 1,105 - -
Festival Walk 1,209 229 980 - -
Others 1,056 368 603 38 47
- Hong Kong 13,133 8,871 3,399 481 382
- United States 259 - - - 259
— United Kingdom 184 - - - 184
Total completed 13,576 8,871 3,399 481 825
Under and
pending development
- Hong Kong 2,408 1,983 - 65 357
- Mainland China 7,873** 2,704 3,697 - 1,472
Total 23,857 13,558 7,096 549 1,654

Gross floor area represents 100% of space owned by Group companies and the Group's attributable share of space held through jointly controlled and associated
companies. A schedule of the principal properties of the Group and its jointly controlled and associated companies is given on pages 163 to 173.

* Inctudes 1.8 millien square feet of techno-centres

** Includes 947,000 square feet for Jiang Tai, Beijing acquired in February 2008

2007 OVERVIEW

Hong Kong's excellent economic
performance was reflected in the
strength of the commercial property
market during 2007, Demand ior prime
office space exceeded new supply and
rents continued to improve. Retail rents
rose steadily, with healthy domestic
demand and tourism from Mainland
China continuing to benefit retail sales.

Recurring gross rental income from
the investment portfolio amounted to
HK$5,577 million in 2007, compared
with HK$4,800 million in 2006,
reflecting improved occupancies and
rents across the portfolio.

No significant trading projects were
completed in the year.

In February 2007 Swire Properlies
acquired a property development
project under construction in Sanlitun,
in the Chaoyang district of Beijing, for

14 Swire Pacific

a total consideration of RMB4,800
million. Swire Properties has an 80%
interest in the retail component of the
development, which has been named
The Village at Sanlitun, and a 100%
interest in a small luxury hotel on the
same site. The remaining 20% interest in
the retail component is held by Gateway
Capital. The development will be
opened progressively during 2008.

In Navember 2007 Swire Properties
successfully acquired at auction the
Tai Sang Commercial Building in
Wanchai, Hong Kong for a price

of HK$1,360 million.

In February 2008, Swire Properties
announced that it had entered into a
50:50 joint venture with Sino-Ocean
Land Holdings Limited to develop a
retail-led mixed-use project near Jiang
Tai, in the Chaoyang district of Beijing.
On completion in 2010 the project will
comprise approximately 1.9 million

square feet of gross floor area combining
retail, office and hatel accommodation,
The total investment by Swire Properties
in the development is estimated to be
appraximately RMB2,000 miltian.

Hong Kong Investment

Property Portfolio

Offices

Office rents continued to rise during
2007 with strong demand from the
financial services sector. Recurring gross
rental income from the office portfolio
was 27% higher in 2007 than in 2006.
At the year-end the completed portfolio
was virtually fully let, compared to 97%
at the end of 2006.

Pre-leasing at One Island East, in Quarry
Bay, has been very encouraging and the
building is now 86% feased, including
substantial commitments from jP Morgan
Chase and DBS Bank.



Retail

Higher spending by Hong Kong
residents and Mainland China tourists
drove increased retail sales at Swire
Properties’ three principal shopping
malls. Gross rental income for the year
was 8% higher than that of 2006 and
the malls remained fully let.

The Mall at Pacific Place is one of the
leading shopping malls in Hong Kong.
Seibu, Great Food Hall, Lane Crawford
and AMC Cinemas are anchor tenants
and, together with 140 other retail and
catering outlets, occupy approximately
700,000 square feet of space. A

“number of contemporisation initiatives
are underway, designed to improve
accessibility and to reinforce the appeal
of The Mall as a shopping and leisure
destination,

Cityplaza is the primary destination for
shoppers in Island East, with a number
of major anchor tenants including
Apita (formerly Uny}, Wing On, Marks
& Spencer and UA Cinemas. Other
tenants comprise over 170 retail and
catering outlets. The tenants, together
with the Cityplaza Ice Palace, occupy
just aver 1.1 million square feet of space.

Festival Walk is the major shopping
centre in central Kowloon with anchor
tenants including Taste, Marks &
Spencer, Page One Books, Uniglo and
AMC Cinemas, plus over 200 other
retail and catering outlets. The tenants,
together with The Glacier ice rink,
occupy over 980,000 square feet

of space.

The Citygate retail centre at Tung
Chung, in which Swire Properties has

a 20% interest, has been repositioned
successfully as an outlet mall for
international brands, with over 60 retaii
and catering outlets, and is now fully let,

Residential

The residential portfolio largely
comprises Pacific Place Apartments
{previously known as Parkside), where
occupancy was high and rental rates
increased during 2007. The remaining
residential properties on Hong Kong
Island were fully let at the year-end.

Investment Properties under
Development

Construction work at One Island East is
almost complete. This 70-starey Grade A
office building will add approximately
1.5 million square feet to Swire
Properties’ Island East investment
property portfolio.

During the year a premium offer of
HK$807 million from Government was
accepted for a lease modification to
aliow the redevelopment of two houses
at 53 Stubbs Road into a 12-storey
residential building of approximately
68,000 square feet, which is intended
1o be held for long-term investment.
Works have commenced on site with
completion expected in 2010.

Valuation of Investment Properties
The portfolio of investment properties
was re-valued at 31st December 2007 by
DTZ Debenham Yie Leung. The amount
of this revaluation (before associated
deferred tax) was HK$19,377 million
compared to HK$16,990 million in
2006. The revaluation in 2007 largely
reflects higher rental levels for office and
retail properties, and benchmarks set by
recent properly sales.

Mainland China

Investment Properties under
Development

The Village at Sanlitun, consisting of
two neighbouring sites in Beijing, will
open progressively during the course of
2008. The South site, which comprises
770,000 square feet of gross space,

will open in the second quarter and
committed tenants include Adidas, Esprit
and i.t. Committed tenants for the North
site, which comprises 510,000 square
feet of gross space, include Mont Blanc
and Versace. The North site will open in
the second half of the year.

Construction is underway, at the

TaiKoo Hui mixed-use development in
Guangzhou, with compietion expected
in early 2010. The development will
comprise 1.2 million square feet of prime
shopping space, two office towers, two
hotels (one of which will be managed by
Mandarin Oriental) and a cultural centre.

In March 2007, the retail podium of the
Beaumonde residential developmernt
adjacent to the TaiKoo Hui site, was
acquired. The development, comprising
approximately 85,000 square feet, will
open in the first half of 2008.

Site clearance and resettlerment work
continues at the Dazhongli Project in
Puxi, Shanghai. Swire Properties and
HKR International each hold a 50%
interest in this development, which will
consist of a major retail centre, offices
and hotels, with total commercial space
of approximately 3.6 million square leet.
Completion is expected in 2012.

2007 Annual Report 15
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Hotels

Swire Hotels has been formed to
create and manage smal! luxury hotels
in Hong Kong and Mainland China,
where the hotels will be an integral
part of Swire Properties’ retail and
office developments, and in the United
Kingdom.

Hong Kong

Swire Properties has a 20% interest

in each of the W Marriott, Conrad
Hong Kong and Island Shangri-la

hotels at Pacific Place and Novotel
Citygate in Tung Chung. All these hotels
have benefited from higher occupancy
levels and increased room rates.

Construction work has commenced

on EAST, a 350-room hotel on the site
formerly known as Cityplaza Two, with
completion now scheduled at the end
of 2009.

The former serviced apartments at The
Alrium, Pacific Place, are currently
being converted to a luxury hotel of
approximately 120 rooms, with work
expecied to be completed in the middle
of 2009.

Mainland China

The first Swire Properties wholly-owned
and managed luxury hotel in Mainland
China will open as part of The Village

at Sanlitun, Beijing, in the first half of
2008. Named The Opposite House, it
will comprise 99 rooms and a number of
restaurants and bars.

Swire Hotels wilt manage one of the two
hotels being constructed at TaiKoo Hui.

USA

The 329-room Mandarin Oriental Hotel
in Miami, which is 75% owned by the
Group, continued to report improved
operating profits.

UK

In September Swire Properties acquired
the Avan Gorge Hotel in Brisiol. It is
intended to refurbish and rebrand this
and the three Alias hotels, in Exeler,
Cheltenham and Brighton, acquired in
2006, under the Swire Holels name, 1o
be launched in the UK in the second
quarter of 2009.

Property Trading Portfolio
There is currently no inventory of
completed trading properties.

Hong Kong

Construction of Island Lodge, the
development at Java Road in North
Paint, where Swire Properties has been
appointed as developer by China Mator
Bus, is expected to be completed in .
early 2009. Swire Properties is entilled
to reimbursement of costs and a share of
the net sales proceeds under the terms
of this appointment.

The foundation work at 2A ~ 2E
Seymour Road in Mid-Levels is expected
1o be completed in the middle of 2008.
Swire Properties has a controlling stake
in rhis site with redevelopment potential
of approximately 174,000 square feet.
The final form of the development

will be determined once outstanding
approvals have been obtained.

Redevelopment options are being
explored at Sai Wan Terrace, a
residential development of 165,000
square feel in Quarry Bay, in which
Swire Properties has a controlling
interest.

A former bus depot site on Wong
Chuk Hang Road, Aberdeen, is

owned 50:50 by Swire Properties

and China Motor Bus. The site has an
industrial development potential of
382,000 square feet. With the recent
announcement of the South Island Line
(East), consideration of alternative uses
is being explored.

USA

Labour shortages in the construction
sector contributed to delays in the
scheduled completion of Asia, a 123-unit
condominium tower on Brickell Key,
Miami. The project is fully sold-oul and
will commence closings shorily.

Swire Properties has entered into a
joint venture with the Flagler Group in
the proportion 75:25 1o develop sites
for mixed-use development in Fort
Lauderdale, Florida.

2008 Outlook

Swire Properties will continue to seek
opportunities Lo invest in real estate
projects in major cities in Mainland
China,

In Hong Kong the completion of

One Island East and the continuing
enhancement of the commercial
portfolio will be a primary focus in 2008.
In residential trading, Swire Properlies
will pursue quality projects of the type
in which it has established a strong

track record.

In the USA, Swire Properties intends
to build further on its reputation for
developing high-quality residential
apartments in South Florida,

The Opposite House will open in Beijing
in the middie of 2008.

Keith G Kerr
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Growing Fleet 1(
1
Cathay Pacific announced its biggest-ever direct ;:
purchase commitment for new aircraft at the end

of 2007, with fi-m orders for ten Boeing 747-8F
freighters, seven Boeing 777-300ER passenger

aircraft, and eight Airbus A330-300 aircraft.

Responsible
Planning
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Aviation Division

The Aviation Division comprises significant investments in
associated companies, including the Cathay Pacific group, the
Hong Kong Aircraft Engineering group, and Hong Kong Air Cargo
Terminals. The Cathay Pacific group includes Cathay Pacific
Airways, its wholly owned subsidiary Hong Kong Dragon Airlines
("Dragonair”), its 60% owned subsidiary AHK Air Hong Kong,
and an associate interest in Air China. In addition, Cathay Pacific
has interests in a number of companies providing aviation-related
services including flight catering, ramp and cargo handling

and laundry services. Cathay Pacific and HAECO are listed on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange. Dragonair provides passenger and
freighter services to Mainland China and other regions while AHK
focuses on regional all-cargo services.

2007 2006
HKS§M HK$M
Profit on shareholding realignment of Dragonair and Cathay Pacific - 1,334
Share of post-tax profits from associated companies
Cathay Pacific group* 2,680 1,700
Hong Kong Aircralt Engineering group 469 379
Hang Kong Air Cargo Terminals 273 283
31,422 2,367
Attributable profit 3,330 3,605
Turnover of these associated companies a1 entity level is:
007 2006
HKSM HK$M
Cathay Pacific group 75,358 60,783
Hong Kong Aircraft Engineering group 4,619 3.844
Hong Kong Air Cargo Terminals 3,018 3,017
Swire Pacific’s Aviation Division includes the following associated companies:
Shaseholding of Group companies a1 year-end
Direct or By Cathay Swire Paciflc
by Swire Aviation™* Pacific group Total  elfective interest
Cathay Pacific group 39.9% - 39.9% 39.9%
Hong Kong Aircraft Engineering Company 32.8% 27.5% 60.3% 43.8%
Hong Kong Air Carpoe Terminals™** 30.0% 10.0% 40.0% 20.0%

*  These figures do not include Cathay Pacific group’s share of proiit from Hong Kong Aircralt Engineering group, which has been included in the aitributable

figures ior this company.

** Swire Aviation is 2 66.7% held subsidiary company of Swire Pacific.
*** Cathay Pacilic accouns for its sharehelding in Hong Kong Air Cargo Terminals as an investmen interest and consequently the Group does not include this

haolding in its eifective interest.
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Review of Operations — Aviation Division

Operating Statistics

Key Operating Highlights

2007 2006 Growth
Available tonne kilometres {ATK) Million 23,077 19,684 +17.2%
Available sea1 kilometres {ASK) Million 102,462 91,769 +11.7%
Revenue passenger kilometres (RPK) Million 81,801 72,939 +12.1%
Revenue passengers carried ‘000 23,253 18,097 +28.5%
Passenger load factor % 79.8 79.5 +0.3%pts
Passenger yield HK cents 55.0 48.0 +14.6%
Cargo carried tonnes ‘000 1,642 1,308 +25.5%
Cargo and mail load (actor % 66.7 68.6 -1.9%pts
Cargo and mail yield HKS 1.64 1.70 -3.5%
Cost per ATK HKS 2.32 2.2 +4.0%
Cost per ATK without fuel HIKS 1.65 1.57 +5.1%
Aircrafi utilisation Hours per day n7 125 ~6.4%
On-time performance % 83.9 §5.2 -1.3%pts
2007 OVERVIEW and a substantially increased profit Dragonair

The Aviation Division performed
strongly in 2007. Additional frequencies
and capacity, coupled with robust
demand and the realisation of synergies
from the acquisition of Dragonair in
2006, helped to boost the Cathay
Pacific group's profit by 71.8%. HAECO
saw profit growth of 26.7%, benefiting
from capacity expansion and strong
demand,

Cathay Pacific Group
Cathay Pacific’s consolidated profit was
HK$7,023 million in 2007, compared
to HK$4,088 million in 2006. Turnover
was another record, increasing by
24.0% to HK$75,358 million.

The key driver of the 71.8% rise in profit

was strong passenger demand, helped
by a weak US dollar, fuel hedging gains

20 Swire Pacific

contribution from its associates,
in particular Air China. Cargo demand
was generally weaker than expected for

" much af 2007, resulting in a lower cargo

yield. Fuel prices continued to climb,
particularly in the latter part of the year,
and the 1otal fuel bill after hedging

rose by 21.8% to HK$24,624 million
Fuel surcharges and hedging gains only
partially offset the additional cost.

Passenger Services

Cathay Facific

Cathay Pacific carried a record number
of passenigers, with consistently streng
demand throughout 2007. The average
toad factor remained high at 81,1%.
Demand was firm on most routes, with
strong corporate demand, particularly
on long-haul services, helping to push
yield up by 11.1% to HK¢52.2. Capacity

rose by 3.9%, with most of the increase -

coming towards the end of the year.

Following the launch of services to
Phuket in December 2006, five new
destinations were added to the network
and frequencies were increased on
many routes in order to improve
connections with Cathay Pacific’s
international network. The average
load factor for the year was 68.4%,
with demand high an major roules into
Mainland China. Yield rose by 2.6%.

Cargo

Cathay Pacific

Cargo demand was weaker than
expected throughout 2007, though with
a capacity increase of 20.3% Cathay
Pacific did set a new tonnage record.
Yield fell by 7.7%, mainly due 10 weak
demand out of Europe and North Asia.
Cargo tonnage carried from Mainland
China continued to grow, despite an
increasing number of carriers offering
direct flights. High fuei prices had a




negative impact throughout the year,
with somne shift from airfreight to marine
transport as a result.

Dragonair

Both tonnage and revenue declined
year on year due to the termination
of Dragonair's European services

in February 2007. Demand out of
Mainland China, and in particular
Shanghai, was strong throughout
the year. Competition on key routes
increased.

Network, Praduct & Fleet

Cathay Facific

Cathay Pacific increased the number
of flights on key routes, with extra
daily services to Melboume, New York
and San Francisco. Flights were also
added 1o Adelaide, Frankfurt, Paris,
Perth, Tokyo, Toronto and Vancouver.
Codeshare arrangements with Dragonair
were established for services to Busan,
Changsha, Fuzhou, Kathmandu,
Qingdao, Sendai and Wuhan. The
airline announced a significant
strengthening of scheduled services to
tndia from 29th February 2008, with
more flights to Delhi and Mumbai

and the launch of a new destination,
Chennai.

Cathay Pacific’s innovative new long-
baul inflight product was launched

in May. It features First Class suites,
fully-flat beds with enhanced privacy
in Business Class and unique Economy
Class seats that recline within their
own shell. All cabins feature the latest
inflight entertainment system with

audio and video on demand. The new
cabins have now heen retrofitted into
ten aircraft while all seven new Boeing

_777-300ERs (Extended Range) arrived

with the product installed. The entire
long-haul fleet will feature the product
by mid-2009.

At the end of 2007 Cathay Pacific had
a fleet of 112 aircraft, consisting of 93
passenger aircraft and 19 freighters.
During the year five Boeing 777-
300ERs, two Airbus A330-300s, two
second hand Boeing 747-400s and one
Boeing 747-400BCF {Boeing Converted
Freighter) were received. The Boeing
777-300ER is a new addition to the fleet
and will form the backbone of Cathay
Pacific’s long-haul fleet in the coming
years.

tn Novernber Cathay Pacific announced
its biggest-ever order for new aircraft
with a commilment for ten Boeing 747-
8F freighters and seven more Boeing
777-300ERs, bringing the total number
of Boeing 777-300ERs on order or in
service to 30. In December Cathay
Pacific announced an order for another
eight Airbus A330-300 regional aircraft
for delivery between 2010 and 2012.
These aircraft will be used by both
Cathay Pacific and Dragonair.

Dragonair

Connections belween Dragonair and
Cathay Pacific continued to improve.
Five new deslinations wére launched
during the year to Busan, Fukuoka,
Kathmandu, Sendai and Taichung.

A daily service to Bangalore will
commence on Tst May this year.

Dragonair was voted “Best Airline

- China” for the sixth consecutive year
in the annual passenger survey run by
Skytrax and was named “Best Airline
(China)” by TravelWeekiyChina in
December.

The Dragonair freighter fleet grew to
seven aircraft in 2007 with the addition
of two more Boeing 747-400BCFs

AHK Air Hong Kong (AHK)

AHK, a 60% owned subsidiary of
Cathay Pacific, which operates express
cargo services for DHL Express (the
remaining 40% shareholder), extended
its network during the year to include
Beijing and Shanghai and, together wilth
the addition of Manila in January 2008,
now serves 11 Asian cities with a fleet
of eight A300-600F freighters. AHK
recorded a higher profit in 2007 despite
the adverse impact of higher fuel prices.
Capacity increased by 23.1% while the
load factor decreased by 0.9 percentage
points and yield decreased by 6.6%.

Air China

Air China, in which Cathay Pacific
owned a 17.6% interest during the
year, is Mainland China’s national
flag carrier and the leading provider
of passenger, cargo and other airline
related services, serving 83 domestic
and 48 international destinations.
Cathay Pacific’s share of Air China’s
profit, on an equily accounting basis,
is based on accounts drawn up three
months in arrears and consequently the
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Review of Operations - Aviation Division

Network Coverage
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2007 annual results include Air China’s  Rolls-Royce engine averhaul work
results for the 12 months ended 30th performed by jointly controlied
September 2007. The airline reported an companies Hong Kong Aero Engine
Services Limited (*HAESL”) and
Singapore Aero Engine Services

increased profit for the period.

Hong Kong Aircraft
Engineering Company

Limited {*SAESL™). Demand for the
group’s services, particularly heavy
maintenance, remained strong during
the year with profit growth largely
attributable to capacity expansion

The attributable profit of the HAECO group comprised:

(“HAECO") z:;w HzKosos Changu:
HK$M M

The HAECO group provides a range

AL group provi B HAECO 391 305 28%
of aviation maintenance and repair TALCO 301 291 16%
services. The primary operations are Share of profi1 of:
aircraft maintenance and modification HAESL and SAESL 338 282 20%
work in Hong Kong, by HAECO, and Other interests 43 39 10%
. R . Total 1,073 847 27%
in Xiamen by its subsidiary company
Taikoo {Xiamen) Aircraft Engineering Swire Pacific share 469 379 24%

Company Limited (“TAECO"), and

22 Swire Pacific




resulting from the opening of HAECO's
second hangar in December 2006 and
TAECO's fifth hangar in June. HAESL
and SAESL also recorded satisfactory
growth on continued sirong demand.

The group has operated at near full
capacity throughout the year and with
demand expected to remain strong,
further expansion is in progress. A
third hangar at HAECO will be opened
in the middle of 2009, and TAECO's
sixth hangar is scheduled to be opened
before the end of 2009. The landing-
gear overhaul joinl venture in Xiamen
will start operations in the middle of
2008. HAESL opened the extension

of its engine-build shop in December
2007 which will commence cperation
in March 2008.

The group conlinues 1o invest heavily
in the recruitment and training of
engineering staff and its total headcount
increased by 16% to 11,698 during the
year. Further additional staff are being
recruited and trained to match the
planned capacity increases.

The group's medium-term prospects
are good, given its increase in capacity
coupled with expecied robust demand
for heavy maintenance services

and growth in customers’ fleets.
However, future growth in profits

will be affected by rising costs from
inllationary pressures both in Hong
Kong and Mainland China, together
wilh the continuing appreciation of the
Renminbi.

Cathay Pacific Catering

Services (“CPCS")

CPCS, a wholly owned subsidiary of
Cathay Pacific, operates six inflight
catering lacilities in Asia and North
America, It produced a record 21.4
million meals in 2007 and accounts for
03% of the airline catering market in
Hong Kong. Increased food costs and a
weak US dollar reduced profit margins.

Hong Kong Aisport
Services ("HAS")

HAS, a wholly owned subsidiary of
Cathay Pacific, is the largest franchised
ramp handling company at Hong Kong
International Airport, providing aircraft
loading, air-bridge operation, baggage
handling, and related services, The
number of flights handled grew by 5.9%

10 a new record.

Hong Kong International
Airport Services Limited
(HHIASH)

HIAS, a wholly owned subsidiary of
Cathay Pacific, provides airport ground
handiing services in Hong Kong to
Bragonair and other aidlines. It handled
32,712 flights in 2007 and recorded a
satisfactory profit.

Hong Kong Air Cargo
Terminals (“Hactl”)

Hacltl's throughput increased by 2.7%
to 2.63 million onnes due to growth in
transhipment cargoes. Attribulable profit
{ell slightly due to gains on disposal of
investments in the prior year.

Tony Tyler
John R Slosar
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Beverages Division

The Beverages Division has the right to manufacture, market and
distribute the products of The Coca-Cola Company in Hong Kong,
Taiwan, seven provinces in Mainland China and in an extensive

area of the western USA,

2007 2006

HKSM HK$M

Turnover 7,066 5,750
Operating profit 483 417
Share of posi-tax profits from jointly controlled companies 191 200
Attributable profit 507 480

Segment information .
Turnover Attributable Profit

2007 2006 2007 2006

HKSM HK$M HKSM HKSM

Hong Kong 1,692 1,536 134 126
Taiwan 1,027 988 27 34
USA 3,294 3,025 272 239
Mainland China® 1,053 20 13 109
Central costs - - {39) {28)
Total 7,066 5,250 507 480

*  Mainland China turnover is atrributable to the Fujian Cuca-Cola franchise. This became a subsidiary interest from 1st October 2006. All other interests in
mainland China are joimly controlied companies. Total twinover a1 Mainland China operations was HI:$7.764 million (2006: HK$6,700 milkion).

Sales volume in million unit cases Capital expenditure
m’:‘:-‘l‘:: HKSM
800 500
700 700
500 600
500 500
400 400
300 300
200 200
100 100
L+ o
98 99 00 D1 02 03 04 O5 06 07 98 99 00 01 02 03 04 05 06 07
[ Hong Xong I usa [ Hong Keng I vsa
I tavan [] maintand China | Giwan [] Mainlznd China
Net assets employed
HKS$M
5.000
4,000
3,000
1,000
1,000

98 99 00 O

J Hong Kong B usa
B nivan
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Managing Resources

Swire Coca-Cola has successiully achieved a malerial saving
of morce than 10% by using thinner aluminium cans without

sacriiicing product quality.
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Review of Operations - Beverages Division

2007 OVERVIEW

The Beverages Division reported

strong growth in sales volume of 16%

in 2007 with Mainland China being

the key driver. High raw material costs
continued to narrow margins but
attributable profit rose by HK$27 million
to HK$507 million.

Hong Kong

Sales volume grew 10% reflecting the
successful launch of Coke Zero, good
weather for the peak summer maonths
and rising consumer spending, Margins
were squeezed by rising raw material
costs and competitive pressures on

sales prices.

The introduction of Coke Zero
contributed to a 7% growth in volumes
of sparkling beverages and it successfully
secured a significant markel share.

Still beverages enjoyed strong volume
growth of 16% with a relaunched
Bonagua achieving 14% growth to
consolidate its dominant position in the
water categary. New flavour launches
helped propel sales growth of 17% for
the Healthworks brand in the health

and wellness category. In 2007 still
beverages accounted for 41% (2006:
46%) of Hong Kong sales volume. The
breadth of the portfolic continues to be
a competitive advantage in a challenging

market.
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Overall, the strong sales growth
generated a 7% improvement in
attributable profit to HK$134 million.

Taiwan

A 10% improvement in sales volume
was achieved with a successful launch
of Coke Zero and flavour extensions to
the Nestea portiolio. However market
conditions remained extremely difficult.
The sparkling category continued

to decline and consumer sentiment
remained depressed due to political and

economic uncertainty.

Retailer consolidation, private label
proliferation and heavy competitive
pressures constrained the ability to
recover increased raw material costs

through higher sales prices.

Overall, the growth in sales volume

and savings in operaling expenses were
insufficient to offset the increase in raw
material costs and a weaker sales mix.
As a result attributable profit fell by 21%
to HK$27 million.

USA

Sales volume increased 3%, a very

satisfactory result for this mature market.

The growth was driven by an expanded
portfolio of still beverages, which
complemented the strong range of
sparkling brands.

Increased raw material costs were
again a challenge and margins declined
despite selective price increases and

reduced administration costs.

The still beverages portiolio now
represents 19% of sales volume. 2007
saw significant growth of 30% for
Dasani, 14% for Powerade and 27%

overall for the energy drinks category.

Swire Coca-Cola USA was selected
as “Bottler of the Year” by Beverage
Industry magazine, testament to the
excellent management skills of the US

operation.

Attributable profit rose by 14% to
HK$272 million.

Maintand China

Sales volume increased 20% to exceed
500 million unit cases. Marketing
expenses increased by 49% over the
prior year and successfully boosted sales
in a year lacking significant new product

launches.

The continued commitment to
investment in coolers to promote higher
margin immediate consumption sales
was maintained with 222,397 coolers
distributed in 2007, an increase of 53%
on 2006.

Sprite maintained its dominance as the
leading sparkling brand in our franchise
territories, with a 26% growth in sales

volume. Minute Maid led the premium

juice category with a 67% surge in sales.



Franchise Territories

Greater China

2407 per capita consumption

{no. of 8 oz servings} e
H above 50 X
B 26 to 50 2
" 10to 25

wdl bottling plant

Per capita
GDp consumption
Population Na. of per capita per annpum
(millions) employees (USS) {B oz servings)

Mainland China
Guangdong 64.7 3,926 4,921 57
Zhejiang 46.9 2,755 4,892 61
Anhui 66.2 878 2,136 10
Jiangsu 55.3 2,295 3,327 32
Fujian 36.6 1,636 2,940 34
Shaanxi 37.4 974 1,662 17
Henan 98.2 1,779 1,823 1
Hong Kong 7.0 1,400 29,500 188
Taiwan 229 942 17,337 48
USA 6.0 1,879 39,430 338
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Review of Operations — Beverages Division

The expansion of the distribution
network in less developed provinces
resulted in encouraging sales growth
of 38% in Henan and 35% for Anhui.
Competitive pressure in Zhejiang and
Guangdong provinces constrained
profit. Productivity enhancements
have been successfully implemented
in all existing plants but the rapid sales
growth requires invesiment in additional
production facilities. A new plant was
opened in Wenzhou in 2007 fallowing
the Huizhou plant opening in 2006. A
new PET line will be opened in each
of the Guangdong and Hefei plants

in 2008.

Prices were raised to recover some
of the increases in raw matesials,
energy and staff expenses. Overall
attributable profit increased by 4%
to HK$113 million.

2008 Outlook

The Beverages Division's overalt
prospects remain favourable with
volume growth expected 10 remain
strong for the Mainland China market.

High energy costs will continue 1o have
a negative impact and some key raw
materials remain at histarically high

levels.

Continued strength in the Mainland
China economy should continue 1o
enhance beverage consumption rates
and the on-going expansion of the
distribution netwaork will ensure the
division is well placed to benefit from
the growing market.
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The Beijing Olympics and the Qlympic
Torch Relay, both sponsored by The
Coca-Cola Company Lid., provide
excellent opportunities for sales and
marketing promotions for the Mainland
China and Hong Kong markets. The
already strong portfolio of sparkling and
still brands will continue to be enhanced
in Mainland China to meel evolving
consumer preferences. Marketing
expenses and investment in ¢old drink
equipment will also be maintained at
the current high levels.

The Hong Kong market is expected to
remain competitive. Management will
be focused on consolidation of the
successful Jaunch of Coke Zero and
development of the recently launched
*Authentic Tea House” range of leas.

Taiwan markel conditions are expected
to remain a challenge. A revitalisation
of existing brands aligned with new
product innovations will be progressed
1o betler meet consumer demands.

tn the USA focus will be placed upon
capitalising on recently launched
products. Investments will be made in
improved distribution technigues to
better contrel costs of the expanded
portfolio.

Geoff L Cundle
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SPO places groat ermphasts en acdhieving fuel efficiency in the design ef ks ey
vessel. The alae V-diass anchor handling tug supply vessels currently on erder
wiill) e 20% more fuel eificient than the clder generstion UT7M-cliss vessels.
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darine services vivision |
The Marine Services Division, through Swire Pacific Offshore,
operates a fleet of specialist vessels supporting the offshore oil
industry. The division also has an interest, through a jointly
controlled company, in ship repair and towage services primarily
in Hong Kong.
2007 2006
HKSM HKSM
Swire Pacific Offshore
Tumover 3104 1,997
Operating profit 1,503 740
Allributable profit” 1,405 701
* Including post-tax profits from jointly coniralled campanics shown betow.
Share of post-tax profits from
jointly controlied companies
Olfshore il support services® 8 35
HUD group 59 51
Container terminal operations 8 82
75 168
Profit from sale of container terminal operations 1,078 -
Attributable profit 2,550 834
Vessels in operation Vessels on nrder**
Acquired  Disposed  Year-end Expecied date of delivery
Vessel class Brake Horse Power 2006 2007 2008 1009 2010 zon
Anchor Handling Tug Supply Vessels
j-class 2,600-4,200 1k} ] - 12 - - - -
T-class 3,600 - 2 - 2 - - - -
P-class 4,800 8 - - 8 - - 4 4
S-class 5,440 4 - - 4 - - - -
6000 series 6,000-6,500 3 - - 3 - - - -
uT704 7,040-9.000 7 - 4 3 - - - -
R-class 7,200 8 - - 8 - - - -
V-class 8,810 - 1 - 1 5 2 2 -
W-class 10,800 8 - - 8 - - - -
B-class 12,240 7 - - 7 - - -
D-class 18,250 - - - - - - 1
Platform Supply Vessels
A-class 6310 2 1 - 3 3 - - -
tce Breaking Supply Vessels
E-class 23170 2 - - 2 - - - -
Seismic & Hydrographic Survey Vessels
Survey 2,600-6,400 2 - - 2 - - - -
Swire Paclfic Offshore 62 5 1 63 8 2 7 7
HUD group - Hongkong Salvage & Towage 27 - & n
Total #9 5 10 a4

** Includes B P-class vessels ordered in Jonuvary 2008
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Review of Operations - Marine Services Division

Swire Pacific Offshore — Fleet size by age of vessel

Number
of veuseh
100
: i
. - i
— - .
40
0
98 99 00 01 02 03 04 05 06 07 08 092 ¥ U
O Age15 W rzenas [Jage212s [ Age 1135
M rgec10 Oazgerezo [ Age26.30
Projected flect size and age based on current fleet size and vessels on
order at 6th March 2008.

Sustained high oil prices continued

2007 OVERVIEW

The Division’s contribution to the 10 drive exploration activity in the

Group's attributable prafit amounted offshore market in 2007, which
boosted the averape charter rates
for SPO's vessels by 43% over 2006

to record highs. SPO’s operations

to HK$2,550 million compared with
HK$834 million in 2006, including

HK$1,078 million profil on disposal

of the Group's interest in Shekou performed strongly across all markets.

Container Terminals. Fleet utilisation of 92%, whilst
remaining high, was marginally lower

than planned as dry-docking of several

Offshore Oil Support
Swire Pacific Ofishore (“SPO”)
provides marine supporl services

vessels was brought forward 1o suit
charter-hire timing.

to the offshore oil and construction
In August, the trade and assels of
Salvin Far East (Pte) Limited (*SFE*)

were acquired. SFE provides seismic

industry in every major offshore
production and exploration region

outside Narth America, As at 31st ) .
and exploration services that are

b h
December 2007 the company complementary to existing SPO

operated a fleet of 63 vessels. .
services.

SPO reporled an attributabie profit .
Replacement and modernisation

of HKS1,405 million, an increase of

100% on 2006, including capital gains

of HK$259 million on disposal of four

towards a more technically advanced

fleet to meet market demand has

) . continued during the year with total

vessels and its interest in an Egyptian . , . .
capital expenditure, including assets

acquired from SFE, of HK$1,450

miilion.

joint-venture. Capital gains in 2006
totalled HK$79 million.
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One "V~ class 8,810 brake horse
power {(“BHP"} anchor handler was
delivered in the year, with a further
five to be delivered in 2008 and orders
were placed to build four more, for
delivery in 2009 and 2010. Orders
were also placed for four “D” class
18,250 BHP anchor handling tug
supply vessels to be delivered in 2010
and 2011. These vessels will assist ultra
deep water exploration projects.

The acquisition of SFE included four
vessels of which three were delivered
in 2007 two *T" class 3,600 BHP
anchor handlers and an “A” class
platform supply vessel (“PSV"}. The
fourth vessel, an “A” class PSV, was
under construction at the year-end and
will be delivered in 2008. A further
two “A” class PSVs will be delivered
in 2008. In January 2008 SPO placed
an order for eight "P” class 4,600 BHP
vessels, bringing the total number

of vessels on order to 24, with year-
end capilal commiiments totalling
HK$3,310 million. One additional

“)” class anchor handling tug supply
vessel was delivered in the year and
four older anchor handling tug supply

vessels were sold.

Further expansion of the fleet is
planned although this may be hindered
by an increasing lack of shipyard
capacity.

Given the conlinuing high oil price,
the outlook for 2008 is promising,
and SPO should continue to benefit
from firm charter rates and high vessel
utilisation. 66% of fleet capacity is
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booked for 2008. In the medium-

term the intraduction of significant
additional vessel supply and an
industry shortage of skilled sea staff
could hamper growth. To address this
latter challenge the company opened a
Marine Training Centre in Singapore in
June 2007, at a cost of HK$23 million.

The company will continue to explore
investment opportunities 1o further
exploit its core skills and its quality
reputation.

HUD group (“HUD")
HUD, jointly owned by Swire Pacific
and Hutchison Wharmpoa, provides
harbour and sea-going towage ship
repair, and general engineering
services from its facilities on Tsing Yi
Island, Hong Kong.

HUD reported attributable profits in
2007 of HK$59 million, a significant
increase on 2006 (excluding capital

gains in that year), driven by a strong

performance from its marine division.

The marine division, operating

as Hongkong Salvage & Towage
{“HKST"), is the largest towage
operator in Hong Kong deploying 13
tugs. Increased transhipment activity
in Hong Kong in 2007 resulted in a
record number of tug movements.
HKST also operates 1wo lugs in the
Middle East and manages six container
vessels on long-term contracts to
transport refuse for the Hong Kong

Covernment.

The ship repair division continued ta
experience high utilisation, reflecting
continued strong demand.

In accordance with its strategy to focus
on core Hong Kong based operations,
the group sold its investment,
including six tugs, in Australian
Maritime Services during the year
realising a small gain.

Container Terminal
Operations

The interests in Shekou Container
Terminals | and I were sold in
February 2007 realising a gain on
clisposal of HK$1,078 million.

1 B Rae-Smith
Davy Ho
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Trading & Industrial Division

The Trading & Industrial Division has interests in Hong Kong, Taiwan, Mainland China and

Vietnam, consisting of wholly owned and joint venture investments in:

» Distribution and retailing of motor vehicles

» Distribution and retailing of sports and casual footwear and apparel
» Packaging and retailing of sugar products

* Waste management

¢ Aluminium can manufacture

* Paint manufacture and distribution

007 2006
HK$M HKSM
Turnover
Tatkoo Motors group 3,358 3,845
Swire Resources group 1,51 1,303
Other subsidiaries 416 385
Discontinued businesses 45 90
5,380 5,623
Operating profits/{losses)
Taikoo Motors group 124 183
Swire Resources group N 88
Other subsidiaries and head office costs (9 3
Valuation gain on investment property 19 27
Discontinued businesses (1) 2
154 303
Attributable profits/{lusses)
Taikoo Motors group 97 135
Swire Resources group® 9 108
Other subsidiaries and head office costs (L 5
Net valuation gain on investment property 15 22
Disconitinued businesses an 2
182 272
* Including posi-tax prafits [rom jointly cantrotled and associated companies shown below
Share of post-tax profits from jointly controlled and associated companies
Swire SITA group 84 82
CROWN Beverage Cans group k) 26
IC) Swire Painis 95 64
Swire Resources group® 67 34
284 206
Altributable profit 399 444
2007 2006
Vehicles sold 9,989 12,809
Shoes sold (millions of pairs) 2.86 2.38
Retail outlets in Hong Kong na m
Retail outiets in Mainland China 90 a8
17 21

Brands manaped
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etaii Acvantage

Swire Resources manages a growing portfolio with 208 retail outlels in Hong Kong
and Mainland China, distributing a range of leading sports, casual shoes and

leisurewear brands.

Growing Talents

The Swire Retail Academy is a creative, long-term initiative 1o offer retail-focused

training and other industry-relevant skills and knowledge to Swire Resources’
front-line sales teams. ILis Swire Resources’ way of developing and managing human

resources in a sustainable manner as ity retai Holio cantinges fo oy




Review of Operations — Trading & Industrial Division

2007 OVERVIEW

The division reported an attributable
profit of HK$399 million, a 10%
decrease on 2006. The decrease was
largely caused by weak sales at Taikoo
Motors in a difficult Taiwan car market.

Taikco Motors Group

The Taikoo Motors group, which
imports and distributes vehicles under
exclusive franchise agreements in
Taiwan, reported an altributable profit
of HK$97 million, a 28% decrease on
2006, reflecting a weak local economy
and tight credit availability. Taikoo
Motors sald 9,989 vehicles in 2007,
down 22% on 2006 compared to a
6% fall in the Taiwanese imported

car market as a whole. Margins were
reduced due o competitive discounting,

Volkswagen car sales dropped

18.1% over 2006 but Volkswagen
maintained its position as cne of

the leading imported brands. In a
weaker market, Audi maintained its
share of the luxury import segment.
volkswagen light commercial vehicle
sales were satisfactory. However, Kia
cars and Volvo truck and bus sales
were significantly down on 2006, The
immediale outlook for the group is
clouded by the continued weakness
“in consumer sentiment although the
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diversity of the brand portfolio coupled
with new product launches should
ensure progress within the imported

vehicle segment.

Swire Resources Group
The Swire Resources group distributes
and retails international footwear

and apparel brands in Hong Kong

and Mainfand China. Currently it is a
distributor for 12 brands in Hong Kong
and three in Mainland China.

The group’s atlributable profit of
HK$20 million fell 17% from 2006,

as a result of the absence of a one-off
receipt of HK$25 million from Puma
on conversion of the Hong Kong Puma
distribution licence into a joint venture
agreement in 2006.

Retail sales in Hong Kong, where the
division operates a total of 118 multi-
brand and single-brand stores, grew
10% over 2006. Sales in Mainland
China grew 64% following rapid
expansion of the distribution network
and an increase from 88 to 90 shops
in Beijing, Shanghai and Guangzhou.
Margins in 2007 improved 2.5
percentage points from 2006 due 1o
impraved pricing. .

Prospects for 2008 are encouraging for
the Mainland China market, especially
for sporting goods, ahead of the Beijing
Olympic Games in August. The Hong
Kong market is expected to remain

buoyant but retail margins will continue
to be put under pressure by high rentals
and rising labour costs.

Taikoo Sugar

Taikoo Sugar reperted a profit of HK$10
million, compared to HK$6 million

in 2006 driven by strong growth in
Mainland China following expansion of
the company’s distribution network. The
outlook for 2008 is positive.

Swire Duro

h was announced during the year that
Swire Duro will cease business in fuly
2008. No new long-term projects will
be entered into, outstanding projects
will be completed and residual
inventory cleared.

The company reported a ioss of HK$11
million for the year.

Swire SITA Group

The Swire SITA Waste Services group,
a joint venture with SITA a subsidiary
of the Suez Environment group, has
operations in Hong Kong, Macau,
Taiwan and Mainland China covering
waste collection, treatment, cleansing
and recycling. The group reported an
atiributable profit of HK$84 million, in
line with 2006.




In Hong Kong wasle quantities handled
were similar to 2006. The group’s 80%
owned waste management company

in Macau commissioned a new
hazardous waste plant which began
operations in June. The wasle-to-energy
incinerator in Kaohsiung, Taiwan, a
wholly owned subsidiary of the group,
continues to incur losses but at a much
lower level than previous years. The
hazardous waste plant in Shanghai,

in which the group holds a 40% joint
venture interest, has performed ahead
of expectations in its first full year of
operation. The Hong Kong business will
tender for the renewal of the Island East
Waste Station contract in mid-2008.

The group is expected to perform
satisfactorily in 2008.

CROWN Beverage Cans
Group

CROWN Beverage Cans group is a
joint venture with Crown Holdings
tnc., which manufactures aluminium
beverage cans in Mainland China and
Vietnam. The group contributed an
attributable profit of HK$38 million
compared to HK$26 million in 2006.
Sales volumes in Mainland China

were in line with last year. Although
margins continued 10 be affected by
high aluminium costs, increased selling
prices and appreciation of the Renminbi
improved overall profitability of the
China businesses. The Hanoi plant
recorded volume growth of 8% over

2006 although margins fell slightly.
Prospects for the group in 2008

are positive.

ICI Swire Paints

tC) Swire Paints, a joint venture with ICl,
manufactures and distributes decorative
paints primarily under the Dulux brand
in Mainland China and Hong Kong.

The company reported an attributable
profit of HK$95 million, a 48% increase
from 2006.

Mainland China operations recorded
volume growth of 33%, reflecting
further expansion of the distribution
network and product portfolic. Margins
reduced slightly due to increased

raw material costs, changes in the
product mix and competitive pressures.
Sales and profit in a mature Hong

Konig market remained generally flat.
Prospects for 2008 are good with
further expansion outside the major
Mainland China cilies expected.

Hunter A § Crawford
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Financial Review

Additional information is provided below to reconcile reported and underlying profit and equity attributable to the Company’s
shareholders. These reconciling items principally adjust for the impact of HKAS 40 and HKAS-Int 21 on investment properties
and deferred taxation respectively. Further analysis compares the impact of other significant items in the current and prior years.

Underlying profit 2007 2006
HKSM HKSM
{Restated)
Profit atiriburable 1o the Company’s shareholders per accounts 26,260 22,566
Adjustments re investment property:
Revaluation of invesiment preperty* (19,599) (17,216}
Deferred 1ax on revalualion movements 3,513 3,106
Realised profil on sale of investment properties 100 244
Depreciation of investment properlies owned by the Group 9 16
Underlying profit attributable to the Company’s shareholders 10,283 8,716
Other significant items
Trading items
Provision write back re Ocean Shores - (132)
Capital items
Profit on sale of Shekou Container Terminals (1,078) -
Profit on sale of investment properties @n {297)
Proiil on sale of CITIC Square - {155)
Profil on sale of vessels (215) 79}
Profit on sale of Ocean Marine Services (44) -
Group restructuring
Profit on share realignment of Cathay Pacific and Dragonair - (1,334)
Adjusted prolit 8,735 6,719
Underlying equity 2007 2006
HK$SM HESM
{Resiated)
Equity attribuiable 1o the Company's shareholders per accounts 135,517 114,414
Deferred 1ax on property revaluation 16,337 12,641
Revaluation of owner-occupicd properties 1,419 1,367
Cumulative depreciation on owner-occupied properties 68 74
Undedying equity attributable to the Company’s shareholders 153,341 128,496
Underlying minorily interests 1,165 614
154,506 129,110

Underlying equity

* Inctudes the Group's atributable share frum jointly contralled and associated companics.
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Commentary on major balances and year on year variances in the Consolidated

Profit and Loss Account, Balance Sheet and Cash Flow Statement
References are to “Notes to the Accounts” on pages 89 to 140.

1007 2000

Consolidated Profit and Loss Account MK HKS Reference

Turnover 1,553 19.11 Noles 4
In the Property Division, gross rental income from investment properties increased and 7
by HK5791 million, reflecting continued strong demand for office and retail space in
Hong Kong. Turnover from property trading decreased significantly with no project
closing in the year. In the Beverages Division, operations in the USA recorded a
FHK$269 million increase in turnover, mainly driven by an expanded portfolio of still
beverages together with selective price increases. Turnover in Hong Kong increased by
HK$156 million driven by the launch of Coke Zero and continued strength in Bonaqua
and Healthworks. Turnover in Mainland China grew by HK$852 million, reflecting

the first full year contribution from the Fujian Coca-Cola franchise. In Taiwan turnover
increased by HK$39 million on the successful taunch of Coke Zero and flavour
extensions to the Nestea portfolic. In the Marine Services Division, Swire Pacific
Offshore’s turnover increased by HK$1,107 million 1o HK$3,104 mitlion due to record-
high charter rates for its vessels. In the Trading & Industrial Division, the weak Taiwan
economy and tight credit availability resulted in a HK$447 million reduction in Taikoo
Motors’ wrnover. Turnover in the Swire Resources group increased by HK$218 million
as retaif sales in Mainland China and Hong Kong grew by 644% and 10% respectively.

Operating Profit 26,579 23,513 Noles 5
In the Property Division, fair value gains on investment propertics were HK$2,387 and 7
million higher than in the prior year. Increased net rental income was partially offset

by a decline in profit from property trading. Overall operating profit in Lhe Beverages

Division increased by HK$66 million helped by particularly strong growih in the

USA. In the Marine Services Division, Swire Pacific Offshore recorded a significant

rise in aperating profit due to improved charter rates and capitat gains of HK$259

million on sales of vessels and its interest in a joint venture. The division’s profil also

included a HK$1,078 miliion capital profit on sale of the Group's interest in Shekou

Container Terminals, The Trading & Industrial Division saw a decline in operating

profit mainly due to reduced sales and margins in Taikoo Motors and the absence

in Swire Resources of a one-off receipt of HK$25 million from Puma relating to the

restructuring of its distribution licence in 2006.

Net Finance Charges 493 504 Note 9
The cost of the Group’s increased net debt was offset by increased capitalisation of

interest on property projects and vessels under construction.
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Financial Review

2007 2006

Consolidated Profit and Loss Account (continued) HKSan HKsm Reieronce

The reduction is primarily due to the disposal during the year of the Marine Services and 19

| Share of Profits Less Losses of Jointly Controlled Companies 621 694 Notes 7
[
1
| Division's interests in Shekouw Container Terminals and Ocean Marine Services.

In the Trading & industrial Division, IC) Swire Paints’ contribution increased by

HK$31 million due to strong volume growth in Mainland China following continued

expansion of its distribution network and product portfolio.

Share of Profits Less Losses of Associated Companies 3,684 2,646 Notes 7
The profits from the Cathay Pacific group increased by HK$980 million, reflecting and 20

strong passenger demand and an increase in the attributable share of profit from Air

' China, partially offset by higher fuel costs. HAECQO's contribution increased by HK$90
million, reflecting strang demand for aircralt maintenance and capacity expansion
in Hong Kong and Xiamen. Hactl's throughput increased by 2.7% from growth in
transhipment cargo, however attributable profit fefl by HK$15 million. The Group's
share of net revaluation gains in respect of PCCW Tower was HK$62 million lower
than 2006. Occupancy and room rates for the hotel interests at Pacific Place improved
during the year, contributing an increase in profit of HK$21 million.

Taxation 4,004 3,582 MNotes 7
and 10

The increase in tax charges primarily reflects the increase in pre-tax profits from
property revaluations.

Profit Attributable to the Company's Shareholders 26,260 22.566 Notes 7
The increase in attributable profit is mainly due 1o the increased fair value gains on and 1
investment properties and improved contributions from the aviation and marine

divisions, partially offsel by a reduction in capital profits.

Minority Interests 127 201 Note 36
The prior year included the minority interest's share of prefit in Festival Walk

Holdings prior to it becoming a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group in March

2006.

Consolidated Balance Sheet

Property, Plant and Equipment 16,762 8,869 Noie 14
The increase is primarily attributable to Swire Properties’ developrments at Sanlitun,

Beijing and TaiKoo Hui, Guangzhou, and the acquisition of new vessels by Swire

Pacific Offshore.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet (continued) 2007 2006

HKSM HKSM Relerence
Investment Properties 128,109 104,368 Note 15
The increase includes revaluation gains of HK$19,446 million and acquisition of
the Tai Sang Commercial Building in Hong Kong for HK$1,360 million. Investment
properties under redevelopment include construction of One Island East and a
HK$807 million lease modification fee for the redevelopment of 53 Stubbs Road in
Hong Kong.
Leaschold Land and Land Use Rights 2,349 1,084 Note 16
The increase mainly represents the transfer of The Atrium serviced apartments at
Pacific Place from the investment property portfolio. These are presently being
converted into a luxury hotel,
Intangible Assets : 860 843 Note 17
The increase in the year is attributable to software purchases.
Investments in Joinlly Controlled Companies 5,761 5,195 Note 19
The increase primarily reflects further injections of equity into the Dazhongli
project in Shanghai, partially offset by the disposal of interests in Shekou Container
Terminals and Ocean Marine Services.
Investments in Associated Companies : 23,224 20,855 Note 20
The increase is largely atiributable to the increased profits from both the Cathay

. Pacific group and HAECO.
Available-for-sale Investments 365 168 Naote 22
The increase primarily represents the increase in the market value of holdings in
listed investments.
Properties for Sale 2413 1,218 Note 24
The increase is attributable to the transfer of Sai Wan Terrace, Hong Kong
from investment properties, acquisition of land in Fort Lauderdale, Florida, and
construction costs for the Asia development in Miami,
Trade and Other Receivables 3,053 2,536 Note 26
The increase is aitributable to costs recoverable in respect of the Island Lodge
devefopment in Hong Kong and accrued rental income on other properties.
Trade and Other Payables 7423 5,166 Note 28
The increase is primarily attributable to increased accruals for capital expenditure
including HK$1,224 million relating to the purchase of the Tai Sang Commercial
Building in November 2007,
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2007 2006

Consolidated Balance Sheet {continued) MRS s Refuronce

Taxation 278 177
The increased liability reflects the timing of tax payments.

Bank Overdralfts and Short-term Loans 4,078 803 Note 31
Short-term loans totalling HK52,684 million were drawn during the year to finance

property prejects in Mainland China. These loans will mature in March 2008 and be

refinanced by long-term loan facilities.

Long-term Loans and Bonds 20,486 10,271 Note 31
The increase represents further borrowings to finance new and ongoing investments.

Deferred Tax Liabilities 17,748 14,268 Note 32
The increase in the year is principally atiributable to net revaluation gains on
investment properties.

Equity Attributable to the Company’s Shareholders 135,517 114,414 Notes 34
The movement reflects profits in the year, augmented by net translation gains and 33
of HK$688 million, principally in regard to the Group’s Renminbi denominated

investments. These increases were partially offset by the payment of dividends of

HK$4,722 million and premiums paid on repurchase of the Company’s shares,

Minority Interests 1,161 610 Note 36
The increase principally represents contributions from the minority interest in Swire
Properties’ Sanlitun project.

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

Cash Generaled from QOperations 5,880 5,748 Note 41a
Cash generated in the year is net of 2 HK$566 million increase in working capital
employed on properties for sale,

Net Interest Paid 847 712
The increase in net interest paid is atiributable to the higher level of borrowings to
. finance new and continuing investments,

Profits Tax Paid 428 660
‘ The decrease reflects the timing of payments in regard to trading property
developmenits in the USA.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (continued) 2007 4106
HKSM HKSM Reference

Dividends Received from Jointly Controlled and Associated Companies 19N 2,448

The decrease reflects ihe absence of special dividends of HK$503 million from

Cathay Pacific in 2006.

Purchase of Preperty, Plant and Equipment 7,907 1,671 Note 41b

The increasc is principally attributable to expenditure on the Sanlitun property

praject and the purchase of new vessels.

Additions of Investment Properties 4,876 1,834

Current year additions relate primarily to the construction of One Island East,

paymenl to Government of a lease modification premium for 53 Stubbs Road,

the ongoing contemporisation project at the Pacific Place Mall, and the purchase

of residential units a1 Sai Wan Terrace, which were subsequently transferred to

development projects. Payments for the Tai Sang Commercial Building, acquired in

November 2007, will be made in 2008.

Proceeds from Investment Properties Disposals 263 377

These represent proceeds received from the sale of residential investment properties

in Hang Kong.

Loans to Jointly Controlled Companies 1,042 BOO

The outilow represenls further amounts advanced for the joint venture property

project in Dazhongli, Shonghai.

Purchase of Shareholdings in Associated Companies 27 40

This reflects the purchase of additional shares in HAECO during the year.

Sale of Shareholdings in Jointly Controlled Companies 1,471 -

The Group received HK$1,385 million on the sale of its interest in Shekou Container

Terminals and HK$86 million for Swire Pacific Offshore’s disposal of its interest in

Ocean Marine Services

Loans Drawn and Refinancing 14,374 10,311

Additional finance has been drawn during the year to fund investment and loan

repayments,
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Investment Appraisal and Performance Review

Net assets employed

Capilal commitments

2005 2006 007 2005 2006 2007
HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$Mm HK$M HKSM
{Restated)
Property investment
- al cost 41,581 44,607 56,804 7.187 9,606 14,907
- valuation surplus 48,483 65,694 85,173
- deferred taxation ({10,734) (14,005} (17,547)
- ather net liabilities {1,836) (834) (2,457)
77,494 95,462 121,973 7187 9,606 14,907
Property trading 598 790 2,223
Aviation 18,431 19,874 22,183 99 - -
Beverapes 2,930 3200 3403 46 32 37
Marine Services 5,061 6,026 65,496 1,744 2,392 3,310
Trading & industrial 1,540 1,715 1,774
Head office 166 (114) 1,118
Toral net assets employed 106,220 126,954 159,170 9,076 12,030 18,254
Less net debt 5,448 1,930 22,492
Less minorily interests 5929 610 1,161
Equity atiributable to the Company’s
shareholders 94,843 114,414 135,517
Equity attributable to Return on average equity attributable
the Company’s sharehalders to the Company’s shareholders®
2005 2006 2007 2005 2006 2007
HKSM HK$M HKSM
Property investment 62,323 78,480 95,674 22.0% 21.8% 22.1%
Property trading 1,630 1,171 1,957 15.0% 14.2% -2.7%
Property — overall 63,953 79,651 97,631 21.8% 23.7% 211.7%
Aviation 18,397 19,842 22153 10.8% 11.9% 15.9%
- including profit and change In equity
an share realignment of Dragonair and
Cathay Pacific - 1,474 - - 18.2% -
Beverages 2,380 2,521 2,789 209% 19.6% 19.1%
Marine Services 3,358 4,249 6,727 22.6% 21.9% 26.8%
- including profit on sale: of Container
Terminal operations (2005: Modern
Terminals) 2,270 - 1,078 67.2% - 42.3%
Trading & Industriaf 1,779 1,810 1,933 33.7% 24.7% 21.3%
Head ofiice 2,706 4,867 3,206
Total 94,843 114,414 135,517 21.6% 21.6% 21.0%

* Please see Glissary on page 176 for definition.

44 Swire Pacific




Swire Pacific focuses on the long-term development of
businesses where it can add value through its industry-
specific expertise and particular knowledge of the Greater
China region. It endeavours ta create value for shareholders
by making investments which exceed the target rate of return
appropriate for each of its businesses,

The tables on page 44 show where the Group's assels are
employed, capital commitments by division and returns on
equity attributabte to the Company’s shareholders.

Property Division

Net assets employed in property investmeni increased by
HK$26,511 million (27.8%,) during the year, principally due
to the net increase of HK$16 billion in the fair value of the
perifolio and new investment in commercial projects in
Mainland China. Other net liabilities at the end of 2007 relate
mainly to accrued property acquisition costs and deposits
from tenants.

Capital commitments 2t the end of the year relate primarily

to the developments in Mainland China, Pacilic Place
contempeorisation, One Island East tower and the hotel projects
in Hong Kong and the UK.

The return on equity from property investment decreased to

22.1% in 2007 from 23.8% in the prior year. This is primarily
attributable to the significant increase in developments under
construction which are not yet contributing to profit.

The increase in net assets employed in property trading reflects
the construction of residential property in Miami in the USA
and the purchase of units at Sai Wan Terrace in Hong Kong.
No property trading projects were completed in the period,
resulting in the reported loss.

Aviation Division

Net assets employed have increased due to profits retained.

The return on equity increased to 15.9% from 11.9% in the
prior year on strong results from the Cathay Pacific and
HAECO groups.

Beverages Division

Net assels employed have increased from investment in new
sales and distribution infeastructure in Hong Kong and Mainland
China {inanced by profits retained in the year.

Average return on equity decreased from 19.6% to 19.1%
reflecting an increase in the asset basc.

Marine Services Division

The division's net assets employed increased by 7.8% to
HK$6,496 million following delivery and orders for new
vessels, offset in pant through disposal of older vessels by Swire
Pacific Offshore. Further significant investment in new vessels is
planned by Swire Pacific Offshore.

The overall return on equity excluding the profit on disposal of
Shekou Container Terminals improved significantly from 21.9%
in the prior year to 26.8% in 2007 reilecting an exceptionally
strong performance from Swire Pacific Offshore.

Trading & Industria) Division

The return on cquity felt from 24.7% in the prior year to 21.3%
as a weak Taiwanese vehicle market continued 10 adversely
impact the division's profits.
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Treasury Management

Structure and Policies

In the normal course of business the Group is exposed to
financial risks altributable to interest rates, currency, credit

and liquidity.

The Group Finance Commitiee maintains and develops the
Group’s financial risk management policies and procedures
which are implemented by the Company’s Treasury department,
within an agreed framework authorised by the Board.

The Treasury department manages 1the majority of the Group's
funding needs, as well as any resulting interest rate, currency,
credit and liquidity risks. Operating subsidiaries manage
currency and credit exposures that are specific to their trading

transactions.

It is the Group’s policy not to enter into derivative transactions
for speculative purposes. Derivatives are used solely for
management of an underlying risk and the Group has
minimised its exposure lo market risk since gains and fosses
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on the derivatives are offset by losses and gains on the

assets, liabilities o1 transactions being hedged. Accounting

for derivative finarcial instruments and hedging activities

is discussed on pages 146 to 148. Derivative transactions
entered into by the Group and outstanding at the year-end are
summarised and set out in note 23 to the accounts.

The Group’s listed associated companies, Cathay Pacilic

and HAECO, arrange their financial and treasury affairs on

a stand-alone basis. The Group's non-listed associated and
jointly controlled companies also arrange their financial and
treasury affairs on a stand-alone basis. The Company may
provide financial cupport by way of guarantees to non-listed
associated and jointly controlled companies in cases where
significant cosl savings are available and risks are acceptable.

Interest Rate Expasure

The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from borrowings.
Borrowings issuctl at variable rates expose the Group to cash
flow interest rate risk. Borrowings issued at fixed rates expose
the Group to fair value interest rate risk. The Group earns
interest incorme on cash deposits.

The Group maintains a significant proportion of debi on a
fixed rate basis to ensure certainty of funding costs, The level
of fixed rate debl for the Group is decided after taking into
consideration the potential impact of higher interest rates

on profit, interest cover and the cash flow cycles of the
Group's businesses and invesiments. In Lhis regard the Group
uses interest rate swaps 10 manage its long-term inlerest rate
exposure. The Gioup Finance Director approves all interest
rale hedges prior 1o implementation.

Currency Exposure

The Group operates internationally and is exposed to foreign
exchange risk arising from various cusrencies, primarily

with respect to US dollars, Renminbi and New Taiwan
dollars. Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial
transactions, recognised assets and liabilities, and net
invesiments in foreign operations.




The Croup's policy is to [ully hedge all highly prabable
transactions in each major cusrency where their value or
lime 1o execution give rise o a significant currency exposure,
provided that the cost of the foreign exchange forward

or derivative contract is not prohibitively expensive in
camparison to the underlying expasure.

Exposure lo movements in exchange rates on transactions
other than borrowings is minimised using forward foreign
exchange contracts where aclive markets for the relevant

currencies exist.

At the year-end, the Group has hedged all its significant
foreign currency funding exposures with the exception of its
JS$300 million 8.84%. Perpetual Capital Securilies callable

in 2017, The principal of these instruments is not hedged as
the Croup has no requirement to redeern them., In addition,
the coupon payments on these instruments are naturally
hedged by US dollar income streams generated by subsidiaries
whose functional currency is the US dollar.

Exposure arising from the Group's investments in operations
with net assets dennminated in foreign currencies is reduced,
where practical, by providing funding in the same currency.

Credil Exposure

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and
other receivables with wholesale customers, cash and cash
equivalents, derivative financial instrurmenis and deposits
with banks and financial institutions. Individual operations are
responsible for setting credit lerms appropriate to their industry
practice and assessing the credit profile of individuat customers,

Typically sales 1o retail customers are made by cash or major
credit cards. The Group has no significant credit risk with any

one customer.

When depositing surplus funds or entering into derivative
contracts, the Group controls its exposure 1o non-performance
by counterparties by transacting with invesiment grade

counterparties, setiing approved counterparty limits and

applying monitoring procedures, Counterparty credit exposure
limiis for financial institutions are proposed by the Treasury
department and approved by the Group Finance Director.

The Treasury department monitors the counterparties” credit
ratings and issues an approved list of counterpariies with their
limits on a quarterly basis to all subsidiaries. Group companics
require prior approval from the Treasurer 1o transact with
counterpartics not on the approved list,

The Group is not required by its counterparties to provide
collueral or any other form of security against any change in the
market value of a derivative. There are no specific conditions
that would require the termination of derivative contracts
should the credit rating of Swire Pacific be downgraded.

Liquidity Risk

The Group takes liquidity risk into consideration when
deciding its sources of fund and their respective tenors,

50 as 10 avoid over reliance on funds from any one source
and to prevent substantial refinancing in any one period.
The Group maintains significant undrawn committed
revolving credit facilities and cash deposiis to further reduce
liquidity risk and allow for flexibility in meeting funding

requirements,

During the year the Group decided to increase the level

of undrawn committed revolving credit facilities and cash
deposits such that it now aims to maintain immediate access
1o committed funds to meet its refinancing and capital
commitments for the following 12 months on a rofling basis,
excluding its onshore Renminbi debt funding where forward
commitments are not readily available.
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Credit Analysis

Credit Profile

The Group aims to maintain a capital structure that

is appropriate for fong-term credit ratings of A3 ta Al

on Moody’s scale, A- to A+ on Standard & Poor’s scale,
and A- to A+ on Fitch's scale. Actual credit ratings may
depart {rom these levels from time to time due to economic
circumstances. At 3151 December 2007 the Company's

long-term credit ratings were A3 from Moody’s, A- from

Standard & Poor's, and A from Fitch.

Key Credit Ratios

The table helow sets out those credit ratios of the Group

which credit agencies commonly assess when determining

credit ratings:

Notg 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
Opcrating margin 1
- per accounts 30.1% 17.6% 107.7% 126.2% 126.7%
- underlying, 31.2% 42.3% 38.6% 37.1%
EBIT/net finance charges 2,5
- per accounts 79 21.2 34.2 36.8 3.5
- underlying 6.7 150 131 10.2
FFO+net finance charges/nel finance charges 35
- per accounts 7.4 6.7 16.0 125 10.0
- underlying 6.2 14.7 12.5 10.0
FFO/net debt
- per accounts 52.1% 76.5% 177.9% 69.5% 38.3%
- underlying 70.4% 162.3% 69.5% 38.3%
Net debt/ota) equity plus nel debt 4
- per accounts 12.2% 8.9% 51% 9.4% 141%
- underlying 8.1% 4.6% 8.5% 12.7%
Property rental income/net finance charges 5 4.3 2.8 5.2 5.4 5.0

¥ Operating margin = Operaling profit beivre depreciation and amortisation/turnover

2 EBIT = Earnings before interest and tax

3 FFO {Funds from operations) = Operating profit less net finance charges less change in fair value of investment properties less fax paid phus depreciation plus
prafit or loss on sale of property, plant and equipment plus dividonds from jointly controfled companies and assoclated companies plus non-cash items
4 Net capital = Equity 2uributable to the Company’s sharcholders plus minorlty inlerests plus net debt

5 Net finance charges include capitalised interest.

6 Underlying credit ratios are calculaied by adjusting fir the impact of HKAS 40 and HKAS-ini 21 on investment propetlics and deferred tax.
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Cash Flow Summary

007 2006
HK$M HKS$M
Net cash generated by businesses and investments
Cash generated from opetations 5.880 5.748
| Dividends received 1,991 2,448
Tax and net interest paid (1,275} (1,372)
Cash from asset realisations® 2,414 1,840
Capital expenditure and investments** (13,934) (11,828}
Net cash outflow before financing {4,924) {3,164}
Cash paid 1o shareholders and net funding by external debl
Dividends paid (4,826) (3,307)
Increase in borrowings 12,815 6,650
Capital contribution movement of minority interests 484 {2)
Repurchase of the Company’s shares (1,296} -
Security deposits placed (net) (298) {381)
Net cash generated from financing activities 6,879 1,960
Increasef{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1,955 {204}

Cash from asset realisations was primarily derived from the
sale of Shekou Container Terminals for HK$1,385 million in
February 2007. Other receipts included proceeds from the
sale of investment properties, and ihe sale of Ocean Marine
Services by Swire Pacific Offshore.

Principal capital expenditure and investments comprise
property projects and the purchase of vessels.

Changes in Financing

Significant new financing arranged during the year included
a five year HK$10,000 milfion syndicated loan, three year
bilateral revolving credit facilities totalling HK$3,600 million
and a 364-day HK$500 million bilateral revolving credil
facility,

Significant debt repayments during the year included the
repayment of a three year HK$700 million medium-term note,
and HK$500 million of bilateral revolving credit facilities.

* Includes cash reccipis from investing activities pur the consolicdated cash flow statement on page 87.
** Includes cash outflows resulting from investing aciivities per the consolidated cash flow statemem on page 87,

Surplus Funds

The Croup has surplus funds of HK$3,859 million a1 31st
December 2007, consisting of short-term deposits and bank
balances and certain available-for-sale investments, compared
to HK$1,827 million at 31st December 2006,

Currency Profile
An analysis of net debt by currency at 315t December 2007 is

shown below:

TJoral
Currency HKS$M *
Hong Kong dollar 19,617 87
United S1a1es dolkar 1,698 8
Renminhi 951 4
New Taiwan dollar 394 2
QOthers {168) A
Total 22,492 100
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Credit Analysis

Sources of Finance

At 315t December 2007, commitied loan facilities and

debi securities net of other borrowing costs amounted to
HK$34,286 million, of which HK$B,673 million (25%)
remained undrawn. In addition, the Group has undrawn
uncommilled facilities lotalling HK$3,458 million. Sources of
funds at the end of 2007 comprised:

Available Drawn Undrawn
HK$M HK$M HKSM

Coammilted facilities
Perpetual Capital Securities 2,340 2,340 -
Fixed/floating rate notes 7,257 7257 -
Bank and other loans 24,89 16,016 8,673
Total committed facilities 34,286 25,613 8,673
Uncommilted facilities 4919 1,461 3,458
Total 39,205 27,074 12,131

Maturity Profile and Refinancing
The Group’s weighted average term and cost of debt is:

2007 2006

Weighted average term of debt 4.3 years 5.8 years
Weighted average term of debt

(excluding perpetuals) 4.0 years 5.1 years

Weighted average cost of debt 5.4% 6.7%
Weighted average cost of debt

(excluding perpetuals) 4.9% 5.4%

The maturity profile of the Group’s gross borrowings net of
borrowing costs and security deposits at the end of each of
the fast five years is set out below:

Maturity profile

100

03 L 03 06 07
Il within 1 year 2-5 years
] 1-2 years [0 Over 5 years

Included in the Group's debr is HK$2,340 million of
Perpetual Capital Sccurities which the Group <an calk at
any time after 13th May 2017, As the call is at the option
of the Group, this detat is reported for illustrative purposes
as having a life of ten years.
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The Group manages refinancing risks by spreading (he
maturity of its facilities over a number of years so that
refinancing nceds are not excessive in any one year. The
repayment schedule of the Group's committed debt facilities
is detailed below:

Debt Maturity
beyond
2008 2009 2010 mwn 20Mm
HKSM  HKSM  HKSM  HKSM  HKSM
Capital market debts - 599 - 200 8,798
Bank loans 5472 1,384 4,166 3,663 10,004
Total 5472 1,983 466 3,863 18802

Covenants and Credit Triggers

There are no specific covenants given by the Group for

its debt facilities which would require debt repayment or
termination of a facitity should its credit rating be revised by
the credil raling agencies.

The Company has entered into financial covenants in respecl
of gearing limits and maintenance of minimum adjusted
consolidaled tangible net worth, to secure funding for itselfl
and its subsidiaries. These covenants are set out below:

2000
(Restated )

Covenant 2007
limits

Geating:

Consglidated
borrowed money*/
adjusted consolidated
net worlh®

Secured consolidated
borrowed money/
adjusted consolidated
net worth

£ 200% 16.5% 10.4%;

< 100% 0.5% 0.4%

HKSM HKSM HK$M

Maintenance of
minimum adjusted consolidated
tangible net worth
Adjusied consolidated
tangible net worth® = 20,000

135,818 114,181

* Refer to Glessary on page 176 dor definition.

During the term of these facilitics, none of the covenants were
breached.




Interest Cover and Gearing Ratios Gearing ratio
Al 315t December 2007, 38% of the Group's gross

. \ . HKSM Ratio
borrowings were on a fixed rate basis and 62% were
. . 200,000 15
on a floating rate hasis.
150, LN 12
The following graphs illustrate the underlying interest 120,000 ?
cover and the underlying gearing ratios for each of the last 80,000 b
five years: 40,000 3
. 0 Q
Interest cover and cash interest cover 03 04 05 06 07
HKSM Times Il Undertying total equity === Underlying gearing catio
10,000 " ] Net detit
2,000 b
6,000 9 2007 2006
1,000 6 Cearing ratio®
3 Per accounts 16.5% 10.4%
2.000 Underlying 14.6% 9.2%
o 0 Interest cover - limes*
03 04 05 06 07 Per accounts 539 46.65
Il Undertying operating profit == Undertying interest cover Underlying 14.73 13.44
(] Net fnance — Underking cash [steves cover Cash interest cover - times*
) ] Per accounts 29.27 3335
D Nel fnance chasges and capitalived interesd Undetlying 8.00 9.6)

Noles:

1 The 2014 net finance charges include 2 one-6ff interest
charge of HK$500 million in respect of the Taikoo Shing
land premium dispute.

2 The calculation of underlying operating peodit and
underlying toral equity is shawn in the Financial Review
on page 38.

*Refur to Glossary un page 176 for definition.

Attributable Profit Correlation

Swire Pacific’s anributable profils comprise earnings from a diverse range of businesses. An analysis of the degree of correlation
between these earnings streams over the last ten years has been carried out. The correlation table below illustrates that most of
the attributable profits received from different business streams are not strongly correlated. This underpins the relative stability of
the earnings stream for the Group as a whole,

Other

businesses

B combined

Marine Beverages excluding

Property Aviation Services & Trading propesty

HK$M HKSM HK$M HKSM HK$M

Underlying attributable profit* 3,302 3,330 1,472 891 5,693
Correlation coefficient:

Property 1.000 0213 0.466 0.558 0.352

Aviation 0.213 1.000 0.606 0.582 0.964

Maring Services 0.466 0.606 1.000 0.672 0.768

Beverages & Trading 0.558 0.583 0.672 1.000 ¢.748

Other husiness combined excluding property 0.352 0.964 0.768 0.748 1.000

* The underlying astrihutable profit has been adjusied 10 remove the impact of disposals,

Caonrelation key: 1 Highly correlated; 0 Uncorrelated: -1 Highly negatively carrelated.
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Attributable Net Debt
The chart below illusirates, by entity, the Group's attributable net debt and undertakings given to third parties (in HKSM):

Swire Pacific

1
]
T e t
379 .
]
]
I [ .
]
_— Swire Pacific . . '
Swire Finance . . Swire Pacific Capital '
12,285 MIN Financing 2,340% ‘
! ! Consolidsted
! nel debt
| [ | | | ' 12442
ine Servi i i )
Property Division Aviation Division Brverages Pivision .“il'll;\‘l isf'“”“’ Tndm(;).&. '."d"“"ll 1
1,149 - (201} iseon fvnion ,
(233) (105) '
1 )
[ fointly controlled and associated companies | :
1 1
| ] ] | | !
1
Aviation Division 1 .
I Afiributable
. 6,084 . Marinc Scrvices Tradlng &
Property DI g & \ debil of
pe .,YM, viston Bevﬁagte;ol)ﬁvismn Drivision tndustrial Division : lé‘éi & au:c.
Cx | Hact) | HCO | Otheny el {538} ' 6010
sy | sy | oan | 7 1
'

*  Undenakings given to third partics
8 Represents US$300 million Perpetual Capital Securities

Debt in Jointly Controlled and Associated Companies

In accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, the net debt of Swire Pacific reported in the consolicated balance

sheet does not include the net debt of its jointly controlled and associated companies. These companies had the following
net debt positions at the end of 2007 and 2006. If the attributable portion of the net debt in jointly controlled and assaciated
companies were to be added to the Group’s net debt, gearing would rise to 21% and underlying gearing would rise to 19%.

Portion of net deby Debt guaranteed by
attributable to Swire Pacific
Total net debl the Group or its subsidiaries

2007 2006 1007 2006 007 2008

HKSM HKSM HESM HK$M HKSM HK$M

Property Division 3,859 1,884 986 601 292 304
Aviation Division

Cathay Pacific group 14,731 16,348 5,879 6,531 - -

Hactl 2,668 3,796 534 759 - -

HAECO {767) {834} {336} (364} - -

Cther Aviation Division companics 15 30 7 14 - 6

Beverages Division (155} (317) (90) (159) - -

Marine Services Division 736 610 368 312 500 500

Trading & Industrial Division (1,182} {345) 1538) {201} - -

19,905 21,172 6,810 7,493 792 810
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Corporate Governance

Governance Culture Corporate governance is the process by which ihe Board

Swire Pacific is committed 1o ensuring Lhat its affairs are instructs the Group to conduct its affairs to ensure ils

conducted in accordance with high ethical standards strategies are fulfilled. The Board is committed to maintaining

reflecting a belief that in achieving its long-term objectives and developing robust corporate governance practices that are
intended to ensure:

it is imperative that it acts with probity, transparency and
« satisfactory and sustainable returns to shareholders

accountability.
¢ the imerests of slakeholders are safeguarded

e overall business risk is understood and managed
appropriately
« delivery of high-quality products and services to the

By following this ethos Swire Pacific believes that shareholder
wealth will be maximised in the long-lerm, and employees,
business partners and the communities in which it operates

will all henefit. satisfaction of customers

* high standards of ethics are maintained

Governance Structure

External Auditors . Shareholders Remuneralion Commillce
(Page b4} (Page 65) (Page 59)

Audit Commiitee Finance Committee
(Page 62) > The Board < ' (Page 62}

Group Risk Management
Committee
(Page 61)

Divisional Management
(Page 58)

Internal Audit
(Page 61)

[ management [ ] Board Committee  [___] External
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Corporate Governance

Corporate Governance Statement

The Code on Corporale Governance Practices (“the CG
Code”) as promulgated by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited sets out the principles of good corporate governance
and provides two levels of recommendations:

» Code Provisions, with which issuers are expecied to
comply, but may choose 1o deviate from, provided they
give considered reasons for non-compliance

* Recommended Best Practices, with which issuers are
encouraged to comply, but which are provided for
guidance only

Swire Pacific supports the principles-based approach of the
CG Code and the flexibility this provides for the adoption

of corporate policies and procedures in recognition of the
individuality of companies, provided this is clearly explained.
Swire Pacific has adopted its own code on corporate

- governance praclices which is available from the Company
websile www.swirepicific.com. o
Corporate governance does not stand still; it evolves with
each business and its operating environment. Swire Pacific
is always open to learn and adopt best practices. As parl of
its commitment to enhance corporate governance standards
within the region, Swire Pacific is a member of the Asian
Corporate Governance Association.

Swire Pacific has complied throughout the year with all the
Code Provisions of the CG Cade as set out in Appendix 14

to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”}. Additionally
it has considered the Recommended Best Practices and
complied with all of them with the following exceptions which
it believes do not benefit stakeholders:

* Section C1.4 of the CG Caode, recommending the
production of quarterly statements. The Company has
chosen not to comply with this recommended reporting
practice because it is its judgement that, as a matter of
principte and practice, quarterly reports would not bring
net overall benefits to shareholders
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» Section A4.4 of the CG Code recommending the
establishment of 2 nomination commiltee. The Board has
considered the merits of establishing a nomination
committee as recommended but has concluded that it is
in the best interests of the Company and potential new
appointees that the Board collectively reviews and approves
the appointment of any new Director as this allows a more
informed and bittanced decision to be made by both the
poteniial Director and the Board as to suitability for the role

The Board of Directors

Role of the Board

Swire Pacific is governed by a Board of Directors, which has
responsibility for the strategic leadership and control of the
Croup to maximise shareholder value, whilst balancing the
broad range of stakeholder interests. Directors are collectively
responsible for promoting, and are committed to the success
of, Swire Pacific by directing and supervising the Group's
affairs.

Responsibility for delivering Swire Pacific’s objectives and
running the business on a day-to-day basis is delegated to
divisional management. The Board exercises a number of
reserved powers which include :

* maintaining and promoting the culure of the Company
» formulation of long-term strategy

» approving public announcements, including accounts

committing to major acquisitions, divestments and capital
projects

authorising significan changes to the capital structure and
material borrowings

any issue, or buy-back, of equity securities under general

mandate

* approving treasury policy

= setting the dividend policy

* approving appointments to the Board

« ensuring that appropriate management development and
succession plans are in place

« sefting the Group remuneration policy




* approving the annual budget and forccasts
* reviewing operational and financial performance
= reviewing the effectiveness of internal control and risk

ma nagement

To assist in fulfilling its duties, the Board has established two
primary committees, the Audit Committee (see page 62) and
the Remuneration Commitlee (see page 59}.

Chairman and Chiel Executive

The CG Code requires that the roles of Chairman and Chief
Executive be separate and not performed by the same
individual 1o ensure there is clear division of responsibilities
between the running of the Board and the executives who run
the business.

The Chairman is responsible for:

¢ leadership of the Board

» setting its agenda and taking into account any matters
proposed by other Directors for inclusion in the agenda

» facilitating effective contribution and dialogue from all
Directors and constructive relations between them

* ensursing all Directors are properly briefed on issucs arising
at Board meetings and that they receive accurate, timely
and clear information

= obtaining consensus amongst Lhe Directors

» ensuring, through the Board, that good corporate
governance practices and procedures are followed

Each division of the Group has ane or more Executive
Directors or Officers who are responsible for implementing
the policies and strategies set by the Board in order to ensure
the successiul day-to-day management of the Group's
individual businesses (see page 58). Thesc executives are:
K G Kerr {Properties), A N Tyler and | R Slosar (Aviation),

G L Cundle (Beverages), | B Rae-5mith and D Ho (Marine
Services) and H A § Crawford (Trading & Industrial).

Throughout the year there was a clear division of
responsibilities between the Chairman and the above

managemen! executives,

Board Compasition

The Board is structured to ensure it is of a high calibre and
has a balance of key skills and knowledge so that it works
effcctively as a team and precludes individuals or groups from
dominaling decisions.

The Board currently comprises the Chairman, six Executive
Directors, and ten Non-Executive Directors, Their biographical
details are set out on pages 66 and 67 of this report and are
posted on the Company website.

The Board considers that six of the 1en Non-Executive
Dircctors - being one third of the Board - are independent
in character and judgement and fulfil the independence
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 oi the Listing Rules.
Confirmation has heen received {rom 2l Independent Non-
Execulive Directors that they are independent as set oul in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Non-Exccutive Direclors bring independent advice,
judgement and, through consiructive challenge, scrutiny of
executives and review of performance, risks and people. The
Auditl and Remuneralion Commiltees of the Board are made

up only of Non-Execulives.

The Independent Non-Executive Directors:

» provide open and objective challenge of management and
the Board members

* raise intelligent questions and challenge constructively and
with vigour

* bring autside knowledge of ihe businesses and markets in
which we operate, providing informed insight and responses

to management

Although one of the Independent Non-Executive Directors,
C Lee, has served in this capacity for more than nine years,
the Directors are of the opinion 1hat he remains independent,
notwithstanding his icngth of tenure. C Lee continues to
demonstrate the attributes of an Independent Non-Executive
Director noted above and there is no evidence that his
tenure has had any impact on his independence.
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The Board believes his detailed knowledge and expericnce
of the Group’s business and his exlernal experience conlinue
to be of significant benefit to the Company, and that he
maintains an independent view of its affairs.

Appointment and Re-election

Potential new Directors are identified and considered for
appoiniment by the Board. A Director appointed by the
Board is subject 1o election by shareholders at the first annual
general meeting alter his appointment and all Directors are
subject to re-eleclion by shareholders every three years,

Potential new Board members are identified based on
skills and experience that, in the opinion of the Directors,
will enable them to make a positive contribulion (o the
periormance of the Board.

Full details of changes in the Board during the year and to the
date of this report are provided in the Directors’ Report on
page 70.

Responsibilities of Directors

On appointment, the Directors receive information about the

Group including:

* the role of the Board and the matters reserved for its
attention

« the role and terms of Board Committees

» the Group's corporate governance praclices and
procedures

» the powers delegated to management

+ the latest financial information

Directors update their skills, knowledge and familiarity with
the Group through their angoing participation at meetings of
the Board and its committees and through regular meetings
with management at Head Office and in the divisions.
Directors are regularly updated by the Company Secretary on
their lepal and other duties as Directors of a listed company.
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Through the Company Secretary, Directors are able 1o obtain
appropriate professional training or advice should this be
required.

Each Director ensures that he can give sufficient time and
attention 1o the affairs of the Group. All Directors disclose

to the Board on their first appointmenl their interesis as 2
Directar or otherwise in ather companics or organisations and
such declarations of interests are updated regularly.

Details of Direclors’ other appaintments are shown in their
biographies on pages 66 and 67.

Board Processes
All committees of the Board iollow the same processes as the
full Board.

The dates of the 2007 Board meelings were determined in
2006 and any amendments to this schedule were notilied to
Directors at [east 14 days before regular meetings. Suitable
arrangements are in place 1o allow Directors to include items
in the agenda for regular Board meetings.

The Board met six times in 2007. The aitendance of individual
Directors at meetings of the Board and its commiltees is set
out in the table an page 57. Average attendance at Board
meetings was 91%. All Directors attended Board meetings in
person during the year.

Agendas and accompanying Board papers are circulated with
sufficient time to allow the Directors to prepare before the
Board or committee meeting,

The Chairman takes the lead 10 ensure 1hat the Board acls

in the best interests of Swire Pacific, that there is effective
communication with the shareholders and that their views are
communicated to the Board as a whole.

Board decisions are made by vote at Board meetings and
supplemented by the circulation of written resolutions
between Board meetings.




Minutes of Board meetings are taken by the Company
Secretary and, together with any supporting papers, are
available to all Directors. These record the matters considered
by the Board, the decisions reached, and any concerns raised
or dissenting views expressed by Directors. Draft and final
versions of the minutes are sent to all Directors for their

comment and record respectively.

Board meetings are structured to encourage open discussion
and frank debate to ensure Directors actively participate in
each meeting.

A typical Board meeting would consist of:

* review of a report by each Executive Director or Officer
on the results since the last meeting and an explanation of
changes in the business environment and their impact on
budgets and the longer-term plan. New initiatives and ideas
are raised for open discussion

» presentation of papers to support decisions requiring Board
approval
* an update of legal and compliance matters for Directors’

consideration
* any declarations of interes

The execulive management of individual businesses within
the Group provides the Board with such information and
explanations as are necessary to enable Directors to make an
informed assessment of the financial and other information put
beioare the Board. Queries raised by Directors are answered
fully and promptly.

When necessary, the Independent Non-Executive Directors
meet privately to discuss matters which are their specific
responsibility. One such meeting was held in 2007.

The Chairman meets at least annually with the Non-Executive
Directors without the Executive Directors being present,

Meelings Attended/Held
2007
Annual
Audit Remuneration Generg)
Direclors Board Committee Commiitee Meeling
Executive Directors
C D Pratt — Chairman 6/6 .
P N L Chen 5/6 *
M Cubbon 6/6 .
D Ho 6/6 .
K G Kerr 6/6 .
) R Slosar 6/ .
Non-Executive Direclors
The Baroness Qunn 5/6 .
{ W Hughes-Hallett 5/6 .
P A jchansen 6/6 33 33 .
Sir Adrian Swire 4/6 .
Independent Non-Executive Directors
V HC Cheng 36 .
C K M Kwok 6/6 3/3 3 .
Clee 66 3/3 i3 .
M CC Sze 6/6 .
MMT Yang 6/6 .
Average altendance 1% 100% 100% 100%
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Directors’ and Officers’ Insurance
Swire Pacific has arranged appropriate insurance cover in
respect of potential legal actions against its Directors and
Officers.

Conflict of Interest

If a Director has a conflict of interest in relation to a
transaction or proposal lo be considered by the Board, the
individual is required to declare such interest and abstains
from voling. The matter is considered al a Board meeting
attended by Directors who have no material interest in the

Iransaction.

Delegation by the Board

Responsibility for delivering Swire Pacific’s strategies and
objeclives, established by the Board, and running each
business on a day-to-day basis is delegated to management
headed by an Executive Director or Officer. These individuals
have been given clear guidelines and directions as to their
powers and, in particular, the circumstances under which
they should report back to, and obtain prior approval from,
the Board before making any commitments on behalf of Swire
Pacific.

The Board monitors management’s performance against the
achievement of financial and non-financial measures, the
principal measures being:

* monthly review of detailed management accounts consisting
of profit and loss, balance sheets and cash flows compared
to budget and forecast

* the output of both internal and external audit reports

» the occurrence of significant contro! breakdowns

» feedback from external parties such as customers, business
partners, trade associations and other service p}oviders
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Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted a code of conducl {*the Securities
Code”) regarding securities transaclions by Directors and
Officers on terms no less exacting than the required standard
sel out in the Model Code for Securilies Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers contained in Appendix 10 of the
Listing Rules. These rules are available on the Company
website.

A copy of the Securities Code is sent to each Director of

the Company first an his appoiniment and thereafter twice
annually, one month before the date of the Board meetings
to approve the Group’s half-year and annual results, with a
reminder that the Director cannot deal in the securities and
derivatives of the Company until after such results have been
published, and that all their dealings must be conducted in
accordance with the Securities Code.

Under 1he Securities Code, Directors and Senior Executives
of the Company are required to notify the Chairman and
receive a doted written acknowledgement before dealing in
the securities and derivatives of the Company, and, in the
case of the Chairman himself, he must notify the Chairman
of the Audit Committee and receive a dated wrilten
acknowledgement before any dealing.

All the Directors of the Company have confirmed that they
have complied with the required standard set out in the
Securities Code.

Directors’ interests as at 31st December 2007 in the shares
of the Company and its associated corporations {within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance)
are set oul on pages 71 and 72. in addition, of the Executive
Oificers of the Company, H A § Crawford has a family
interest in 4,000 shares in Cathay Pacific Airways Limited, an
associated corporation of the Company, and | B Rae-Smith is
interested personally in 73,066 ordinary shares and 18,821
preference shares of John Swire & Sons Limited, an associated
corporation of the Company, and is also interested as one of
the beneficiaries of trusts which hold 5,000 “A” shares of the
Company and 97,659 ordinary shares and 9,628 preference
shares of John Swire & Sons Limited.




Remuneration Committee
Full details of Directors’ and Executive Officers’ remuneration
are provided in note 8 to the accounts.

The Remuneration Committee comprises three Non-Executive
Directors, two of whom ~ C K M Kwok and C Lee - are
independent Non-Executive Directors. The Committee is
chaired by P A Johansen.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Commitiee have
been reviewed with reference to the CG Code and are posted
on the Company website.

A Services Agreement exists between the Company and
John Swire & Sons (H.K.) Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary
of John Swire & Sons Limited {*Swire™}, which has been
considered in detail and approved by the Independent Non-
Executive Directors of the Company. Under the terms of

this agreemenl, staff at various levels, including Executive
Directors and Officers, are seconded to the Company.

These staff report to and take instructions from the Board of
the Company but remain employees of Swire group. As a
substantial shareholder of Swire Pacific, it is in the best interest
of Swire group to ensure that executives of high quality are
seconded to and retained within the Group.

In order to be able to attract and retain staff of suitable calibre,
Swire group provides a competitive remuneration package
designed to be commensurate, overall, with those of its peer
group. This typically comprises salary, housing, retirement
fund, leave-passage and education allowances and, after three
years' service, a bonus related to the overall profit of Swire, of
which the predominant element is derived from the Group.

Although the remuneration of these executives is not entirely
linked 1o the profits of the business in which they are working,
it is considered that, given the different profitability profiles of
businesses within the Group, this has contributed considerably
to the maintenance of a flexible, motivated and high-calibre
senior management team within the Group.

The Remuneration Commitlee reviewed the structure and
levels of remuneration paid to Execulive Directors and

Officers at its meeting in November 2007, At this meeting

the Committee considered a report prepared for it by

Mercer Human Resource Consulting Limited {“Mercer”),

an independent firm of consultants, which confirmed that

the remuneration of the Company’s Executive Direttors

and Officers, as disclosed in note 8 10 the accounts was
comparable with that paid by international peer group
companies. The Committee approved individual remuneration
packages to be paid in respect of 2008.

No Director takes part in any discussion about his or her own

remuneration.

The Committee also compared the fees payable to the
Independent Non-Executive Directors with those of a sample
of comparable international companies. The Commitiee
endorsed a recommendation by management to increase the
fees payable to the Independent Non-Executive Directors to
HK$600,000 per annum in recognition of the responsibilities
and time required 1o fulfil their role. On the Committee’s
recommendation, the Board approved the following fee levels:

2007 2008
Fee HKS$ HK$
Director’s Fee 200,000 600,000
Fee for Audit
Committee Chairman 200,000 200,000
Fee for Audit
Commitiee Member 150,000 150,000
Fee for Remuneration
Committee Chairman 65,000 65,000
Fee for Remuneration
Committee Member 50,000 50,000

Accountability and Audit

Financial Reporting

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for:

* the proper stewardship of the Company's affairs, to ensure
the integrily of financial information

* preparing annual and interim accounts and other related
information that give a true and fair view of the Group's
affairs and of the resulis and cash flows for the period, in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
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* selecting appropriate accounting policies and ensuring that
these are consistently applied

* making judgements and estimales that are prudent and
reasonable

« ensuring that the application of the going concern
assumplion is appropriate

Internal Contraols

The Board acknowledges its responsibilily 1o establish,
maintain and review the effectiveness of the Group's system
of imernal controls to ensure that shareholders’ investments
and the Company's assets are safeguarded. This responsibility
is primarily fulfilfed on its behalf by the Audit Committee as
discussed on pages 62 and 63.

The foundation of a strong system of internal control is a solid
control environment. This is dependent on the ethics and
culture of the organisation, the quality and competence of

its personnel, the direction provided by the Board, and the
effectiveness of management.

Since profits are, in part, the reward for successful risk taking

in business, the purpose of internal controls is to help manage
and control, rather than eliminate, risk. Consequently internal
controls can only provide reasonable, and not absolute,

assurance against misstatement or loss.

The key components of the Group’s control siructure are as
follows:

Culture: The Board believes that pood governance is
fundamentally about the culture of an organisation. This is
more significant than any writien procedures.

Swire Pacific aims at all times to ac| ethically and with
integrity and to instil this behaviour in all its employees by
example from the Board down. Training courses on the Code
of Conduct are provided to emphasise its imporiance across
the Group.

Swire Pacific is committed to developing and maintaining

high professional and cthical standards. These are reflected

in the rigorous selection process and career development
plans for all employees. The organisation prides itself on being
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a long-term emplover which instils in individuals, as they
progress through the Group, a thorough understanding of the
Company’s philosaphy.

Channels of communication are clearly established, allowing
employees a means of communicating their views upstream
with a willingness un the part of maere senior personnel 1o
listen, Employees are aware that, whenever the unexpected
occurs, attention should be given not only to the event itself,
but also lo determining the cause.

Through our Code of Conduct employees are encouraged and
instructed on how to report control deficiencies or suspicion
of impropriety to those who are in a position to take necessary

action,

Risk Assessment: The Board of Directors and management
each have responsibility to identify and analyse the risks
underlying the achievement of business objectives, and to
determine a basis for how such risks should be managed and
mitigated.

There are two key management committees which monitor risk
processes throughout the Group; the Group Risk Management
Committee (*“GRMC") and the Finance Commitiee. These are
primarily made up of senior management and both are chaired
by the Group Finance Director who reports to the Board on
matters of significance that arise.

The GRMC, discuzsed further on pages 61 and 62, focuses on
business, operational safety, security and reputational risks,
The Finance Committee, discussed further on page 62, focuses
on broad financial and treasury risks.

Management structure: The Group has a clear organisational
structure that, to (he extenl required, defegates authority

to manage the day-to-day responsibility for the design,
documentation and implementation of procedures and
ongoing maonitoring of risk. Individuals appreciate where they
will be held accountable in this process.

A Control Self Asszssment process requires management in
each materia business unit to assess, through use of detailed
questionnaires, the adequacy and effectiveness of controls




over the reliabiiity of financial reporting, the effectiveness and
efficiency of operations, and compliance with applicable laws
and regulations, This process and its results are reviewed by
Internal Audit and form part of the Audit Committee's annual
assessment of control effectiveness.

Controls and Review: The control environment comprises a
diverse range of policies and procedures that help to ensure
that the relevant management directives are carried out and
any actions Ihat may be needed to address risks are taken.
These may include approvals and verifications, reviews,
safeguarding of assets and segregation of duties. Contro!
activities can be divided into operations, financial reporting
and compliance, although there may, on occasions, be
some overlap between them. The common control activities
adopted by the Group are the following:

+ analytical reviews: for example, conducting reviews of
actual performance versus budgets, forecasts, prior pertods
and competitors

+ direct functional or activity management: reviews of
performance reports, conducted by managers in charge of
functions or activities

= information-processing: performing a varicty of controls
to check accuracy, completeness and authorisation of
transactions, for example, exception reporls

» physical controls: ensuring equipmenl, inventories,
securities and other assets are safeguarded and subjected lo
periodic checks

» performance indicators: carrying out analyses of different
sels of dala, operational and financial, examining the
relationships between them, and taking corrective action
where necessary. By investigating unexpecied results or
unusual trends, management can identify circumstances
where the underlying objectives are in danger of not being
achieved

segregation of duties: dividing and segregaling duties
amongst different people, to strengthen checks and
minimise the risk of errors and abuse

Swire Pacific has in place effective processes and systems

to identify, capture and report operational, financial and
compliance-related information in a form and time-frame that
enables the Company to ensure staiff carry out their designated
responsibilitics.

Internal Audit: Independent of management, the Internal
Audit function reports directly to the Chairman and performs
regular reviews of key risk areas, and monitars compliance
with Group accounting and financial procedures. The role of
Internal Audit is discussed further on pages 63 and 64,

Group Risk Management Committee

The Group Risk Management Committee coordinates the
proper application of operational risk management procedures
throughoul the Group.

The Commitiee focuses on business, operational, safety,

security and reputational risks,

This Committee is chaired by the Group Finance Director and
includes senior representatives from each operating division
as well as the Group Risk Manager, Staff Director and Head of
Internal Audit.

Two specialist sub-committees focus on insurance matters
and loss prevention initiatives. The Insurance sub-commitiee
is chaired hy the Group Finance Director. and it reviews

and approves the Group's general insurance programmes.
The Loss Prevention sub-committee is chaired by the Head

of Corporate Safety, Cathay Pacific Airways Limited and its
main focus is 1o promoie effective loss prevention through the
sharing of divisional bes! practices and regular reviews of the
root causes of losses. The same sub-committee also oversees
risk surveys conducted by third parties and closely monitors
the implementation of risk mitigation recommendations
derived from such surveys. Both sub-commitiees work closely
with the Group’s risk management consullants and with the
Group’s lead insurers and reinsurers.

In 2007, the Committee and its sub-committees met three
times.
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Objectives

The Committee’s aim is to continually strengthen the risk
management culiure throughout the Group, by overseeing
the development of risk management processes, identifying
and sharing divisional best practices, moniloring divisional
performance, and using Group leverage to reduce the overall
cost of risk.

During the year the key activities of the Committce were:

* reviewing the Group's exposure 10 exlreme weather events
and natural catastrophes, including the completion of a
study on the potential effects of a catastrophic typhoon or
earthquake in Hong Kong

considering the long-term risks of climate change and their
potential impact on the Group’s businesses

* approving a Group policy on Cccupalional Health and
Safety and plans for its implementation during 2008

arcanging 25 risk surveys at various locations in Hong Kong,
Mainland China and the United States, with a focus on

key operational risk exposures including employee safety,
property, genesal liability, motor and legal risk management

conducting a project to determine the root causes of
workplace injuries in order to identify effective long-term
prevention measures

broadening the range of companies and scope of risks
covered under the Group’s China insurance programme in
line with business expansion in Mainland China

Finance Committee

The Finance Committee consists of the Group Finance
Director, four Divisional Finance Directors, the General
Manager Corporate Finance, the Treasurer and the Group
Finance Manager. It meets quarterly and in addition as specific
maiters arise, for example on issuing new debt securities.

Objective

lts aim is 1o develop the Group’s financial risk management
policies and procedures which are implemented by the
Company’s Treasury department. The Group’s approach to
financial risk is discussed on pages 46 and 47,

62 Swire Pacific

Audit Committee

The Audit Committie, consisting of three Non-Executive
Directors, C K M Kwok, C Lee and P A Johansen, assists the
Board in discharginy its responsibilities for corporate governance
and financiat reporting. Two of the Committec are independent
Directars, one of whom, C K M Kwok, is Chairman. All the
members served for the whole of 2007,

The terms of reference of the Audit Commirtee foilow the
guidefines sel out by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, and comply with the CG Code and are
available on the Company website.

The Audit Committee met three times in 2007. Regular
attendees at the Audit Committee meetings are the Group
Finance Director, the Head of Internal Audit and the external
auditors. The Commiltee meets regularly with the external
auditors without the presence of Company management.

Each meeting receives writlen reports from the Group Risk
Management Commiltee, external and internal auditors. Other
attendees during ihe year included the independent property
valuers and the Group Finance Manager.

The work of the Committee during 2007 included review of

the following matters:

+ Ihe completeness, accuracy and integrity of formal
announcements elating to the Group's performance
including the 2006 annual and 2007 interim accounts and
announcements, with recommendations to the Board for

approval

the Group’s compliance with regulatory and statutory
requirements

« the Group’s internal controls and risk management systems
and its compliance with the CG Code

the Group's risk managemeni processes
« the approval of the 2008 annual Internal Audit programme
and review of progress on the 2007 programme

periodic reparts from Internal Audit and progress in
resolving any matters identified therein

significant accounting and audit issues




* the submission made by the Company in response to the * internal and exiernal audit plans

consulitation paper issued by The Stock Exchange of Hong » significant issues arising from internal and external audit
Kong Limited an periodic financial reporting reports
+ the Company's policy regarding connected party * the resulls of management’s Control Self Assessment
transactions and 1he nature of such transactions exercise
* overseeing and managing the relationship with external
auditors as discussed on page 64 As a result of the above review, the Board confirms that the
Croup’s internal control systems are adequate and effective
In 2008, the Commiltee has reviewed, and recommended to and have complied with the CG Code provisions on internal
the Board for approval, the 2007 accounts. control throughout the year and to the date of this annual
reporl,

Assessing the Effectiveness of Internal Controls

On behalf of the Board, the Audit Committee reviews annually lnternal Audit Department

the continued effectiveness of the Group’s assessment of risk Swire Pacific has had an Internal Audit (1A) department in

and systems of internal conltrols over financial accounting and place far many years which plays a critical role in monitoring
reporting, the effectiveness and efficiency of operations, and the governance of the Group. The department is stafied by 11
compliance with laws and regulations. qualified audit professionals and conducts audits of the Group

. . and certain associates.
This assessment considers

* the scope and quality of management’s ongoing monitoring 14 has primary reporting lines to the Chairman of the Board
of risks and of the systems of internal control, the work of its 5.4 Without the need to consult with management, to

Internal Audil functian, and the assurances provided by the 10 Chairman of the Audit Commitiee and via him to the

Group Finance Director Board. |A has unrestricted access 1o all areas of the Group’s
* the changes in the nature and extent of significant risks since  pyginess units, assets, records and personnel in the course of
the previous review and the Group's ability to respond to conducting its work.
changes in ils business and external environment
* the extent and {requency with which the results of The annual tA work plan and resources are reviewed and
monftoring are comemunicated, enabling the Commitiee 1o agreed with the Audit Committee.
build up a cumulative assessment of the state of control in
the Group and the elfectiveness with which risk is being Scope of Work
managed Business unit audits are designed to provide assurance that
* the incidence of any significant control failings or the internal control systems of Swire Pacific are designed
weaknesses that have been identified at any time during and operating effectively, and that the risks associated with
the period and the extent to which they have resulted in the achievement of husiness objectives are being managed

unforeseen oulcomes or contingencies that have had, could properly.
have had, or may in the future have, a material impact on

the Company’s financial performance or condition The frequency of each audit is determined by IA using its
* the effecliveness of the Company’s precesses in relation to own risk assessment methodology, considering such factors
financial reporting and statutory and regulatory compliance as recognised risks, overall materiality of each unit, previous
* areas of risk identified by management IA results, external auditors’” comments, organisational
* significant risks reported by the Internal Audit Department change, output from the work of the Group Risk Management

and the Group Risk Management Committee
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Commitiee and management’s view. In any event each
business would typically be audiled at least every three years.
Acquired businesses would normally be audited within six
months. 30 assignments were conducted in 2007,

IA specifically assists the Audit Commitiee in assessing the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal controls thraugh its
review of the process by which management has completed
the annual Control Sell Assessment and the results thereof.

The department also conducts ad hoc projects and
invesligative work as may be required by management or the
Audit Committee,

Audit Conclusion and Response

Copies of 1A reports are sent to the Chairman, the Group
Finance Director and the external auditors. The results of each
review are also presented to the Audit Commitiee,

management is called upon to present action plans which are
agreed in response to 1A's recommendations and these are
followed up to ensure that they are satisfactorily resolved.

External Auditors

The Audit Committee acts as a point of comacy, independent
from management, with the external auditors {the "auditors”).
The auditors have direct access to the Chairman of the Audit
Commitlee, wha meets with them periedically withoul
management present.

The Audit Committee’s duties in regard to the auditors include

* recommending to the Board, for the approva! by
shareholders, the auditors’ appointment

+ appraval of the auditors” terms of engagement

* consideration of the letter of representation provided by the
Board to the auditors

64 Swire Pacific

review of reports and other ad-hoc papers from the auditors

annual appraisal of the quality and effectiveness of the
auditors

assessment of the auditors’ independence and objectivity,
including the monitoring of non-audit services provided to
ensure their independence and objectivity would not be, or
be seen to be, compromised

« approval of audit and non-audit fees

Auditors’ Independence

Independence of the auditors is of critical importance to

the Audit Committee, Board and stakeholders. The Audit
Committee assesses the independence of the audilors through
a series of questions, including seeking confirmation of any
matters knawn by the auditors which may impinge on this and
obiaining confirmation that their proposed audit fee provides
them with what they consider a fair return for this service,
irrespective of any addilional work that they may provide. The
Board also receives from the auditors, in accordance with their
professional ethics, formal confirmation that they consider
themselves 1o he independent of Swire Pacific.

Provision of Non-audit Services

In deciding whether the auditors should provide non-audit

services, the following key principles are considered:

» the auditors should not audit their own firm’s work |
= the audilors should not make management decisions

¢ the auditors’ independence should nol be impaired |

* quality of service

In addition, any services which may be considered (o be in |
conflict with the role of the auditors must be submitted to the
Audit Commillee for approval prior to engagement, regardless

of the amounts involved.

Fees paid to the auditors are disclosed in note 6 to the

accounts.




Shareholders

Communication with Shareholders and Investors

The Board and Senior Management recognise their
responsibility to represent the interests of all shareholders
and to maximise shareholder value. Communication with
shareholders and accountability to shareholders is a high
priority of the Company.

The principal methods we use to communicate with our

shareholders include the following:

= the Group Finance Director makes himself available on
a day-to-day basis for contact with major shareholders,
investors and analysts aver a one month period immediately
after the announcement of the interim and annual results.
In 2007 he held 12 meetings with analysts and investors in
Hong Kong, conducted three analyst briefings, two investor
group briefings, six overseas roadshows, spoke al ene
investor conference, and was interviewed by Bloomberg
and CNBC on two occasions.

* through publication of annual and interim reports

¢ through our AGM as discussed helow

* through the Company website. This includes electranic
copies of financial reports, webcasts of analysts
presentations given at the time of the final and interim
results announcements, latest news, public announcements
and general information about the Group's businesses.

during the current year we have continued, as part of our
stakeholder dialogue exercise, to conduct interviews with
shareholders and the investment community with a view to
better understand their views and concerns

The Annual General Meeling

The Annual General Meeting is an important forum in which
to engage with shareholders. The most recent Annual Ceneral
Meeting was held on 10th May 2007. The meeting was open
to all shareholders and members of the press. The Directors
who attended the meeting are detailed in the table on page 57.

At the Annual General Meeting, separate resolutions were

proposed for each issue and were voled on by poll.

The agenda items were,

* receiving the report of the Directors and the audited
accounts for the year ended 31st December 2006

declaration of final dividends

re-electing Directors
re-appointing the auditors and authorising the Directors to

set their remuneration

a general mandate authorising the Directors to make on-
market share repurchases

+ a general mandate authorising the Directors to allot and
issue shares up to 20% of the then issued share capital,
provided that the aggregate nominal amount of the shares
of any class so allotied wholly for cash shall not exceed 5%
of the aggregate nominal amount of the share class then in
issue

« approval of Directors’ fees

Minutes of the meeting together with voting results are
available on the Company website.

Other Information for Shareholders
Key shareholder dates for 2008 are set out on the inside back
cover of this report and on the Company website.

A list of analysts known to cover Swire Pacific is available
from the Company website. This should not be considered an
endorsement of the work or recommendation of these firms’

work and reports.

From information publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of its Directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total issued share capital is hetd by the public at
all times. Details of the shareholder profile of the Company
are in the Directors’ Report on pages 72 and 73.

2007 Annual Report 65




Directors and Officers

Executive Directors

* Pratt, Christopher Dale, CBE, aged 51, has been Director
and Chairman of the Company since February 2006. He
is also Chairman of Cathay Pacific Airways Limited, Hong
Kong Aircrait Engineering Company Limited and John
Swire & Sons (H.K.) Limited, and a Director of Air China
Limited, Swire Properties Limited and The Hongkong and
Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited. He joined the
Swire group in 1978 and has worked with the group in
Hong Kong, Australia and Papua New Guinea.

* Chen, Nan Lok Philip, aged 52, has becn a Director of 1he
Company since May 2005. He is also Chairman of John
Swire & Sons {China) Limited, Deputy Chairman of Cathay
Pacific Airways Limiled, and a Director of Air China
Limited, Swire Properties Limited and Swire Beverages
Limited. He joined the Swire group in 1977 and in addition
1o Hong Kong has worked with the group in Mainland
China and the Asia Pacific region.

*  Cubbon, Martin, aged 50, has been a Director of the
Company since September 1998 with responsibility
for Group Finance. He is also a Director of Cathay
Pacific Airways Limited, Hong Kong Aircraft Engincering
Company Limited and Swire Properties Limited, and
Chairman of Swire Beverages Limited. He joined the Swire
group in 1986.

* Ho, Cho Ying Davy, aged 60, has been a Director of the
Company since March 1997. He is Chairman of the Swire
group’s Taiwan operations and of a number of Swire group
companles with shipping and travel interests. He is also
a Director of Hong Kong Aircraft Engineering Company
Limited. He joined the Swire group in 1970 and has
worked with the group in Hong Kong and Taiwan.

*  Kerr, Keith Graham, aged 55, has been a Director of the
Company since January 1991, He joined Swire Properties
Limited in 1975 and was appointed Managing Director in
February 1989 and Chairman in January 2005.

* Slosar, John Robert, aged 51, has been a Director of the
b Company since May 2006. He is also a Direcior and Chief
Operating Officer of Cathay Pacific Airways Limiled, and a
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Director of Hong Kong Dragon Airlines Limited. He joined
the Swire group in 1980 and has worked with the group in
Hong Kong, the United States and Thailand.

Tyler, Antony Nigel, aged 52, has been a Director of

the Company since January 2008. He is also a Director
and Chief Executive of Cathay Pacific Airways Limited,
Chairman of Hong Kong Dragon Airlines Limited, and

a Director of Hong Kong Aircraft Engineering Company
Limited. He joined the Swire group in 1977 and has
worked with the group in Hong Kong, Australia, the
Philippines, Canada, Japan, ltaly and the United Kingdom.

Non-Executive Directors

+2

Baroness Dunn, Lydia Selina, DBE, aged 68, has been a
Director of the Company since February 1981 and until
lanuary 1996 had responsibility for the Trading Division.
She is also a director of John Swire & Sons Limited and is
Deputy Chairman of HSBC Holdings plc. She joined the
Swire group in 1963.

Hughes-Hallett, James Wyndham John, 58S, aged 58,
has been a Director of the Company since January 1994
and was appointed Deputy Chairman in March 1998 and
Chairman in june 1999. He stepped down as Chairman
in December 2004 to become Chairman of John Swire

& Sons Limited. Me is also a Director of Cathay Pacific
Airways Limited, Swire Properties Limited and HSBC
Holdings plc. He joined the Swire group in 1976 and has
worked with the group in Hong Kong, Taiwan, Japan and
Australia.

Johansen, Peter André, aped 65, has been a Director

of the Company since January 1983 and was Finance
Director until April 1997. He joined the Swire group

in 1973 and has worked with the group in Hong Kong
and Japan. Me is also a Director of John Swire & Sons
Limited, Swire Properties Limited and Hong Kong Aircraft
Engineering Company Limited.

Swire, Sir Adrian Christopher, aged 76, was Chairman
of lohn Swire & Sons Limited until December 2004 and
is now Honorary President of that company. He joined
the Swire group in 1956 and has been a Director of the
Company since Oclober 1978,




Independent Non-Executive Directors
Freshwater, Timothy George, aged 63, has been a
Director of the Company since lanuary 2008. He is
also Vice Chairman of Goldman Sachs (Asia) L.L.C., a
Non-Executive Director of Chong Hing Bank Limited
and Grosvenor Asset Management Limited, and an
Independent Non-Executive Director of Cosco Pacific
Limited and Aquarius Platinum Limited. He is also a
Director of the Community Chest of Hong Kong and a
member of the Hong Kong Trade Development Council.

+# Kwok, King Man Clement, aged 48, has been a Direclor
of the Company since September 2002. He is also
Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer of The
Hongkong and Shanghai Hotels, Limited. He also serves
on the Takeovers and Mcrgers Panel and the Takeovers
Appeals Committee in Hong Kong, the Securities and
Futures Appeals Tribuna! and as a Director of the
Community Chest of Hong Kong.

+# Lee, Chien, aged 54, has been a Director of the Company
since lanuary 1993. He s also a Director of Hysan
Development Company Limited and an Independemt Non-
Executive Director of Television Broadcasts Limited. He
is a member of the Council of the Chinese University of
Hong Kong and the Hong Kong Institute of Education.

Leung, Margaret, aged 55, has been a Director of the
Company since March 2008. She is also Group General
Manager and Global Co-Head Commercial Banking for
the HSBC Group and a Director of HSBC Investments
(Hong Kong} Limited and Wells Fargo HSBC Trade Bank
NA.

Sze, Cho Cheung Michael, GBS, CBE, 150, aged 62, has
been a Director of the Company since November 2004.
He was a former Executive Director of the Hang Kong
Trade Development Council, a position he held for eight
years prior to his retirement on 1st May 2004. Before that,

Notes:

* These Directors are also Directors of John Swire & Sons (M.K.} Limited
+ These Directors are members of the Audit Cammitiee

# These Dircctors aro members of the Remuneration Commitiee

Sens Limited group.

he worked for 25 years in various capacities in the Hong
Kong Government. He is also a Non-Executive Director of
Lee Kum Kee Co., Lid.

Yang, Mun Tak Marjorie, aged 55, has been a Director

of the Company since October 2002, She is also
Chairman of Esquel Group, and a Director of The
Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporalion Limited

and Novartis AG. She sits on various advisory boards of
educational institutions including Massachusetts Institute
of Technology, Harvard Business School, Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology and Tsinghua School
of Economics and Management.

Executive Officers

Crawford, Hunter Andrew Sjovald, aged 52, has been
Executive Director of the Trading & Industrial Division
since May 2007. He joined the Swire group in 1978 and
has worked with the group in Australia, Hong Kong,
Papua New Guinea, Japan, the Uniled States, the United
Kingdom and Taiwan.

Cundle, Geoffrey Leslie, aged 51, has been Executive
Director of the Beverages Division since July 2007 He
joined the Swire group in 1979 and has worked with the
group in Hong Kong, Australia, Korea, Japan and Papua
New Guinea,

Rae-Smith, John Bruce, aged 44, has been Executive
Director of Swire Pacific Offshore since January 2008. He
joined the Swire group in 1985 and has worked with the
group in Australia, Papua New Guinea, Japan, Taiwan,
Hong Kong, the United States and Singapore.

Secretary

Fu, Yat Hung David, aged 44, has been Company
Secretary since january 2006. He joined the Swire group
in 1988.

All the Directors and Executive Officers, apart (rom Sir Adrian Swire and the Independent Non-Execulive Directors, are employees of the John Swire &
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Directors’ Report

The Direclors submit their reports together with the audited accounts for the year ended 315t December 2007, which
are set out on pages 84 (o 159.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of Swire Pacific Limited (the “Company”) is investment holding and the principal activities of
its major subsidiary, jointly conltrolled and associated companies are shown on pages 151 to 159. An analysis of the
Group’s performance for the year by business and geographical segments is set out in note 7 to the accounts.

Dividends

The Directors recommend the payment of final dividends for 2007 of HK¢233.0) per ‘A’ share and HK¢46.6 per ‘B’
share which, together with the interim dividends paid on 3rd October 2007 of HK¢90.0 per ‘A’ share and HKq18 per
'B' share, make total dividends for the year of HK¢323.0 per ‘A" share and HK¢64.6 per ‘B’ share: an increase of 14.1%
over those for 2006. This represents a total distribution for the year of HK$4,899 million. Subject to the approvai of
the 2007 final dividends by the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting on 8th May 2008, it is expected that
those dividends will be paid on 3rd June 2008 to shareholders registered on the record date, 8th May 2008. The share
registers will be closed from 5th May 2008 10 8th May 2008, both dates inclusive, during which period no transfer of
shares will be effected. 1n order to qualify for the entillement of the final dividends, all transfer forms accompanied by
the relevant share cerlificates musi be lodged with the Company'’s share registrars, Compulershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, for registration not later than 4:30
p-m. on Friday, 2nd May 2008.

Reserves
Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during the year are set out in note 35 to the accounts.

Share Capital

During the year under review and up to the date of this repori, the Company purchased 14,810,885 ‘A’ shares and no
'8’ shares on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited {the “Stock Exchange”). These purchases were made for the
benefit of the Company and shareholders taking into account relevant factors and circumstances at the time. All the
shares purchased were cancelled. Particulars of shares repurchased during the year under review and details of the
Company's share capital are set out in note 34 to the accounts,

Other than stated above, the Group did not purchase, sell or redeem any of ils shares, and has not adopted any share

option scheme.

Accounting Policies
The principal accounting policies of the Group are set out on pages 141 to 150.

Auditors
PricewaterhouscCoopers retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-
appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditors of the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming Annual

General Meeting.
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Financial Review
A review of the results, balance sheet and cash flow is shown on pages 38 to 45. A ten-year financial summary af the
tesults and net assets of the Group is shown on pages 4 and 5.

Corporate Governance

The Company has complied throughout the year with ali the code provisions and most of the recommended best
practices in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices as set out in the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange. Details of the Company's corporale governance practices are set out on
pages 53 to 65.

Donations
During the year, the Group made donations for charitable purposes of HK$25 million and donations towards vartous
scholarships of HKS1 million.

Fixed Assets
Details of movements in fixed assets are shown in notes 14 and 15 to the accounts. An analysis of capital expenditure
by division is shown in note 7 1o the accounts.

The annual valuation of the Group’s investment property porifolio, whether complete or in the course of
redevelopment, was carried out by professionally qualified external valuers on the basis of open market value at 31st
December 2007 resulting in an increase of HK$19,446 million in their carrying values.

A schedule of the principal properties of the Group and its jointly controiled and associated companies is given on
pages 163 to 173.

Borrowings
Details of the Group’s borrowings are shown in note 31 10 the accounts.

Interest
A statement of the amount of interest capitalised by the Group is included in note 9 to the accounts.

Major Customers and Suppliers
During the year, less than 30% of the Group’s sales and 30% of the Group's purchases were altributable to the
Group's five largest customers and suppliers respectively.
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Directors’ Report

Directors

The Directors of the Company as at the date of this report are listed on pages 66 and &7, all of whom, with the
exception of A N Tyler wha was appainted as an Executive Director on 1st January 2008 and T G Freshwater and
M Leung as Independent Non-Executive Directors respectively on 1st January 2008 and 1st March 2008, served
throughout the calendar year 2007. K G Kers served as Alternate Director to Sir Adrian Swire during the year. In
addition, V H C Cheng served as an Independent Non-Executive Director until he resigned on 315t January 2008.

Independence Confirmation
The Company has received from all of its Independent Non-Executive Directors listed on page 67 confirmation of their
independence pursuant to Listing Rule 3.13 and considers all of them to be independent.

Term of Appointment

Article 93 of the Company's Articles of Assaciation provides for all Directors 1o retire al the third Annual General
Meeting following their election by ordinary resolution. in accordance therewith, M Cubbon, Baroness Dunn, C Lee,
M C C Sze retire this year and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

T G Freshwater, M Leung and A N Tyler, having been appointed to the Board under Article 91 since the last Annual
General Meeting, also retire and offer themselves for election.

Each of the Directors has entered into a letter of appointment, which constitules a service contract, with the
Company for a term of up to three years until retirement under Article 91 or Article 93 of the Articles of Association
of the Company, which will be renewed for a term of three years upon each electionfre-election. No Director has a
service contract with the Company which is not determinable by the employer within one year without payment of

compensation {other than statutory compensation).

Fees and Emoluments
Full details of Directors’ fees and emoluments are set out in nole 8 to the accounts.

Directors’ fees paid to the Independent Non-Executive Directors during the year totalled HK$1,450,000. They received
no other emoluments from the Group.
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Directors’ Interests

At 315t December 2007, the register maintained under Section 352 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO™)
showed that Directors held the following interests in the shares of the Company and its associated corporations {within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), John Swire & Sons Limited, Cathay Pacific Airways Limited and Hong Kong Aircraft

Engineering Company Limited:

Capacity
Beneficial interest
Percenlage
Trust Total no. of issued
Personal Family interest of shares caplial (%} Note
Swire Pacific Limited
‘A’ shares
P N L Chen - 2,000 - 2,000 0.0002 -
P A Johansen 10,000 - 1,500 11,500 0.0013 1
C D Pratt 21,000 - - 21,000 0.0023 -
Sir Adrian Swire - - 794,473 794,473 0.0868 2
'B’ shares
P N1 Chen 65.000 10,142 - 75,142 0.0025 -
D Ho 100,600 - - 100,000 0.0033 -
P A fohansen - - 200,000 200,000 0.0067 1
C Lee 750,000 - 21,605,000 22,355,000 0.7443 |
C D Prant 50,000 - - 50,000 0.007 -
Sir Adrian Swire 4,813,169 - 15,741,913 20,555,082 0.6844 2
Capacity
Beneficial interest
Percentage
Trust Tolal no. of issued
Personal Family interest of shares capital (%) Naote
John Swire & Sons Limited
Ordinary Shares of £1
Baroness Dunn 8,000 - - 8,000 0.01 k]
P A johansen 8,000 - - 8,000 0.01 3
Sir Adrian Swire 2,042,152 2,688,139 24,815,975 29,546,266 29.55
8% Cum. Preference Shares of £1
Baroness Dunn 2,400 - - 2,400 0.01 3
Sir Adrian Swire 799,080 843,411 7,332,727 8,975,218 29.92 4

Beneficial interest

Percentage of issued capital

(persanal) %)
Cathay Pacific Airways Limited
Ordinary Shares
P N L Chen 9,000 0.00023
Beneficial inlerest Percentage of issued capital
(personal) (%}
Hong Kong Aircraft Engineering Company Limited
Ordinary Shares
I R Slosar 6,400 0.0038
M C C Sze 2,800 0.0m7
Noles:

1. All the Swire Pacific Limited "A” and '8’ shares held by these Directors under “Trust inlerest” are held by them as beneliciaries of trusts,
2. All the Swire Pacific Limited 'A’ and B’ shares held by Sir Adrian Swire under *Trust interesi” are held by him as wustee only and he has no beneficial

interest in those shares.

3. Sir Adrian Swire has a residual beneficial interest in 4,000 Ordinary Shares in fjohn Swire & Sons Limited held by cach of Baroness Dunn and P A
lohansen and in 1,200 Preference Shares held by Baroness Dunn. These heldings are therefore duplicated in the personal intesest of Sir Adrian Swiic.

4, Neither Sir Adrian Swire nos his wife, who are trustees of trusts which hold the Ordinary and Preference Shares in John Swire & Sons Limited listed
under "Trust interest”, has any beneficial interest in those shares.
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Other than as stated above, na Director or chief executive of the Company had any interest or short position, whether
beneficial or non-beneficial, in the shares or underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations {within the meaning of Part XV of the SFQ).

Neither during nor prior to the year under review, has any right been granted to, or exercised by, any Director of the
Company, or to or by the spouse or minor child of any Director, to subscribe for shares, warrants or debentures of
the Company.

Al no time during the year did any Director, other than as stated in this report, have a beneficial inlerest, whether
directly or indirectly, in a contract lo which the Company or any of its associated corporations was a party which was

of significance and in which the Director’s interest was material,

Al no time during the year was the Company, or any of its associated corporatinns, a party to any arrangements 1o
enable the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company or any other body corporate.

Directors’ Interests in Competing Businesses
None of the Directors and their respective associates has any competing interests which need to be disclosed pursuant
to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules.

Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Interests
The register of substantial shareholders maintained under Section 336 of the SFO shows the following interests and
short position in the Company's shares as at 31st December 2007:

Percentage Percenlage
of issued of issued
Substantial Shareholders ‘A’ shares capital (%) ‘B’ shares capilal (%) Note
Long position
lohn Swire & Sons Limited 134,248,582 14.66 2,038,165,765 67.86 1
Franklin Resources, Inc. 103,228,390 11.27 - - 2
1.P. Morgan Chase & Company 62,589,289 6.84 - - 3
Commonwealth Bank of Australia 46,139,000 5.04 - - 4
Aberdeen Asset Management plc - - 302,435,044 10.06 5
Percentagn Percentage
of issued of issued
Short position ‘A’ shares capital (%) ‘B’ shares capital (%) Note
I.P. Morgan Chase & Company 14,759,952 1.6 - - 3
Notes:

1. John Swire & Sons Limited is deemed to be interested in a total of 134,248,582 ‘A’ shares and 2,038,165,765 ‘B’ shares ol the Company as at 31s1
December 2007, comptising:
{a) 12,632,302 “‘A’ shares and 37,597,019 ‘B’ shares held directly:
(b} 39,580,280 ‘A" shares and 1,482,779,167 ‘B‘ shares held directly by its wholly owned subsidiary John Swite & Sons {H.K.) Limited; and
(c) the folowing shares held directly by wholly owned subsidiaries of John Swire & Sons (H.K.) Limited: 82,036,000 ‘A’ shares and 95,272,500 '8’
shares held by Elham Limited, 2,055,000 ‘6 shares held hy Canterbury Holdings Limited, 321,240,444 ‘B’ shares held by Shrewshury Holdings
Limited and 99,221,635 '8 shares held by Tai-Koo Limited.
2. This aotiflication was filed under the repeated Securities (Disclosure of Interests) Ordinance and the capacities in which they are held were not given,
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Notes (continued);
3. The shares held by ).P. Morgan Chase & Company are held in the following capacitics:

Capacity No. of shares
Beneficial owner 1,787,594
Invesiment manager 7,500,565
Custodian Corporatien/Lending agent 53,301,130

4. The interest in these sharcs was atiributable 10 controlled corporations of Commonwealth Bank of Australia.
. Aburdeen Asset Management plc is inturesied in these shares in its capacity as investment manager and Includes sharus in which wholly owned
controlled corporations of Aberdeen Assel Managemen plc are inmterested.

Ll

6. These short positions are held in the capacity as beneficial ownes, including:
Categories of derivatives No. of shares
Physically settled unlisted derivatives 1,322,556
Cash setiled unlisied derivatives 13,288,896

Al 315t December 2007, the Swire group owned interests in shares of the Company representing 35.74% of the issued
capital and 55.43% of the voting rights.

Public Float
From information publicly availabie to the Company and within the knowledge of its Directors, at least 25% of the

Company’s total issued share capital was held by the public a1 all times during the periad under review.

Agreements for Services

There are agreements for services (“Agreements”), in respeclt of which John Swire & Sons (H.K.) Limited ("JSSHK"), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of John Swire & Sons Limited {*Swire”), provided to the Company and some of its subsidiary
and associated companies advice and expertise of the Direclors and senior officers of the Swire group, full or part time
services of members of the staff of the Swire group, other administrative and similar services and such other services as

may have been agreed from time to time.

In return for these services, |SSHK received annual fees calculated (A) in the case of the Company, as 2.5% of

the dividends receivable from associated and joinly controlled companies of the Company, where there were no
agreements for services with such companies, and (B} in the case of its subsidiary and associated companies with
such agreements, as 2.5% of their relevant consclidated profits before taxation and minority interests after cerlain
adjustments. The fees for each year were payable in cash in arrears in two instalments; an interim payment by the
end of October and a final payment by the end of April of the following year, adjusted to take account of the interim
payment. The Company also reimbursed the Swire group for all expenses incurred in the provision of the services

al cost.
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The Agreements took effect from st January 2005 and were renewed on 1st October 2007 for a term of three years
from 1st January 2008 to 31st December 2010. However they are renewable for successive periods of three years
thereafter unless either party to them gives to the other notice of termination of not less than three manths expiring on

any 31st December.

The Swire group owned approximately 35.74% of the issued capital of the Company and approximately 55.43% of its
voting rights as at 31st December 2007. )SSHK, as a wholly-owned subsidiary of Swire, is therefore a connected person
of the Company under the Listing Rutes. The transactions under the Agreements are continuing connected transactions

in respect of which announcements dated 1st December 2004 and 1st Octobei 2007 were published.
L

Particulars of the fees paid and the expenses reimbursed for the year ended 31st December 2007 are given in note 40

to the accounts.

As Directors and employees of the Swire group, P N L Chen, M Cubbon, K G Xerr, D Ho, | W | Hughes-Hallet, C D
Pratt, ] R Slosar and A N Tyler are interested in the Agreements. Sir Adrian Swire is interested as a shareholder of Swire.
Baroness Dunn and P A Johansen are also interested in these agreements as shareholders, Directors and employees of

Swire.

The Independent Non-Executive Directors of the Company, who are not interested in any connected transactions with
the Group, have reviewed and confirmed that the conlinuing connected transactions as set out above have been entered
into by the Group in the ordinary and usual course of business, on normal commercial terms, and in accordance with
the relevant agreements governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of

the Company as a whole,

The auditors of the Company have also reviewed these transactions and confirmed to the Board that these transactions
have been approved by the Board of the Company and have been entered into in accordance with the refevant
agreements governing the transactions; and that they have not exceeded the refevant annual caps disclosed in previous

announcements,
On behali of the Board
Christopher Pratt

Chairman
Hong Kong, 6th March 2008
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Sustainable Development

The world is facing a number of increasingly severe
sustainable development challenges, which will
undoubtedly have an impact on the development of the
Group's businesses.

Significant challenges include global warming, pellution,
loss of biodiversity, deforestation, non-sustainable use of
ground water and depletion of non-renewable resources
such as oil.

Global warming is perhaps the most significant problem,
in parl because il exacerbates the other problems, and
is likely to lead to legislative responses that will affect
business.

Besides these environmental challenges, social challenges
are increasing as scarcity of resources affects vulnerable
Broups.

Swire Pacific’s Response

The Group has always worked to be a leader on
environmenal issues and other aspects of corporale social
responsibility. Given the increasingly severe sustainable
development challenges outlined above, the Group
believes it is important to move environmental and social
policy 1o the core of its decision making.

Accordingly, Swire Pacific has adopted a Sustainable
Development Policy, which provides a formal framework
designed to improve the management of relevant issues
previously reported under corporate social responsibility.
This policy is set out an page 81,

Civen the significant differences in the nature of the
Croup's businesses and the environments in which they
operate, the practical application of the policy will vary
considerably between businesses. Subsidiary companies
are required, and joinily controlled entities and associated
companies are encouraged, to develop formal procedures
1o apply the policy in ways which are relevant 1o their
businesses.

Swire Pacific provides policy direction and oversight to the
Group. The oversight is performed hy the Directors who
represent Swire Pacific on the boards of the companies

in which it has an interest and through its Group Risk
Management Committee, whose role has recently heen
expanded to include monitoring the implemeniation of the
Sustainable Development Policy.

The Group believes that effective and responsible
membership of a community, be it on an individual

or corporate basis, must be based on mutual trust and
respect. To engender a better level of understanding
between the Group and the communities it serves, the
Group has begun regular dialogue with stakeholders,
including customers, business partners, staff and
shareholders, and with the wider community. The Group
seeks lo undersiand their need for, expeciations of

and concerns about its services and products, as well

as their expectations as to the Group’s contribution

to the community and its care for the cavirenment.
Understanding what is material 10 its stakeholders and
how 1heir aspirations sit with the Group’s goals and
policies, as well as communicating why it operates as it
does, are important ways of helping establish mutual trust
and respect. Key concerns expressed most recently by
stakeholders include air pollution in Hong Kong, climate
change and the way in which the Group’s philanthropic
efforts are focused.

The Group's major operating companies have for some
years reported externally on their performance on
environmental and other sustainable development issues.
These reports, which can be viewed on the Company
website, are 1o be significantly expanded and upgraded,
in compliance with the Global Reporting initiative
framework, so as to facilitate systematic and consistent
measurement of performance against the Sustainable
Development Policy in 2008 and onwards.
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Artwalks Programme

Swire Properties has made a particular
commitment to enriching the lives of its
customers and the general public through a
stunning collection of international artwork
on permanent public display in its shopping
malls and office buildings. Since 2002, the
company’s free, guided Artwalks Programme
has enabled school groups and members of
the public 1o engage more fully with some of
these pieces.

Hong Kong Philharmonic
Swire Pacific's suppont of the Hong Kong Philharmonic
assists the orchestra to bring world-class music to
people from all walks of life through events such as
free open-air_concerts, 1o foster the careers of talented
young Jucal musicians;-and to raise Hong Kong's
cultural profile on the international stage.




Phoiogiaghiv by Lick Li
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Taikoo Primary School

Swire Pacific believes education provides children |

with the skill{'they need to build a better future for.
themselves. The Taikoo Primary School was established
by Swire in 1923, as a free school for the children-of
employees atthe Taikoo Sugar Refinery and Taikoo
Qockyard; it became a Government-subsidised school

in 1947. Today, the Company still provides a number

of scholarships for students, and has allocated annual
funding for qualified Putonghua and native English-
speaking teachers to enhance siudents’ linguistic abilities,

RN . p ikl .i
Swire International Young Fellows

The Swire Inlernational Young Fellows Programme, launched in 2005 in
partnership with the Hong Kong University of Science and Techaology
("HKUST*), helps promising young studenis to gain an international
outlook and wider perspective on their future careers. Swire Pacific
believes Hong Kong needs to be at the forcfront of the move towards
preater internationalisation to maintain its edge as 2 global business
centre.,




Sustainable Development

The Group will issue its first Sustainable Development
Report in June 2008. It will provide specific detail

on performance targels, actions taken and plans for
the future. This report will be the Group's primary
means of communicating and reporting its sustainable
development activities.

The five main areas covered by the Sustainable
Development Policy are environmeni, health & safety,
employees, business partners and communities.
Highlights of initiatives in each area are set out below
with further details available in individuval company
reports which will be posted on the Company website
by the end of June 2008.

Environment

During 2007 the main focus of work on environmental

matiers was on developing a strategy 1o reduce

greenhouse gas emissions which contribute 10 global
warming and climate change. Imporiant initiatives
include:

* Joining The Climate Group and working with the
Hong Kong Business Environmenm Council to become
part of the solution to the problem. Both these non-
governmental organisations are working to accelerate

change towards a low-carbon economy

« Swire Pacific and its associate, Cathay Pacific,
publicly responding to the Carbon Disclosure Praject
questionnaire giving details of their greenhouse gas
emissions for 2006 and the actions they are taking to

minimise future emissions

Aclion continues to reduce the environmental impact of

business operations in many areas including:

* Swire Properties upgrading air-conditioning systems to
reduce energy consumplion and introducing ‘Digital
Project’ design software to reduce construction waste

+ Swire Pacific Offshore setting up a ship’s bridge
simulator in Singapore 1o allow crew training without
burning marine fuel
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* Swire Beveragas reducing its water consumplion
per litre of finished product and reducing its use of

packaging materials

» Cathay Pacific using improved operating procedures
to reduce fuel burn and wasic material from in-flight
services

s HAECO conducting an energy audit and taking steps to
reduce its consumption of electricity

In 2008, the Group aims to complete the development

of robust metrics for measuring the energy intensity of
each husiness area, so that progress towards a low-carbon
economy can be better managed.

The Group provides its staff and their families the
opportunity to participate in volunteering activities which
promote environmental protection, These include tree
planting and beach cleaning programmes, as well as

field work in the wetlands of the Mai Po Nature Reserve
in Hong Kong. Swire Properties’ Green Ambassadors
programme, with the support of Swire Coca-Cala HK

and Swire SITA, has provided opportunities to educale
students on the impact of pollution and the importance of

conservation.

Health & Safety

Good health and safety practices are an important part
of the Group's commilment 10 ensuring the well-being of
its employees, customers and the general public. In 2007
a Group policy on Occupational Health and Safety was
approved in order to reinforce the commitment thay, in so
far as it is reasonabiy practical, all the Group’s operations
will be carried out in a manner 1hat safeguards the health
and safety of all our stakeholders.

Occupational health and safety programmes are
implemented across Group companies to minimise
hazards in the workplace in order to prevent accidents,
injury and occupational disease. Qualified stafi coordinate
seminars and training programmes that address key health
and safety issues. In addition, the Group’s injury reporting
system ensures that there is a rapid and effective response




procedure in place in the event of staff injuries in the
workplace. Regrettably, in 2007, there were two work
related fatalities within the workforce, both of which
occurred in traffic accidents.

Employees

The Group actively consults siaff on a variety of issues to
ensure that they are committed to and share the values
of the Company. It is an equal opportunities employer
and offers staff competitive remuneration and benefit
packages, fosters their career development, provides
them with safe and healthy workplaces, promotes ethnic
diversity and encourages them to enjoy an appropriate
work-life balance.

Studies were carried out during the year on work-life
balance covering three major areas: health {mental and
physical), community involvernent and personal goals,
and work time and family support. To offer its staff more
choices in balancing their professional and private lives,
the Group is considering initiatives such as flexible
medical benefits, extending the scope of annual medical
check-ups and granting leave for corporate volunteering
programmes.

The Group uses an intranet to advise its 24,000 s1aff
from subsidiaries and jointly controlled and associated
companies in Hong Kong of corporate developments
such as annual and interim results anncuncements, and
major invesiments. The intranet also serves as a channel
to engage staff on social issues, and offers free concert
tickets and DVDs on environmental and culiural activities
it supports. It has a chatroom with guaranteed anonymity

to promote two-way communication.

For communication with overseas and Mainland China
staff, there is a quarterly corporate newsletter “Swire
News” in both English and simplified Chinese.

Towards the end of 2007, the Group launched a quarterly
Chinese newspaper for stafi to share their volunteering
experience outside of corporate sponsorship, in order

to encourage more staff to participate in community

actlivities.

Business Partners

Major operating companies have set up a Supply Chain
Task Force to review actions which can be taken to
molivale their suppliers 1o follow best practice on issues
such as workplace rights, health and safety and the

environment.

Specific actions in the year include Cathay Pacific
conducting a survey of over 750 suppliers on corporate
social responsibility issues and Swire Beverages

setting ‘supplier guiding principles on corporate social
responsibility’ and requiring suppliers to have their
compliance with these principles verified by a third party.
Further initiatives will be undertaken to enable improved

assessment and monitoring of supplier performance.

Communities

The Group reaches out to the communities in which it
operates through dialogue with stakeholders and through
its staff serving on non-governmental organisalions and

charities which benefit the community

Through The Swire Group Charitable Trust {(Swire Trust)
of which Swire Pacific is a major contributor, the Group
also has a philanthropic programme which supports the
communities in which it operates, focusing on education,
the environment and the arts and culture. It encourages
an interactive relationship with organisations that
benefit financially from its sponsarship. This relationship
ranges from staff volunteering to provide their time and
professional expertise, to corporate funding of open-air
concerts so that the community at large can enjoy great
orchestral music free of charge.

The Group believes that educalion is the foundation of

a civilised and harmonious society, morally as well as
materially enriching the community, and providing its
children with the tools to build a better future for all.
Through scholarships, malerial support to faculties, and
the work of its staff on various school boards, the Group
seeks to make a difference in this area. Of specific interest
are educational initiatives that seek 1o study and protect
the environment,
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Swire Institute of Marine
Ve . 0
Science
Through the Swire Trusy, the Company has
pravided-major funding for the University of
_ Hiing Kong's Swire Institute of Marine Science
- {*SWIMS*), established in 1990. An internationally
. renowned research centre, SWIMS focuses on the
¢} marine biodiversity of the South China Sea and
lonks specifically at ways to manage and conscrve
. tha region’s coastal ecology and marine resources.
+ This underlines Swire Pacific’s commitment to -
supporting iniliatives that seek 1o find ways to
reduce impact on the earth’s ecosystems to a i
sustainable level. |

—_—
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Landfill Gas Utilisation Project

Swire SITA subsidiary Far Eastern Landfill Technologies, which runs
the North East New Territories (“NENT”) Landfill, operates a landfill
gas {"LFG"} treatment plant o transmit surplus LFG - principally
methane - to Jocal gas supplier, Towngas. In what is one of the
largest green energy recovery and reuse programmes in the world,
this iniliative will reduce the emission of carbon dioxide into the
atmosphere by an estimated 135,000 metric tonnes annually, as well
as helping to conserve fossil fuels.

Iy
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The Group has made a commitment to sponsoring arts
and culture, believing that in this way it can touch

the lives of diverse members of the community, From
international art permanently on public display in its
buildings, to involvement with Arts with the Disabled and

ShakespearedAll and its major sponsorship of the Hong
Kong Philharmonic Orchestra, the aim is to culturally
enrich the community that has helped the Group to grow
and prosper.

SWIRE PACIFIC SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT POLICY

We adopt this policy because:

¢ Long-term value creation for our shareholders depends

on the sustainable development of our businesses and
the communities in which we operale

* We wish to excel as corporate citizens

Our policy:
* Industry leadership: We will work with others 10
promole sustainable development in the industries in

which we operate

+ In our operations: We will meel or exceed all legal

requirements and:

- Be a good steward of the natural resources and
biodiversity under our influence and ensure tha
all potential adverse impacis of our operations on
the enviranment are identified and appropriately
managed

- Operale as far as is reasonably practicable in a
manner which safeguards the health and safety of all
our stakcholders

~ Strive to be an employer of choice by providing
an environment in which all employees are treated
fairly and with respect and can realise their full

potential

- Favour suppliers and contractors who promole
sustainable development and encourage the
responsible use of our products and services by our
customers and consumers

- Promote good relationships with the communities of
which we are a part and enhance their capabilities
while respecting people’s culture and heritage

Making it happen:

* All companies in which Swire Pacific has a controlling
interest will have action plans for applying this policy
in a way which is relevant to their businesses. We
will encourage other companies in which we have an
interest as a shareholder or through our supply chain
to implement similar policies

We will encourage and empower our staff to be
proactive on sustainable developmeni matiers both at
work and in the community

We will monitor our performance and report regularly

L]

We will review this policy periodically, having regard
in particular o stakeholder dialogue

Aboul \he photographer

lack Li is a hearing-impaired artist registered with the Aris with the
Disahled Assoclation Hong Knnp. He has recently won the Gold

Award for Photography at the 7th International Abilympics held in Japan.
“Abilympics” is coined from the words "abiliiies and Clympics” and

the event secks to *realise a society where people with and withow
disahilities can enjoy equal rights and opportunitivs®,
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the sharehalders of Swire Pacific Limited
{incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the accounts of Swire Pacific Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (1ogether, the “Group”) set
out on pages B4 to 159, which comprise the consolidated and Company balance sheets as at 31st December 2007, and
the consolidated prolit and loss account, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash

flow stalement for the ycar then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatary notes,

Directors’ Responsibility for the Accounts

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the true and fair presentation of these accounts
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Xong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing, implementing and
maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair presentation of accounts that are free
from material misstalement, whether due to froud or errar; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and

making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these accounts based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institule of
Certified Public Accountants, Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the accounts are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence aboul the amounts and disclosures in the accounts.
The procedures selecied depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the accounts, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the audilor considers
internal cantrol relevant to the entity's preparation and true and fair presentation of the accounts in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, bul not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Direclors, as well as evaluating the overall

presentation of the accounts,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion,

Opinion

In our opinion, the accounts give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as al
31st December 2007 and of the Group’s profit and cash ilows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Centified Public Accountants
Hang Kong, 61h March 2008
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Consolidated Profit and Loss Account

For the year ended 31st December 2007

2007 2006
Note HKSM HKSM
Turnover 4 21,553 19,111
Cost of sales (11,479) (10,685)
Gross profit 10,074 8,426
Distribution costs (2,687) (2,318}
Administralive expenses (1,346) (1,133)
Other operating expenses (262) (2035)
Other net gains 5 1,354 1,698
Change in fair value of investment properties 19,446 17,045
Operating profit 26,579 23,513
Finance charges (5%0) €17}
Finance income 97 13
Net finance charges 9 (493) {504}
Share of profits less losses of joinily controlled companies 621 694
Share of profits less losses of associated companies 3,684 2,646
Profit before taxation 30,391 26,349
Taxation 10 4,004 3,582
Profit for the year 26,387 22,767
Attributable 10:
The Campany’s shareholders 11, 35 26,260 22,566
Minarity interests i6 127 201
26,387 22,767
Dividends
Interim - paid 1,366 965
Final — proposed/paid 3,533 3,356
12 4,899 4,321
HK$ HK$
Earnings per share for profit attributable to the Company's 13
shareholders {basic and diluted)
‘A’ shares 17.26 14.74
‘B’ shares 3.45 2,95

The noles on pages BY 1o 140 and the principal accounting policies an pages 141 to 150 form past of these accounts.

84 Swire Pacific




Consolidated Balance Sheet

Al 315t December 2007

2007 2006
Note HK$M HKIM
{Restated)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 14 16,762 8,869
Investment properties 15 128,109 104,368
Leasehold land and land use rights 16 2,349 1,084
Intangible assets 17 860 843
Jaintly controlled companies 19 5,761 5,195
Associated companies 20 23,224 20,855
Availahle-for-sate investmenis 22 365 168
Long-term receivables 7 10
Long-term securily deposits N 553 339
Derivative financial instruments 23 37 26
Deferred expenditure 38 46
‘Deferred tax assets 3z 148 159
Retirement henelit assels 33 181 187
178,394 142,149
Current assets
Properties far sale 24 2,413 1,218
Stocks and work in progress 25 1,575 1,394
Trade and other receivables 26 3,053 2,536
Derivative financial instruments 23 15 5
Bank balances and short-term depasits 27 3,981 1,859
11,037 7,012
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 28 7,423 5.166
Provisions 29 ] 45
Taxation payable 278 177
Derivative financial instruments 2] - 10
Bank overdrafts and short-term loans 3 4,078 803
Long-lterm loans and bonds due within one year 3 170 777
11,957 6,978
Net current (liabilities)/assets (920} 34
Total assets less current liabilities 177,474 142,183
Non-current liabilities
Perpetual capital securities 30 2,340 2,330
Long-term loans and bonds k]| 20,486 10,271
Derivalive financia) instruments 23 45 B9
Deferred tax liabilities 32 17,748 14,268
Deferred income - 36
Retirement benelit liabilities 33 177 165
40,796 27,159
NET ASSETS 136,678 115,024
EQUITY
Share capital 34 910 919
Reserves 35 134,607 113,495
Equity attributable 1o the Company’s shareholders 135,517 114,414
Minority interests 36 1,161 610
TOTAL EQUITY 136,678 115,024

Christopher D Pratt
Clement K M Kwok
Directors

Hong Kong, 6th March 2008 .

The notes on pages 89 1o 140 and the principal accounling policies on pages 141 to 150 form pari of these accounts.
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Company Balance Sheet

At 31st December 2007

TOTAL EQUITY

2007 2006
Note HK$M HKSM
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 14 3 1
Investment properties 15 1,274 374
Subsidiary companies 18 14,459 16,198
' Jointly controlled companies 19 124 253
Associated companies 20 1,877 1,850
‘ Available-for-sale investments 22 83 29
Long-term receivables 1 1
Retirement benefit assets 33 103 98
17,924 18,804
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 26 239 139
Bank balances and shorl-term deposits 27 6 4
245 143
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 28 2,341 1,745
Taxation payable 1 2
2,342 1,747
Net current liabililies (2,097) (1,604)
Total assels less current liabilities 15,827 17,200
Non-current liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities 32 62 64
NET ASSETS 15,765 17,136
EQUITY
Equity attributable 1o the Company’s shareholders
Share capital 34 910 919
Reserves 35 14,855 16,217
15,765 17,136

Christopher D Pralt

Clement K M Kwok
Directors
Hong Kung, 6th March 2008

The noles on pages B to 140 and the principal accounting policics an pages 141 10 150 form part of these accounts.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

For the year ended 31st December 2007

2007 20006
Note HKSM HK$M
Operating activities
Cash generated from operations 41{a) 5,860 5.748
Interest paid (942) (826)
Interest received 95 114
Profits tax paid {428) (660)
4,605 4,376
Dividends received from jointly controlled and associated companies 1,991 2,448
Net cash from operating activilies 6,596 6,824
Invesling activities
Purchase of property, plam and equipment 41(b} {7,907) (1,671)
Additions of investment properties (4,876) {1,834)
Proceeds from disposals of property, plant and equipment 261 173
Proceeds from disposals of available-for-sale investments - 399
Purchase of available-for-sale invesiments (37) {18)
Proceeds from investment properties disposals 283 377
Purchase of shareholdings in subsidiary companies - (6,759)
Purchase of sharcholdings in jointly controlled companies 2) {567)
Loans to jointly controlled companies (1,042) {800)
Purchase of sharcholdings in associated companies (27} (40)
Loans to associated companies (3} (47)
Purchase of intangible asscts (20) (9
Sale of shareholdings in jointly controlled companies 1,471 -
Repayment of loans from joinily controlled companies 27 133
Sale of shareholdings in associated companies - 677
Repayment of loans from associated companies 128 81
Deferred expenditure incurred (20 {83)
Net cash used in investing aclivities (11,520) {9,988)
Net cash outflow before financing (4,924) {3,164)
| Financing activities
Loans drawn and refinancing 14,374 10,311
Repayment of loans and bonds (1,559) {1,325)
Repayment of perpetual capital securities - {2,336)
41{c) 12,815 6,650
Capital contribution movement of minority interests 41(c) 484 2)
Repurchase of the Company’s shares 34 (1,296) -
Security deposits placed 41(c) (426) (424)
Security deposits uplifted 41(c) 128 43
Dividends paid 1o the Company’s shareholders 35 (4,722) {3,200)
Dividends paid 10 minority inlerests 41(c) (104) {107)
Net cash generated from financing activities 6,879 2,960
Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1,955 204)
Cash and cash equivalents at st January 1,682 1,877
Currency adjustment 1 9
Cash and cash equivalents at 31st December 3,648 1,682
Represented by:
Bank balances and shori-term deposits maturing within three months 27 3,684 1,687
Bank averdrafis (36) (5)
3,648 1,682

[ The notes on pages B9 0 140 and the principal accounting palicies on pages 141 tu 150 form part of these accounts.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31st December 2007

2007 2006
Note HK$M HKSM
{Restated)
Al 15t January
- as originally stated 115,091 100,772
- prior year adjustment (67) -
- as restated 115,024 100,772
Changes in cash flow hedges
~ recognised during the year 35 102 (60)
- deferred tax recognised 32, 38 (12) 15
- transferred 1o net finance charges 9, 35 (29) {8}
- transferred to initial cost of non-financial assets 35 {6) 13
Net fair value gains on available-for-sale investments
- recognised during the year 35, 36 160 (4)
~ transferred to profit and loss account upon disposal 35 - 122)
Share of reserves in jointly controlled and associated companies 35 N 272
Translation differences 35, 36 469 100
Others - 4
Net income recognised directly in equity 905 210
Profit for the year 26,387 22,767
Total recognised income for the year 27,292 22,977
Repurchase of the Company’s shares
- nominal value of shares repurchased and cancelled 34 (9) -
- premium paid on repurchases 35 (1.287) -
Dividends paid
- to the Company’s shareholders 35 (4,722) {3,200)
- to minority interests 36 (104) (107)
Acquisition of minority interests in a subsidiary company 36 - (5.416)
Net capital contribution from/(repaid 10} minority inlerests 36 484 )
At 3tst December 136,678 115,024
Total recognised income for the year attributable to: K
The Company's shareholders 27121 22,771
Minority interesls 7 206
27,292 22,977

The notes on pages 89 1o 140 and the principal accounting policies on pages 141 to 150 form part of these accounts.
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Notes to the Accounts

(a)

(h)

Changes in Accounting Standards
The following new siandards, amendments to standards and interpretations of Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRS") are cifective for the year ended 31st December 2007.

HKAS 1 Amendment Presentation of Financial Statements: Capital Disclosures

HKFRS 7 Financial tnstruments: Disclosures

HKIIFRIC)-Int 7 Applying the Restatement Approach under HKAS 29, Financial Reporting in
Hyperinflationary Economies

HKI{IFRIC)-Int 8 Scope of HKFRS 2

HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives

HK{IFRIC)-Int 10 interim Financial Reporling and impairment

The adoption of HKFRS 7 and the complementary amendment to HKAS 1 has resulted in new disclosures relating
10 financial instruments and how the Group manages its capital resources, but has no impact on the resulls or net
assels for the year. HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 10 have no effect on the accounts for the year. HK(IFRIC)-Int
7 and 8 are not relevant to the Group's operations.

The Group has not early adopted 1he following new standards or interpretations that have been issued but are not
yet effective.

HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of Financial Statements

HKAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing Coslts

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments

HKUFRIC)-Int 11 HKFRS 2 - Group and Treasury Share Transactions

HK(IFRIC)-Int 12 Service Concession Arrangements

HK(IFRIC)-Int 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes

HK(IFRIC)-Int 14 HKAS 19 - The Limit on a Defined Benefit Assel, Minimum Funding

Requirements and their Interaction

The revised HKAS 1 introduces a number of changes to the presentation of the accounts, including a requiremem
for those fair value gains and losses currently presented in the consolidated statement of changes in equity to be
presented in a stalement of comprehensive income. The Group is required to apply this standard from 1st January
2009,

The revised HKAS 23 requires borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of a qualifying assel to be capilalised as part of the cost of that asset. The Group is required to apply this
amendment from 1st January 2009.

HKFRS 8 requires segmental information to be disclosed on the same basis as that used for imernal reporting
purposes. The Group is required to apply this standard from 1st January 2009.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 12 gives guidance on accounting for contractual arrangements in which private sector operators

participate in the development or operation of infrastructure for public sector services. The Group is required to
apply this interpretation from 1st January 2008.
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Notes to the Accounts

1. Changes in Accounting Standards (continued)
{b) ({continued)

HX(IFRIC)-Int 13 clarifies that where goods or services are sold together with a customer loyally incentive, a
portion of the consideration received from the customer should be deferred untif the customer loyalty incentive is
redeemed. The Group is required to apply this interpretation {rom 1st January 2009.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 14 provides guidance on the recognition and funding of retirement benefit scheme assets and
liabilities. The Group is required 1o apply this interpretation from 1st January 2008.

Impact of New Standards and Interpretations Vet lo be Adopted

The adoption of HK(IFRIC)-Int 13 will affect the share of profit from Cathay Pacific as the airline will apply the
new interprelation to the accounting for its airline loyalty scheme. Cathay Pacific is currently assessing the impact
of this interpretation on its resulis and net assets from 1st January 2009.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 11 is not relevant as the Group currently does nol engage in share-based payment transactions.

1t is not anticipated that the other new standards and interpretations will have a significant impact on the Group’s
results or net assels,

2. Financial Risk Management

Structure and Policies

In the normal course of business the Group is exposed 1o financial risks atiributable 10 interest rates, currency, credit
and liquidity.

The Group Finance Commitiee maintains and develops the Group’s financia! risk management policies and procedures
which are imptemented by the Company's Treasury department, within an agreed framework authorised by the Board.

The Treasury department manages the majority of the Group’s funding needs, as well as any resulling interest rate,
currency, credit and liquidity risks. Operaling subsidiaries manage currency and credit exposures that are specific to
their trading transactions.

It is the Group’s policy nol 10 enter inlo derivative iransactions for speculative purposes. Derivalives are used solely
for management of an underlying risk and the Group has minimised its exposure 1o market risk since gains and losses
on the derivatives are offset by losses and gains on the assets, liabilities or transactions being hedged. Accounting ior
derivative financial instruments and hedging activilies is discussed on pages 146 to 148.

The Group’s listed associated companies, Cathay Pacific and HAECO, arrange their financial and treasury affairs on a
stand-alone basis, The Group’s non-listed associated and jointly controlled companies alse arrange their financial and
treasury affairs on a stand-alone basis. The Company may provide financial suppori by way of guaraniees to its non-
listed associated and jointly conirofled companies in cases where significant cost savings are available and risks are
acceptable,

Interest Rate Exposure
The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from borrowings. Borrowings issued a1 variable rates expose the Group 10
cash flow interest rate risk. Borrowings issued at fixed rates expose the Group 1o fair value interest rate risk. The Group

earns interest income on cash deposits,

90 Swire Pacific




2. Financial Risk Management (continued)

Interest Rate Exposure (continued)

The Group maintains a significan proportion of debt on a fixed rate basis to ensure certainty of funding costs. The level
of fixed rate debt for the Group is decided after taking into consideration the petential impact of higher interest rates on
profil, interest cover and the cash flow cycles of the Group’s businesses and investments. in this regard the Group uses

inlerest rate swaps lo manage its long-term inleresl rate exposure. The Group Finance Direclor approves ail interest rate

hedges prior to implementation.

On a quarterly basis, the Treasury department calculates the Group’s exposure to interest rale fluctuations on forecast
carnings and cash flows by performing simulations which flex forecast interest rates. The Treasury depaniment reports

these metrics and its recommendations to the Finance Commitiee.

Based on the simulations performed al year-end, the impact of a 100 basis-points increase or decrease in markel
interest rates from the rates applicable at 315t December, wilh all other variables held constant, would have been:

100 basis-points 100 basis-points

increase in decrease in
interesl rates interest rates
HKSM HK$M
Al 315t December 2007
Impact on profit and loss account: {loss)/gain (122) 122
Impact on equity: gain/(loss) 21 (21)
At 315t December 2006
Impact on prafit and loss account: (loss)/gain (22) 22
Impact on equity: gain/(loss) 35 {3%)

This analysis is based on a hypothetical situation, as in praclice markel interest rates rarely change in isolation, and
should not be considered a projection of likely future profits or losses. The analysis assumes the following:

- Changes in market interest rates affect the interest income or expense of floating rate financial instruments

- Changes in market interest rates only affect interest income or expense in relation to fixed rate financial instruments
if these are recognised at fair value.

-  Changes in market interest rates affect the fair value of derivative financial instruments.

- All other financial assels and liabilities are held constant.

Currency Exposure

The Group operales internationally and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various currencies, primarily
with respect to US dollars, Renminbi and New Taiwan dollars. Foreign exchanpe risk arises from future commercial
transactions, recognised asscts and liabilities, and net investments in foreign operations.

The Group's policy is 10 fully hedge all highly probable transactions in each major currency where their value or time
to execution give rise lo a significant currency exposure, provided that the cost of the foreign exchange forward or

derivative contract is not prohibitively expensive in comparison o the underlying exposure.

Exposure 1o movements in exchange rates on transactions other than borrowings is minimised using forward foreign
exchange contracts where active markets for the relevant currencies exist.
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2. Financial Risk Management (continued)

Currency Exposure (continued)

Al the year-end, the Group has hedged all its significant foreign currency funding exposures with the exception of its
US5$300 million 8.84% Perpeiual Capital Sccurities callable in 2017, The principal amount of these instruments is not
hedged as the Group has no requirement 1o redeem them. The coupon payments on these instruments are naturally
hedged by US dollar denominated income streams generated by those subsidiaries whose functional currency is the
US dollar.

Exposure arising from the Group’s investments in operating subsidiaries with net asscts denominated in foreign
currencies is reduced, where practical, by providing funding in the same currency.

Foreign currency funding and deposit exposure is monitored by the Treasury department on an ongoing basis and
any hedging proposal is presented to the Finance Commitiee. On a quarterly basis, Ihe Treasury department performs
sensitivity testing of the Group's exposure to foreign exchange rate fluctuations from unhedged foreign currency
denominated debt on forecast carnings and cash flows by flexing forecast foreign exchange rates. The results of lhese
simulations are used 10 assess whether a position should remain unhedged.

Based on the simulations performed at 315t December, the impact on the Group's profit and loss account and equity of
a strengthening or weakening in the Hong Kong dollar against the US dollar from the year-end rate of 7.80 (2006; 7.78)
would have been:

Strengthening Weakening in

in HKS to lower HK$ to upper
peg limit (7.75)  peg limil (7.85)

HKSM HK$M
Al 31st December 2007
impact on profit and loss account: gain/(loss) 23 (23)
Impact on equily: (loss)/gain (45) 45
At 315t December 2006
impact on profit and loss account: gain/(loss) 19 {(53)
Impact on equity: (loss)/gain {25} 64

This analysis is based on a hypothetical situation, as in practice market exchange rales rarely change in isolation, and
should not be considered a projection of likely future profits or losses. The analysis assumes that all foreign currency
cash flow hedges are expected to be highly effective. For the purpose of this analysis, currency risk does not arise from
financial assets or liabilities denominated in the funciional currencies of the Company and its subsidiary companies.

Credit Exposure

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and other receivables with wholesale customers, cash and cash
equivalents, derivalive financial instruments and deposits with banks and financial institutions. Individual operations are
responsible for setling credit terms appropriate to their industry practice and assessing the credit proiile of individual
customers.

Typically sales 1o retail customers are made by cash or major credit cards. The Group has no significant credit risk with
any one customer,
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2. Financial Risk Management (continued)

Credit Exposure (continued)

When deposiling surplus funds or entering into derivative contracts, the Group controls its exposure 10 non-
performance by counterparties by transacting with investment grade counterparties, seiting approved counterparty
limits and applying monitoring procedures. Counterparty credit exposure limits for financial institutions are proposed
by the Treasury department and approved by the Group Finance Director. The Treasury department monitors the
counterparties’ credit ratings and issues an approved list of counterparties with their limits on a quarterly basis 1o all
subsidiaries. Group companies require prior approval from the Treasurer to transact with counterparties not on the
approved list.

The Group is not required by its counterparties to provide collateral or any other form of security against any change
in the market value of a derivative. There are no specific conditions that would require the termination of derivalive
contracts should the credit rating of Swire Pacific be downgraded.

The maximum credit risk in respect of contingencies is disclosed in note 38.

Liquidity Risk

The Group lakes liquidity risk into consideration when deciding ils sources of lunds and their respeciive tenors, 50 as lo
avoid aver reliance on funds [rom any one source and 1o prevent subsiantial refinancing in any one period, The Group
matntains significant undrawn committed revolving credit facilities and cash deposits to further reduce liquidity risk and
allow for flexibility in meeting funding requirements.

During the year the Group decided to increase the level of undrawn committed revolving credit facilities and cash
deposils such that it now aims to maintain immediate access to commitied funds to meet its refinancing and capital
commitments for the following 12 months on a rolling basis, excluding its onshore Renminbi debt funding where
forward commitments are not readily available.

The Treasury department produces a forecast funding plan for the Group on a quarterly basis and a summary forecast
on a monthly basis, to assess the committed and probable funding requirements, This includes an analysis of debt
refinancing by year and by source of funds. The Treasurer presents the forecasl lunding plan together with funding
proposals to the Group Finance Director on a regular basis, and to the Finance Committee at its meetings.
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2. Financial Risk Management (continued)

The tables below analyse the contractual undiscounted cash flows of the Group’s and the Company’s financial liabilities
into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period from the balance sheet date to the earliest date the
Group and the Company can be required to pay:

Group
At 315t December 2007
Total More than More than
conlractual Within 1 1year 2 years but
Carrying undiscounted year or on but less than  less than 5 Mare than
amount cash flow demand 2 years years 5 years
Note HK$M HKSM HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M
Trade creditors 28 1,105 1,105 1,105 - - -

Amounts due to

intermediate holding

company 28 97 97 97 - - -
Amounts due to jointly

controlled companies 28 1 1 1 - - -
Amounts due to associated

companies 28 51 51 51 - - -
Interest-bearing advances

from jointly controlled

companies 28 134 134 134 - - -
Advances from minority

interests 28 116 116 116 - - -
Rental deposits from

tenants 28 1,801 1,801 765 225 €19 192
Qther payables 28 4,118 4,118 4,088 23 7 -
Borrowings (including

interest obligations) 3 24,734 27,687 4,732 1,951 13,583 7,40
Derivative financial

instruments 23 45 45 - - - 45

32,202 35,155 11,089 2,199 14,209 7,658
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2. Financial Risk Management (continued)
Group (continued)
At 315t December 2006
Total More than Mose than
contractual Within 1 1year 2 years but
Carrying undiscounted yearoron  but less than  less than 5 Morc than
Note amount cash flow demand 2 years years 5 years
HK$M HK$M HKSM HK$M HKSM HK$M
Trade creditors 28 965 965 965 - - -
Amounts due 1o intermediate
holding company 28 91 91 91 - - -
Amounts due 1o jointly
controlled companies 28 12 12 12 - - -
Amounts due Lo associated
| companies 28 57 57 57 - - -
| Interest-bearing advances
from jointly controlled
| companies 28 339 339 339 - - -
Interest-bearing advances
| from associated
| companies 28 151 151 151 - - -
, Advances from minority
interosis 28 116 116 Heé - - -
! Rental deposits from tenants 28 1,437 1,437 601 223 a9 124
Other payables 28 1,998 1,998 1,983 7 7 1
Borrowings {including
interest obligations) K] 11,851 15,079 1,995 470 4,859 7,755
Derivative financial
instruments 23 99 29 10 - - 89
17,116 20,344 6,320 700 5,355 7,969
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2. Financial Risk Management (continued)

Corﬁpany
At 31st December 2007
Total More than More than
contractual Within 3 1 year 2 years but
Carrying undiscounted year or on but less than  less than 5 More than
amouni cash flow demand 2 years years 5 years
Note HKSM HKS$M HK$M HK$M HKSM HK$M
Amounts due to intermediate
holding company 28 18 18 18 - - -
Amounts due lo subsidiary
companies 28 2,259 2,259 2,259 - - -
Other payahles 28 64 64 64 - - -
2,341 2,341 2,34 - - -
At 315t December 2006
Total More than More than
contractual Within 1 1year 2 years but
Carrying undiscounted year or on  but less than less than 5 More than
amount cash flow demand 2 years years S years
Nole HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$ M HKSM
Amounts due to intermediate
holding company 28 3 k) 3 - - -
Amounts due to subsidiary
companies 28 1,661 1,661 1,661 - - -
Other payables 28 53 53 53 - - -
1,745 1,745 1,745 - - -

Price Risk

The Group is exposed 10 price risk in relation 10 listed equity securities held as available-for-sale investments {see note

22). Management regularly reviews the expected returns from holding such investments, on an individual basis.

Capital Management

: The Group‘s primary objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
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concern, so that it can continug to provide returns for shareholders and benefits to other stakeholders, and to secure
access to finance at a reasonable cost. The Group's long-term strategy during the year, which was unchanged from
2006, was lo maintain a capital structure appropriate for long-term credit ratings of A3 10 A1 on Moody’s scale, A-to
A+ on Standard & Poor’s scale, and A— ta A+ on Fitch's scale. Actual credit ratings may depart from these levels from
time to time due to economic circumstances. Al 31st Decemmber 2007 the Group’s long-term credit ratios were A3 from
Moody’s, A- from Standard & Poor’s, and A from Firch.




2. Financial Risk Management (continued)

Capital Management {continued)

Swire Pacific has entered into financial covenants in respect of gearing limits and maintenance of minimum adjusted
consolidated 1angible net worlh®, 10 secure funding for itseli and its subsidiaries. These covenants are set oul below:

Covenant
limits 2007 2006
Gearing
Consolidated horrowed money*/adjusted cansolidated*
net worth* < 200% 16.5% 10.4%
Secured consolidaled borrowed money/adjusted consolidated
net worth < 100% 0.5% 0.9%
HKSM HKSM HK$M
Maintenance of minimum adjusted consolidated tangible net worth
Adjusted consolidated tangible net worth® > 20,000 135,618 114,181

* Refer to Glossary on page 176 for definition

These financial covenants, together with the long-term credit rating objective, establish the framework within which the
capital structure of the Group is determined.

During the year the Group complied with all the financial cavenants to which it is subject.

The Group considers a number of metrics in monitoring its capital structure, which principally include the gearing ratio
and cash interest cover and the return cycle of its various investments, For the purpose of the gearing ratio, the Group
defines net debt as total borrowings {comprising borrowings net of security deposits plus perpetual capital securities
issued by the Group) less short-term deposits and bank halances and certain available-for-sale investments. Capital
comprises total equity, as shown in the consolidated balance sheet.

In order to maintain or adjust the gearing ratio, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,
issue or repurchase shares, raise new debt financing ar sell assets to reduce debt. The gearing ratios at 31st December
2007 and 31st December 2006 were as follows:

2007 2006

Note HKS$M HK$M

(Restated)

Perpetual Capital Securities 30 2,340 2,330

Borrowings net of security deposits k3| 24,011 11,427

Total borrowings 26,351 13,757
Less:

Short-term deposits and bank balances (excluding security deposits) 27 3,811) (1,774)

Certain available-for-sale investments (48) (53)

(3,859) (1,827}

Net debt 22,492 11,930

Total equity 136,678 115,024

Gearing ratio 16.5% 10.4%

The increase in the gearing ratio during 2007 resulted primarily from borrowings issued to finance investments.
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3. Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements

Estimates and judgements used in preparing the accounts are continually evaluated and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates
will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant effect

on the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities are discussed below:

(2) Estimates of Fair Value of Invesiment Properties
DT2Z Debenham Tie Leung {*DTZ"} were engaged to carry out an independent valuation of the Group’s invesiment
property portfolio as at 31st December 2007. This valuation was carried out in accordance with the Valuation
Standards on Properties of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors which defines market value as “the estimated
amount for which a property should exchange on the date of valuation between a willing buyer and a willing sefler
in an arm’s length transaction after proper marketing wherein the parties each acled knowledgeably, prudently and

without compulsion”,

DTZ has derived the valuation of the Group’s invesiment property portfolio by capitalising the rental income
derived from existing tenancies with due provision far reversionary income potential. The assumptions are based

on markel conditions existing al the balance sheet date.

Management has reviewed the DTZ valuation and compared it with its own assumptions, with reference to
comparable sales transaction data where such information is available, and has concluded that the DTZ valuation

of the Group's investment property porifolio is reasonable.

(b) Impaisment of Assets
The Group tests at least annually whether goodwill and other assets that have indefinite useful lives have suffered
any impairment. Other assels are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of an asset or a
cash-generating unit has been determined based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations require the use

of estimates.

{c) Income Taxes
The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in determining
the worldwide provision for income taxes. There are transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The Group recognises liabilities for potential
tax exposures hased on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the year in which such determination is made.
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4. Turnover

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in Hong Kong and listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong

Limited. The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal activities of its major subsidiary,

jointly cantrolled and associated companies are shown on pages 151 1o 159,

Turnover represents sales by the Company and its subsidiary companies to external customers and comprises

revenue from:

Group
2007 2006

HK$M HK$M
Grass rental income from investment properlies 5,551 4,779
Charter hire income 3,104 1,997
Property trading 10 554
Sales of investment properties 283 377
Rendering of services 243 109
Sales of goods 12,362 11,295

21,553 1911
5. Other Net Gains

Group
2007 2006

HK$M HK$M
Other net gains include the following;
Fair value gains/(losses) on derivative instruments
— forward contracts: fair value hedges - 15
- forward contracts: transactions not qualifying as hedges - (1)
Profit on shareholding realignment of associated companies - 1,334
Profit on sale of shares in associated companies - 5
Profit on sale of jointly controlled companies 1,122 -
Profit on sale of available-for-sale investments - 20
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment 213 78
Net foreign exchange losses (45) (13)

2007 Annual Report

99




Notes 1o the Accounts

6. Expenses by Nature

Expenses included in cost of sales, distribution costs, administrative and other operating expenses are analysed

as follows:
Group
2007 2000
HK$M HK$M
Direct operating expenses of invesiment properties that
- generate rental income 976 916
- did nol generate rental income 62 77
Cost of sales of investment properties 193 377
Cost of stocks sold 8,216 7,71
write-down of stocks and work in progress 57 47
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (note 14) 683 562
Amorlisation of
leasehold land and land use rights (note 16) 5 1
intangible assets {note 17) 13 12
deferred expenditure 23 23
Staif costs 2,900 2,564
Operating lease rentals
properties 24 189
other equipment 48 37
Auditors’ remuneration
audit services 14 ]
lax services 9 8
2 2

other services
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7. Segment Information
{a) Primary reporting format - business segments by division:

Share of
profits Share of Prolil
less losses profits less atiributable
Net of jointly losses of to the
Operating finance controlled assoclated  Profil before  Profit for the Company's
Turnover profil charges companics companirs tanalion ycar  shareholders
HKEM HKSM HKSM HK$M HKIM HKSM HKSM HK$M
Year ended 3151 December 2007
Pruperty
Property investment 5.663 4,040 (802) 46 12 3,296 2,949 2,950
Property trading 10 (33) 9 (46) - 7m {42) {42)
Sales of invesiment properties 283 90 - - - 90 mn m
Hotels 148 & - 32 116 174 174 174
Change in fair value of
investment properties - 19,377 - 98 55 19,530 16,032 16,032
6,104 23,400 (793) 130 203 23,020 19,224 19,225
Avialion
Cathay Pacific group - - - - 2,680 2,680 2,680 2,680
Aircraft engineering - - - - 469 469 469 469
Cargo handling - - - - 273 273 273 181
- - - - JAll 3,422 3,422 3,330
Beverages
Hong Xong 1,692 166 2) - - 164 148 134
Taiwan 1,027 36 (5) 1 - 32 32 2?
UsSA 1,294 15 3 - - 154 272 272
Mainland China 1,083 (32) 19 190 - 139 131 13
Ceniral costs - (38} - - - 38 40) 139)
7,066 483 23) 19 - 651 543 507
Marine Services
Ship owning and operating 3,104 1,503 (44} 8 - 1467 1,405 1,405
Ship repair, cngineering and
harbour 1owage - - - 59 - 59 59 59
Conainer terminal operalions - - - 8 - B 8 8
Sale of comainer terminal
operalions - 1,078 - - - 1,078 1,078 1,078
3,104 2,581 (CZH] 75 - 1,612 2.550 2,550
Trading & Indusirial
Cau distribution 3,398 124 3 - - 127 97 97
Shoe and apparel distribution 1,521 31 tH B 59 a7 90 90
Waste services - - - B4 - f4 a4 84
Beverage can supply - - - 38 - 38 38 38
Paint supply - - - 95 - us 95 95
Other activities 461 {20) 1 - - 453 (20 2m
Change in fair value of
invesiment properlies - 19 - — - 19 15 15
5,380 154 3 225 59 44 399 399
Head Office
Income/expenses 158 {169} 364 - - 195 210 210
Change in fair value of
investmenl properties - 50 - - - 50 39 39
158 (119} 364 - - 245 249 39
Inter-scgment climination {259) - - - - - - -
Tolal 21,553 26,579 {493) 621 3,684 0,391 26,387 26,260
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7. Segment Information (continued)
{a} Primary reporting format - business segments by division (continued):

Share of
profity Share of Profil
Iess loases profila less attribulable
of jainlly lovses of 1o the
Operating  Nel finance conmlrofled assoclated  Profit befare Profil for Company's
Turnoves profit charges companies companies tanation the year  shareholders
HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HESM HEKEM HK$M HK$M
Year ended 31st December 2006
Property
Praperty investment 4,872 1,450 (750) 33 13 2,746 2,476 2,408
Property wrading 554 190 25 {76) - 139 68 67
Sales of invesiment properlies 180 - - - - - 30 30
RHotels 27 2 - 9 115 126 126 126
Sale of available-for-sale
investments - 155 - - - 155 155 155
Change in fair value of
investment properties - 16,990 - 56 117 17,103 14,067 14,005
Write-back of provision for
trading properties - - - 132 - 132 132 132
5,633 20,787 {725) 154 245 20,481 17,054 16,983
Aviation
Cathay Pacific group - - - - 1,700 1,700 1,700 1,700
Aircrall engineersing - - - - 379 379 379 379
Cargo handling - - - - 288 288 288 192
Profit on share realignment - 1,134 - - - 1,334 1,334 1,134
- 1,334 - - 2,367 3,701 3,701 3,605
Beverages
Hong Kong 1,536 156 12) - - 154 139 126
Taiwan yse 56 {3 1 - 54 41 34
usAa 3.025 308 171 - - 304 239 2319
Mainland China p{3] {75} - 199 - 124 123 109
Cenlral cosis - {28) = - - 128 128} (28}
5,750 a7 an 200 - 605 514 480
Marine Scrvices
Ship owning and operating 1,997 740 {35} 35 - 740 701 70
Ship repair, engincering and
harbour towage - - - 5l - 51 51 5t
Cantainer terminal operalions - — - a2 - 8z Az %3
1,997 740 (33) 168 - ar3 834 B34
Teading & Industrial
Car distribution 3,845 183 12) - - 181 135 135
Shoe and apparel distribution 1,303 a5 {n - J4 121 108 108
Wasle services - - - a2 - 82 a2 B2
Beverage can supply - - - 26 - 26 26 26
Paint supply - - - 64 - Hd G4 b4
Other aciivities 475 5 2 - - 7 7 7
Change in fair value of
investment properties - 27 - - _ 27 22 72
5,623 303 (n 171 kL 508 444 444
Head Ofiice
Income/expenses 152 (96} 2069 - - 173 174 174
Sale of investment properties 197 - - - - - 23 23
Change in fair value of
investment Properties - 28 - - - 18 22 23
349 (68} 269 - - mm 210 220
Inter-segment eliminalion (241} - - - - - - -
Tonal 19,111 23,513 {504) 694 2,646 26,149 22,767 22,566
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7. Segment Information {continued)
{2) Primary reporting format — business segments by division (continued):

Analysis of turnover

Turnover
2007 2006
Inter- inter.
External segment Total External segment Total
HKS$M HKS$M HK$M HKSM HK§M HK$M
Property
Property investment 5,619 44 5,663 4,834 38 4,872
Property trading 10 - 10 554 - 554
Sales of investment properties 283 - 283 180 - 180
Hotels 148 - 148 27 - 27
Beverages 7,066 - 7,066 5,750 - 5,750
Marine Services 3,104 - 3,104 1,997 - 1,997
Trading & Industriat 5,306 74 5,380 5,554 69 5,623
Head Office 17 141 158 215 134 349
Inler-segment elimination - (259) (259) - (241) (241}
Segment revenue lo external customers 21,553 - 21,553 19,111 - 19,111

Sales between business segments are accounted for al compelitive market prices charged to external customers for similar goods

and services.

Analysis of total assets and total liabilities of the Group

Property Aviation Beverages Marine Services  Trading & Industrial Head Office Group
007 2006 2007 2006 1007 2006 1007 2006 1007 2006 2087 o6 2007 2006
HEK$M HK$M HESM HK$M HKSM HESM HKIM HKSM HK$M HKSM HK$M HEM HKSM HKSM
{Restaied) [Restated) {Rustated)
Scgment assets 141,030 108,670 - - 4,059 3,755 7307 6.026 1,861 .78 1,519 409 185,716 120,701
Dolerred 1ax
asiers
{nule 1) 44 60 - - T4 54 - - b3 4 ] [ 148 154
loinily
controlled
compankes 4.0NM 3.048 3 XY 1,030 987 159 523 80 603 - - 5,761 5,195
Associaled
companies 73 905 22,144 19,835 - - 3 3o 134 a5 - - 23,124 20,855
Bank deposils
& secworities
inote 1) 2,029 582 - - 198 A0 956 58S 437 107 762 57h 4,582 2.251
Tolal assels 148,107 113,265 23,383 1'L474 5,561 5,197 0,147 7,04 3,134 1,600 2,29% 1,01  18%,471 149,161
Svgment
ifabifities 4,11% 2,128 - - 1,513 1,358 627 517 M 746 n 562 7,633 5,51
Current and
delerred tax
liabilities
{note 1) 17,653 14,103 - - b1 237 68 36 12 32 46 47 18,02 13,445
Rorrowings
{nate 1) 27,797 16,821 - — [24.] 795 725 2,162 278 12 {2,403) 5,870 17,074 14,181
Tolal liabililies 49,679 33,322 - - 2,418 2,390 1,420 2,915 1,201 7tH) (1,985) 15,1801 52,753 34,137
Minarity
inlerests 797 292 30 32 334 246 - - - - - - 1,181 (354
Equity
atribuelable
to the
Company's
shareholders 97,631 79.631 22,153 19,842 1,789 2,524 727 4,249 1,933 1,810 4,204 6. 041 135,517 114,414
Borrowingy
cnmplisc:
Exienal
horrowings 3,178 14 - - 197 258 713 424 X ¥ 54 21,644 1540 27,074 14,181
Inter-scgment
borrowings
{note 2) 24,619 16,877 - - 48 537 2 1,918 {54} {42) (25.048) (%100} - -
Total 2,797 16,891 - - 70 795 715 2.362 278 12 (2,404) {5079 27,074 14,181
Naotes:

(1) Current and deferred taxatlon, bank deposits & securities and borrowings ase allocated on an actual basis.
{2)  Excludes equity loans from head ofiice.
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7. Segment Information (continued)
{a) Primary reporting format — business segments by division (continued}):

Analysis of capital expendilure and depreciation/amortisation

Capital expenditure Depreciation

Amortisation

2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 20006

HK$M HK$M Hk$M HK$M HK$M HK$M

Property 12,157 2,813 53 34 28 15
Beverages 316 280 300 258 Lk 19
Marine Services 1,385 1,322 297 237 - 1
Trading & Industrial 46 39 33 32 2 1
Head Qffice 831 2 - 1 - -
14,735 4,456 683 562 4 36

Capital expenditure comprises addilions to property, plant and equipment (note 14}, investment properties {note
15), leasehold land and land use rights (note 16) and intangible assets (note 17) including additions resulting from

acquisitions through business combinations (nole 42).

{b) Secondary reporting format - geopraphical segments:

The activities of the Group are principally based in Hong Kong. Ship owning and operating aclivities are carried

out internalionally and cannot be atiributed to specific geographical areas.

An analysis of turnover, operating profit, segment assets and capital expenditure of the Group by principal markets

is outlined below:

Turnaver Operating profit

2007 2006 2007 2006
HK$M HKSM HK$M HKSM
Hong Kong 8,978 8,102 24,608 22,009
Asia (excluding Hong Kong) 6,024 5,437 129 235
United $States of America 3,299 3,548 330 517
United Kingdom 148 27 9 2
Ship owning and operating 3,104 1,997 1,503 740
21,553 19,11 26,579 23,513

Segment assels Capital exgenditure
2007 2006 2007 2006
HXS$M HK$M HK$M HKEM

{Restated)

Hong Kong 135,470 108,897 6,641 2,724
Asia {excluding Hong Kong) 9,851 3,398 6,326 277
United States of America 2,585 2,046 129 123
United Kingdom 593 334 254 10
Ship owning and operating 7.217 6,026 1,385 1,322
155,716 120,701 14,735 4,456
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8. Directors’ and Executive Officers’ Emoluments
The five highest paid individuals in the Group in both 2007 and 2006 were Directors or Executive Officers, whose total

emoluments are shown below:

Cash Non cash
Bonus
payable inla
Retirement  retirement
Salary/fees Bonus  Allowances schemes schemes Housing Total Total
(note a) (note b) and benefits  contributions (note b) benefits 1007 2006
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HX$'000 HK$000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$000
Executive Directors
C D Peatt (from st February
2006) 4,708 4,236 222 824 1,209 4,208 15,407 11,693
P N L Chen 2,345 2,453 982 185 - - 5,965 -
M Cubbon 3,159 3,035 524 553 958 3,062 11,292 10,747
D Ho 1,523 2,325 538 68 - 1,300 5,755 7,537
K G Kerr 5151 4,461 256 57 - 2,722 12,647 11,764
] R Slosar (from 12th May
2006) 1,691 1,709 207 450 552 972 5,581 6,358
D M Turnbull (1o 31st January
2006) - - - - - - - 1,618
Non-Executive Directors
Baroness Dunn - -
| W | Hughes-Hallen ~ -
P A Johansen - -
Sir Adrian Swire - -
tndependent Non-Execulive
Directors
V H C Cheng 200 - - - - - 200 200
C K M Kwok 450 - - - - - 450 400
C Lee 400 - - - - - 400 400
M C C Sze 200 - - - - - 200 200
MMT Yang 200 - - - - - 200 200
Total 2007 20,027 18,219 2,729 2,137 2,720 12,265 58,097 -
Total 2006 17,576 14,196 2,300 2,126 2,297 12,622 - 51,117
Executive Cfficers
C D Prati (to 31st January 2006} - - - - - - - 756
J R Slosar (10 11th May 2006) - - - - - - - 3,408
G L Cundle {irom 15t June
2006} 1,770 1,154 263 310 675 2,339 6,51 1,798
H A S Crawford (from (st
May 2007) 1.038 493 372 182 493 1,372 3,950 -
Total 2007 2,808 1,647 635 492 1,168 3. 10,46¢ -
Total 2006 1,726 1,504 179 402 626 1,525 - 5,962

(a) Independent Non-Executive Directors receive fees as members of the Board and its commitices. Executive Directins receive salaries.

(b} Bonuses are md yel approved lor 2007 and consequently the amaunts disclosed above are estimated amounts,
(€)  Emoluments lo7 the Execulive Direciors and Officers represent the amount charged to the Group.
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9. Net Finance Charges

Group
2007 2006
HK$M HKS$M HK$M HKSM
Interest charged on:
Bank loans and overdrafls (389) (121)
Other loans and bonds:
Wholly repayable within five years (68) (82)
Not wholly repayable within five years (558) (589)
(626) {671)
Fair value gains/(losses) on derivative instruments:
Interest rate swaps: cash flow hedges, transferred from
equity {note 35) 29 8
Interest rate swaps: fair value hedges 6 3
Interest rate swaps: not qualifying as hedges 3 -
32 11
Fair value losses on financial labilities (8) (15}
Amortised loan fees - loans at amortised cosl (14) (22)
Deferred into properties under development
for sale 5 1
Capitalised on:
Investment properties 156 87
Froperties 204 46
Vessels 46 61
lointly controiled companies - 6
406 200
(590) {617)
Interest income on:
Short-term deposits and bank balances 34 12
Other loans 63 81
97 M3
Net finance charges {493) {504)

The capilalisation rates applied to funds borrowed generally and used for the development of investment properties and
properties for sale are between 3.50% and 5.70% per annum {2006: 3.86% and 6.89% per annum).

The total interest charged on borrowings held at amortised cost {after interest rate swaps) was HK$973 million (2006:

HK$765 million).
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10. Taxation

Group
2007 2006
HKS$M HKSM HK$M HESM
Current taxation:
Hong Kong profits tax 310 195
Overseas taxation 229 197
Over-provisions in prior years (21) {6)
518 386
Deferred taxation:
Change in fair value of investment properties 3,436 2,985
Origination and reversal of temporary differences 50 21
3,486 3,196
4,004 3,582

Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at 17.5% (2006: 17.5%) on the eslimated assessable profits for the year. Overseas

tax is calculated at tax rates applicable in countries in which the Group is assessable for tax.

The tax charge on the Group’s profit before taxation differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the

Hong Kong profits tax rate of the Company as follows:

2007 2006

HK$M HK$M

Profit before taxation 30,39 26,349
Calculated at a tax rate of 17.5% (2006: 17.5%) 5,318 4,611
Share of profits less losses of jointly controlled and associated companies (753) (585)
Effect of different tax rates in other countries 42 {46)
Income not subject 1o tax 496) (334)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 24 29
Unused tax tosses nol recognised 13 B
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses {95) (93)
Over-provisions in prior years @2n (6)
Others (28) (2)
Tax charge 4,004 3,582

The Group’s share of jointly controlled and associated companies’ taxation of iHK$181 million and HK$514 million
respectively (2006: HK$309 million and HK$517 million) is included in the share of profits less losses of jaintly
controlled and associated companies shown in the consolidated profit and loss account.

11. Profit Attributable to the Company’s Shareholders

Of the profit attributahle to the Company's shareholders, HK$4,630 million (2006: HK$4,065 million) is deait with in

the accounts of the Company.
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12. Dividends
Company
2007 2006
HK$M HKS M
Interim dividend paid on 3rd October 2007 of HK¢90.0 per ‘A’ share
and HK¢18.0 per ‘B’ share (2006: HK¢63.0 and HK¢12.6) 1,366 965
Propased final dividend of HK¢233.0 per ‘A’ share and
HK¢46.6 per ‘B’ share {2006 actual dividend paid:
HK¢220.0 and HK¢44.0) 3,533 3,356
4,899 4,321

The final proposed dividend is not accounted for until it has been approved at the Annual General Meeting. The actual
amount will be accounted for as an appropriation of the revenue reserve in the year ending 315t December 2008.

13. Earnings per Share (basic and diluted)

Farnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to the Company’s shareholders of HK$26,260 million
(2006: HK$22,566 million) by the weighted average number of 920,763,201 ‘A’ shares and 3,003,486,271 “B shares in
issue during the year {2006: 930,375,385 ‘A’ shares and 3,003,486,271 ‘B’ shares) in the proportion five to one,

14. Property, Plant and Equipment

Group Company
Plant and Plant and
Property machinery Vessels Total machinery
HK$M HKSM HK$M HK$M HKSM

Cost:
At st January 2007 2,780 4,339 7,143 14,262 25
Translation differences 209 39 21 269 -
Additions 6,311 549 1,272 8,132 3
Disposals - (187) (249) (436) 1
Net transfer from investrment properties (note 15) 225 - - 225 -
Transfer to leasehold land (note 16) (1) - - (1) -
Net transfer from stocks - 22 - 22 -
Amortisation from leasehold land and land use

rights capitalised {note 16) 16 - - 16 -
Al 31st December 2007 9,540 4,762 8,187 22,489 27
Accumulated depreciation and impairment:
At 1st January 2007 596 3,103 1,694 5,393 24
Translation differences 3 18 5 26 -
Charge for the year {note 6) 59 341 283 683 1
Disposals - {172) (218) (390) (1)
Net transfer from stocks - 19 - 19 -
Net transfer to investment properties (note 15) 4) - - (4) -
At 31st December 2007 654 3,309 1,764 5,727 24
Net book value:
At 315t December 2007 8,886 1,453 6,423 16,762 3
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14. Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

Group Company
i Plant and Plant and
Property machinery Vessels Total machinery
HKS$M HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M
Cost:
At 1st January 2006 2,22 3,984 5,982 12,187 30
Translation differences 24 16 17 57 -
Change in Group 321 307 - 628 -
Additions 219 243 1,316 1,778 -
Disposals {102) (211) (172) (485) {5)
Net transfer from investment properties (note 15) 15 - - 15 -
' Amortisation from leasehold land and land use
rights capitalised (note 16) 10 - - 10

Transfer to stocks 72 - - 72 -
At 315t December 2006 2,780 4,339 7,143 14,262 25
Accumulated depreciation and impairment:
Al Tst January 2006 587 3,007 1,618 5,212 28
Translation diiferences 3 9 4 16 -
Charge for the year (note 6) 49 284 229 562 1
Disposals (36) {197) {157) (390) (5)
Net transfer to investment properties {note 15) (71 - - (7) -
At 31st December 2006 596 3,103 1,694 5,393 24
Net book value:
At 31st December 2006 2,184 1,236 5,449 8,869 1

At 315t December 2007 and 2006 none of the Group's propesty, plant and equipment was pledged as security for the
Group's long-term loans,

Property and vessels include costs of HK$6,790 million (2006: HK$385 million) and HK$88t million (2006: HK$253

million) in respect of assets under construction. On completion, HK$5,758 million {2006: HK$241 million) of property

assets under construction are expected to be transferred to investment properties.
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15. Investment Properties

Group Campany
Under

Completed redevelopment Total Total

HK$M HK$M HKSM HK$M

Al 1st January 2007 96,862 7,506 104,368 374
Additions 2,576 4,006 6,582 a7
Disposals (186) 3 (189) -
Transfer between category (563) 563 - -
Net transfer to properly, plant and equipment (note 14) (229) - (229) -
Net transfer to leasehold land (note 16) (1,250) - (1,250) -
Transfer o properties for sale - (619) {619) -
Fair value gains 18,074 1,372 19,446 83
At 31sl December 2007 115,284 12,825 128,109 1,274
At st January 2000 81,264 5,342 86,606 514
Additions 409 1,512 1,921 2
Disposals {379} - {379) (197)
Net transfer to property, plant and equipment (nole 14} (22} - (22) -
Nel transfer (to)/from leasehold land {note 16} (218) 12 (206) -
Transfer to properties for sale - {597) {597) -
Fair value gains 15,808 1,237 17,045 55
At 31st December 2006 96,862 7,506 104,368 374

{a} Investment properties, whether completed or in the course of redevelopment, were valued on the basis of open
market value at 31st December 2007 by DTZ Debenham Tic Leung, independent professional valuers.

{b) The Group's interests in investment propertics are held in Hong Kong and the lease terms are as follows:

Group Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
HK$M HKSM HK$M HKSM
On medium-term lease (10 to 50 years) 31,180 26,120 159 141
On long-term lease (over 50 years) 96,929 78,248 1,115 233
128,109 104,368 1,274 374

(c) At 31st December 2007, the Group had unprovided contractual obligations for future repairs and mainienance of
HK$134 million (2006: HK$148 million}.
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16. Leasehold Land and Land Use Rights

The Group's inerests in leasehold land and land use rights represent prepaid operating lease paymenis and their net

book value are analysed as follows:

Croup
2007 2006
HKSM HKSM
At 15t January 1,084 822
Translation differences 35 15
Change in Group - 52
Net transfer from investment properties (note 15) 1,250 206
Transfer from property, plant and equipment (note 14) 1 -
Amortisalion
Charge for the year (nole 6) (3) (a
Capitalised on property under construction (note 14) (16) (10)
At 31st December 2,349 1,084
Held in Hong Kong:
On medium-term lease (10 to 50 years) 185 i29
On long-term lease (over 50 years) 1,677 492
Held outside Hong Kong:
On medium-term lease {10 to 50 years) 487 463
2,349 1,084
17. Intangible Assets
Group
Compuler
Goodwill Software Tatal
HKS$M HKSM HK$M
Cost:
At 1st January 2007
as originally stated 807 54 861
fair value adjustiment* 9 - 9
as restated 816 54 870
Translation difference 9 - 9
Additions - 21 21
At 315t December 2007 825 75 900
Accumulated amortisation and impairment:
At 1st Janvary 2007 - 27 27
Amarlisation {or the year (note 6) - 13 13
At 31st December 2007 - 40 40
Net book value:
At 31st December 2007 825 35 860

* During the year adjustments were made, in accordance with “Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard 3:
Business Combinations”, to the provisional fair value of cerlain assets of the Alias Hotel group, acquired in the year
ended 31st December 2006, as if these adjustments had been recognised at the date of acquisition. Consequently,

trade debtors have been reduced and goodwill arising on acquisition increased by HK$9 million as reported al

31st December 2006.
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17. Intangible Assets (continued)

Group
Computer
Goodwill Software Total
HK$M HK$M HK$M
{Reslated)
Cost:
At 1st January 2006 18 41 59
Change in Group 50 4 54
Additions 748 9 757
At 315t December 2006 816 54 870
Accumulated amortisation and impairment:
At 1st lanuary 2006 - 15 15
Amortisation for the year (note 6) - 12 12
At 31st December 2006 - 27 27
Net book value:
At 31st December 2006 816 27 843
Amortisation of HK$13 million (2006: HK$12 million) is included in administrative expenses in the profit and loss
account. .
Impairment test of poodwill
Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units ("CGU") identified by divisional business segment and
geographic locatian.
2007 2006
HK$M HKSM
(Restated)
Investment properties - Hong Kong 669 669
Beverage franchises - Mainland China 147 138
Hotel business — United Kingdom 9 9
825 816

Goodwill attributable 1o investmeni properties in Hong Kong arose where Lhe fair value of net assets acquired was

below the fair value of consideration paid due to the recognition, required for accuunting purposes, of deferred tax

liabilities in regard to fair value gains on the investment properties purchased.

In Hong Kong, these gains are not taxable and therefore this liability will never fall due. Consequently the related

goodwill will ondy be impaired should the fair value of the invesiment property in future fall below its fair value at

acquisition. The recoverable amount of this CGU is therefore assessed on a post-tax basis using fair value less costs

1o sell.

The recoverable amount of other CGUs is determined based on value in use calculations. These calculations use

financial budgets and plans covering periods between five and ten years. Cash flows beyond these periods are

extrapolated using rates of growth and profitability not exceeding historic resulls. The discount rates used at 31st
December 2007 and 2006 were between 7% and 10%. These discount rates are pre-tax and reflect the specific risks

relating to the relevant CGU.
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18. Subsidiary Companies

Company

2007 2006

HK$M HK$M

Unlisted shares al cost less provisions 4,750 4,968
Loans and other amounts due from subsidiary companies less provisions

- Interest-iree 9,058 10,879

- Interesi-bearing at 3.9% o 7.0% (2006: 3.7% o 8.0%) 651 ki1

14,459 16,198

Loans and other amounts due are unsecured and have no fixed terms of repayment.

The principal subsidiary companies of Swire Pacific Limited, which have materially affected the results or assets of the

Croup, are shown on pages 151 to 159,

19. Jointly Controlied Companies

Group Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
HK$M HK$m HK$M HK$M
Unlisted shares ai cost - - k}:] 167
Share of net {liabilities)/assets, unlisted (209) 3 -~ -
Goodwill on acquisition 38 37 - -
Loans due from jointly controlled companies
less provisions
- Interest-iree 5,821 5,036 - -
- Interest-bearing at 6.75% 10 7.75%
(2006; 7.75% to B.0%) 1m 19 86 86
5,761 5,195 124 253
The loans due irom jointly controlled companies are unsecured and have no fixed terms of repayment.
The Group’s share of assets and liabilities, results and capital commitments of jointly controlled companies is
summarised befow:
Group
2007 2006
HKSM HK$ M
Non-current assels 6,253 4,856
Current assels 2,523 2,362
Current liabilities {4,781) (4,3086)
Non-current liabilities {4,129) (2,838)
Minority interests (75) {71}
Net (liabilities)/assets (209) 3
Revenue 7,287 6,398
Expenses (6,485) {5,395}
Profit before taxalion o2 1,003
Taxation (181) (309)
Profit for the year 621 694
Capital commitments
- Contracted for 292 305
- Authorised but not contracted for 4,876 82

The principal jointly controlled companies of Swire Pacific Limited, which have materially alfected the results or assels

of the Group, are shown on pages 151 to 159.
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20. Associated Companies

Group Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
HK$M HK$M HKS$M HK$M
(Restated)
Shares at cost
- Listed in Hong Kong 1,874 1,847
- Unlisted 3 3
1,877 1,850
Share of net assets [
- Listed in Hong Kong 21,332 19,039 '
- Unlisted 790 621 |
22,122 19,660
Goodwilt 164 143
22,286 19,803
Loans due from associated companies less provisions
- Interest-frec 379 N - -
- Interest-bearing at 4.96% to 5.54%
(2006: 5.40% to 5.76%) 559 661 - -
23,224 20,855 1,877 1,850

The loans due from associated companies are unsecured and have no fixed terms of repayment.

The Group's share of assets and liabilities and results of associated companies is summarised below:

Group

2007 2006

HK$M HK$Mm

{Restated)

Non-current asscis 42,231 38,729
Current assets 10,101 7,321
Current liabilities (10,404) (8,276)
Non-current liabilities (19,576) {17,831
Minorily intercsts (230) {283)
Nel assets 22,122 19,660
Revenue 33,579 30,664
profit for the year 3,684 2,646

The market value of the shares in the listed associated companies at 31st December 2007 was HK$43,600 million (2006:
HK$35.914 million}.

The principal associated companies of Swire Pacific Limited, which have materially affecied the results or assets of the
Group, are shown on pages 151 to 159. In addition, the abridged financial statements of Cathay Pacific Airways Limited

are shown on pages 160 10 162.
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21. Financial Instruments by Category
The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied to the line items below:

At Tair value
through Derivatives Yatal
profil used for  Available- Lloansand  Amortised carrying
or foss hedging for-sale  receivables con amount  Falr value
HKSM HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M HKSM HK$M

Group
Assels as per consolidated balance sheet
At 31st December 2007
Available-for-sale investments (note 22) - - 365 - - 365 365
Long-term receivables - - - 7 - 7 7
Long-term security deposits (note 31) - - - 553 - 553 553
Derivative linancial assets (note 23} - 52 - - - 52 52
Trade and other receivables (note 26) - - - 3,053 - 3,053 3,053
Short-term deposits and bank balances

(note 27) - - - 3,981 - 3,981 3,981
Total - 52 65 7,594 - 8,011 5,01
At 31st December 2006
Available-for-sale investments (note 22) - - 168 - - 168 168
Long-term receivables - - - 10 - 10 0
Long-term security deposits (note 31) - - - 339 - 339 339
Derivative financial assets {note 23) 3 28 - - - K} | k)|
Trade and other receivables (note 26) - - - 2,536 - 2,536 2,536
Short-term deposits and bank balances

(note 27) - - - 1,859 - 1,859 1,859
Total 3 28 168 4,744 - 4,943 4,943
Liabilities as per consolidated balance

sheet
At 31st December 2007
Trade and other payables {note 28) - - - - 7,423 7,423 7,423
Provisions (note 29) - - - - 8 B 8
Derivative {inancial liabilites (note 23) - 45 - - - 45 45
Bank overdrafls and short-term loans

(note 31) - - - - 4,078 4,078 4,078
Long-term foans and bonds due

within one year {note 31) - - - - 170 170 170
Perpetual capital securities (note 30) - - - - 2,340 2,340 2,387
Long-term loans and bonds due

after one year (note 31) - - - - 20,486 20,486 20,547
Tolal - 45 - - 34,505 34,550 34,658
Al 315t December 2006
Trade and other payables {note 28) - - - - 5,166 5,166 5,166
Provisions {note 29) - - - - 45 45 45
Derivative financial liabilites (note 23) 10 89 - - - 99 29
Bank overdrafts and short-lerm loans

{note 31) - - - - 803 803 803
Long-term loans and bonds due within

one year (nole 31) 692 - - - 85 777 777
Perpetual capital securities (note 30) - - - - 2,330 2,330 2,659
Long-term loans and bonds due

after one year (note 31) - - - ~ 10,271 10.271 10,381
Total 702 89 - - 18,700 19,491 19,830
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21. Financial Instruments by Category (continued)
The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied to the lin items below:
At fair value
through Derivatives Tolal
profit used for  Available- Loansand Amortised carrying
or loss hedging for.sale receivables cosl amoun!  Fair value
HESM HKSM HX$M HK$M HKSM HKSM HKSM
Company
Assets as per balance sheet
At 315t December 2007
Available-for-sale investments (note 22) - - . 83 - - 83 83
Long-lerm receivables - - - 1 - 1 1
Trade and other receivables (note 26) - - - 239 - 239 239
Short-term deposits and bank balances
| (note 27) - - - 6 - 6 6
| Total - - 83 246 - 329 329
! At 315t December 2006
| Available-for-sale investments (note 22) - - 29 - - 29 29
' Long-term receivables - - - 1 - i 1
Trade and other receivables (note 26} - - - 139 - 139 139
Short-term deposits and bank balances
(note 27) - - - 4 - 4 4
Total - - 29 144 - 173 173
Liabilities as per balance sheet
A1 315t December 2007
Trade and other payables (note 28) - - - - 2,34 2,341 2,341
At 31st December 2006
Trade and other payables (note 28) - - - - 1,745 1,745 1,745

The fair values of financial instruments traded in active markets are based on quoted market prices al the balance sheel
date, The quoted market prices used for financial assets held by the Group are the current bid prices.

The fair values of financial instruments 1hat are not iraded in active markets are determined by using valuation
techniques such as estimalted discounted cash flows which use assumptions that are based on markel conditions existing

at each balance sheet date.

The book values of trade and other receivables, trade and other payables, provisions and short-term borrowings

approximate their fair values.

The fair values of non-current borrowings represent markel valuations sourced from the relevant financial instilutions.
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22, Available-for-sale Investments
Group Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
HK$M HKSM HKSM HKSM
Shares listed in Hong Kong 146 86 83 29
Securities listed overseas 209 71 - -
Unlisted investments 10 n - -
365 168 83 29
23. Derivative Financial Instruments
Group
2007 2006
Assels Liabilities Assets Liabililes
HKSM HKSM HKSM HK$M
Cross-currency swaps - cash flow hedges (a) 39 45 13 89
Interest-rate swaps - cash flow hedges (b) 3 - 9 -
Interest-rate swaps — fair value hedges (c) - - - 10
Forward foreign exchange contracts
— cash flow hedges {d} 10 - 6 -
interest-rate swaps — not qualifying as hedges - - 3 -
Totat 52 45 3 59
Less non-current portion:
Cross-currency swaps — cash flow hedges (a) 35 45 13 89
Interesi-rate swaps — cash flow hedges (b) 2 - 9 -
Interest-rate swaps — not qualifying as hedges - - 3 -
Forward fareign exchange contracts
- cash flow hedges {d) - - 1 -
37 45 26 89
Current portion 15 - 5 10

{a) The cross-currency swaps hedge the foreign currency risk relating to US$ note issues. Gains and losses recognised
in equily on cross-currency swaps at 315t December 2007 are expected to affect the profit and loss account in the
years to redemption of the notes (up to and including 2016).

(b) The interest rale swaps hedge the interest rate risk assaciated with lloating rate notes. Gains and losses recognised
in equity on interes! swaps at 31st December 2007 are expected to affect the prolit and loss account in the years
to redemption of the notes (up 10 and including 2009).

{¢) The interest rale swap hedged the fair value risk of a fixed rate HK$ note that was swapped into a iloating rate
loan. The note matured in November 2007,

{d) The forward foreign exchange contracts hedge the foreign currency exposure relaling to contractual obligations.
Gains and losses recognised in equity on foreign exchange contracts at 315t December 2007 are expected to affect

' the profit and loss account in 2008.
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23. Derivative Financial Instruments (continued)

Interest-rate swaps

The notional principal amounts of the outstanding interest-rate swap contracts al 315t December 2007 were HK$600

million {2006: HK$1,300 million).

At 3151 December 2007, ihe fixed interest rates varicd from 3.15% 10 3.38% (2006: 2.55% to 3.38%) and the main

floating rates were HIBOR and LIBOR {2006: same).

Cash flow hedges

For the years ended 3151 December 2007 and 31st December 2006 all cash {low hedges were effective.

24, Properties for Sale

Group
2007 2006
HKS$M HK$M
Completed properties for sale
Leasehold land -
Development cosls -
Properties under development for sale
Freehold land 257 136
Leasehold land 1,266 602
Pevelopment cosls 890 475
2,413 1,213
2,413 1,218

At 31st December 2007 and 2006, none of the properties for sale was pledged as security for the Group's long-term

loans.
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25.5tocks and Work in Progress

Group

2007 2006
HKSM HK$M
Goods for sale 1,199 1,043
Manufacturing materials 178 156
Production supplies 163 151
Work in progress 35 44
1,575 1,394

26.Trade and Other Receivables

Group Company

2007 2006 2007 2006
HK$M HK$M HK$M HKS$M
Trade debtors* 1,730 1,628 - -
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries 5 14 - -
Amounts due from subsidiary companies - - 130 124
Amounts due fram jointly controlled companies 14 13 - -
Amounts due from associated companies 9 9 - -
Other receivables 1,295 872 109 15
3,053 2,536 239 139

* As detailed in note 17, irade debtors at 31st December 2006 have been restated in regard to the acquisition of the

Alias Hotel group.

The amounts due from fellow subsidiary, subsidiary, jointly controlled and associated companies are unsecured and

interest iree. Except for amounts due from subsidiary companies which have no fixed terms of repayment, the balances

are on normal trade credit terms.

The aged analysis of trade debtors at year-end was as follows:

Group
2007 2006
HK$M HK$M
Under three months 1,622 1,555
Between three and six months 78 48
Over six months 30 25
1,730 1,628

The various Group companies have diiferent credit policics, dependent on the requirements of their markets and the

businesses in which they operate. Aged analyses of debtors are prepared and closely monitored in order lo minimise

any credit risk associated with receivables.
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26. Trade and Other Receivables (continued)

At 31st December 2007, trade deblors of HK$532 miliion {2006: HK$461 million) were past due but not impaired.
These relate to a number of independent customers for whom there is no recent history of default. The period of time
since the due date of these trade debtors is as follows:

Group
2007 2006
HKSM HKSM
Up to three monihs 440 412
Between three and six months 68 30
Qver six months 24 19
532 461

At 31st December 2007, trade debtors of HK$56 million (2006: HK$31 million) were impaired. The amount of the
provision was HK$50 million at 315t December 2007 (2006: HK$29 million). it was assessed that a portion of the trade
debtors is expecied 1o be recovered. The ageing of the impaired trade debtors is as follows:

Group
2007 2006
HK$M HK$M
Up to three months 19 7
Between three and six months 20 4
Over six months 17 20
56 n

The maximum exposure 1o credit risk at 31st December 2007 and 3¥st December 2006 is the carrying value of 1rade
debiors disclosed above. The value of rental deposits from tenants held as security against trade debtors at 31st
December 2007 was HK$1,801 million {2006: HX§1,437 million).

27. Bank Balances and Short-term Deposits

Group Company
2007 2006 2007 20006
HK$M HK$M HK$M HKSM
Bank balances and short-term deposits maturing within
three months 3,684 1,687 6 4
Short-term deposits maturing after more than three
months 127 87 - -
Security deposits on loans repayable within one year
(note 31) 170 85 - -
3,981 1,859 6 4

The effective interesi rates on short-term deposits of the Group ranged from 0,10%-6.05% (2006: 0.10%-6.79%); these
depusits have a malturity between 30-180 days (2006: 30-i180 days).

The maximum exposure to credit risk at 31st December 2007 and 31st December 2006 is the carrying value of the bank
balances and shori-term deposits disclosed above.
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28. Trade and Other Payables

Group Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
HKSM HK$M HKSM HK§M
Trade creditors 1,105 965 - -
Amounts due to intermediate holding company 97 9 18 31
Amounts due to subsidiary companies - - 2,259 1,661
Amounts due to jointly controlled companies 1 12 .- -
Amounts due 10 associated companies 51 57 - -
Interest-bearing advances from jointly controlted
companies at 1.80%-7.60% {(2006: 3.79%-5.60%]) 134 339 - -
Interest-bearing advances from associated companies
at 4.20%-5.20% (2006: 4.20%-4.90%) - 151 - -
Advances from minority interests 116 116 - -
Rental deposits from tenants 1,801 1,437 - -
Other payables 4,118 1,998 64 53
7,423 5,166 2,341 1,745

The amounts due to and advances from intermediate holding, subsidiary, jointly controlled and associated companies,
and minorily interests are unsecured and have no fixed terms of repaymeni. Apart from certain amounts due to jointly
controlled and associated companies which are interest-bearing as specified ahove, the balances are interest free,

The aged analysis of trade creditors at year-end was as follows:

Group
2007 2006
HK$M HK$M
Under three months 946 861
Between three and six months 81 85
Over six months 78 19
1,105 965

29. Provisions

Group
2007 2006
HKSM HK$M
At 1st January 45 35
Additional provisions 5 39
Change in Group - (8)
Utilised during the year (42) {21)
Al 31st December 8 45
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30. Perpetual Capital Securities

Perpetual Capital Securities, amounting to US$300 million and bearing cumulative interest at 8.84% per annum, were
issued by a wholly-owned subsidiary (the “Issuer”) on 6th May 1997. This issuc has no scheduled maturity but is
redeemable at the option of the Company or the Issuer either (i} at any time on or after 13th May 2017 or (ii) at any time
upon amendment or imposition of certain laxes and, in any case, becomes due in the event of the Company’s or the
Issuer's winding up. The Perpetual Capital Securities are unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed, on a subordinated
basis, by the Company.

The fair value of the Perpetual Capital Securities at 31st December 2007 was HK$2,387 million (2006: HK$2,659
million). The Perpetual Capital Securities are listed on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange.

31. Borrowings

Group
2007 2006
HKSM HK$M
Bank overdrafts and short-term loans - unsecured 4,078 803
Long-term loans and bonds
- al amortised cost 20,656 10,356
- at fair value - 692
20,656 11,048
24,734 11,851
Less: Security deposits®
— on loans repayable within one year (note 27) (17m (85)
- on lpans repayable after one year (553) (339)
24,011 1,427
The maturily of long-term loans and bonds is as follows:
Group
2007 2006
HKSM HK$M
(Reslated)
Bank loans (secured):
Repayable within one year 170 85
Repayable between one and two years 170 85
Repayable between two and five years 383 254
Bank loans (unsecured):
Repayable within one year - -
Repayable between one and two years 797 -
Repayable between 1wo and five years 11,879 2,693
Other borrowings {unsecured):
Repayable within one year - 692
Repayable between one and two years 600 -
Repayable between two and five years 199 798
Repayable after five years 6,458 6,441
20,656 11,048
Amount due within one year included under current liabilities (170) {777}
20,486 10,271

* The consolidated balance sheet at 31st December 2006 has been restated in order to present borrowings gross of
related securily deposits.
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31. Borrowings (continued)

The expasure of the Group’s borrowings to interest rate changes and the contractual repricing dates (after interest rate

swaps} are as lollows:

Fixed interest rate maturing in

Floating 1 year Over
interest rate or less 1.5 years 5 years Total
HKSM HKSM HKS$M HK$M HK$SM
At 315t December 2007 16,731 193 1,352 6,458 24,734
At 31st December 2006 4,174 98 1,138 6.441 11,851
The effective interest rates per annum at the balance sheet date were as follows:
2007 2006
HK$ uUs$ Others HK$ Uss Others
% % % % % %
Bank overdrafis/short-term loans 1.97.8.0  3.0-250 1.76-7.23 1.73-80 4.0-6.75 1.69-5.79
Long-term bank loans 3.83-4.20 3.83 6.72 4.12-4.43 4.18 5.02
| Onher long-term borrowings 2.75-4.93 5.63 - 2.38-493 5.63 -
[
Bank loans and other borrowings are repayable on various dates up to 2016 (2006: up 10 2016).
The carrying amounts and fair values of the non-current borrowings are as follows:
Carrying amounts Fair values
2007 2006 2007 2006
HK$M HKSM HK$M HKSM
(Restated)
Bank loans 13,229 3,032 13,229 3,032
Other borrowings 7,257 7.239 7.318 7,349
20,486 10,271 20,547 10,381

repaid on malurity.

The Group had no financial lfabilities that are reported at fair value through profit or loss at 31st December 2007, The
Group had one financial liability reported at fair value through profit or loss for the year ended 315t December 2006.
This financial liability was a HK$700 million 3 year 2.75% coupon note issued in 2004 which malured in November
2007. The amount of change, during 2006 and cumulatively 10 31st December 2006, in the fair value of the note

that was attributable to changes in the credit risk was a loss of HK$1 million and HK$2 million respectively. At 31s1
December 2006, the carrying amount of the note was HK$8 million lower than the amount contractually required to be
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31. Borrowings (continued)

The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated in the following currencies:

Group
2007 2006
HKS$M HK$M
Hong Kong dollar 20,311 1,122
US dollar 1,088 466
New Taiwan dollar 505 179
Other currencies 2,830 84
24,734 11,851
The Group has the following undrawn committed borrowing facilties:
Group
2007 2006
HK$M HKSM
Floating rate
- expiring within one year 2,687 53
- expiring beyond one year 5,986 4,307
8,673 4,838
The facilities expiring within one year are annual facilities subject to review at various dates during 2008.
32. Deferred Taxation
The movement on the net deferred tax liabililies account is as follows:
Group Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M
Al 1st January 14,109 10,935 o4 75
' Translation differences m 3 - -
Change in Group (6) (4) - -
Charged/(credited) to profit and loss account 3,486 3,196 (2) {1
Charged/{credited) to equily 12 (15) - -
! At 315t December 17,600 14,109 62 64
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Deferred tax assets are recognised for lax losses carried forward to the extent that realisation of the related tax benefits
through future taxable profits is probable. The Group has unrecognised tax losses of HK$264 million (2006: HK$708
million} to carry forward against future taxable income. These 1ax losses have no expiry date (2006: no expiry date).




32.Deferred Taxation {(continued)

The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities {prior 10 offsetting balances within the same taxation jurisdiction)

during the year is as follows:

Deferred tax liabilities

Group
Accelerated Invesiment
tax deprecialion property valuation Others Total
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 007 2006
HKSM HK$Mm HK$M HKSM HK$M HKSM HKSM HK$M
At 1st January 1,744 1,652 12,425 9,440 257 135 14,426 11,227
Translation differences 1 ) - - {2) {2) (1 (4)
Change in Group - - - - 2) - (2) -
Charged/(credited)
to profit and loss
account 106 94 3,436 2,965 (64) 124 3,478 3,203
At 31st December 1,851 1,744 15,861 12,425 189 257 17,901 14,426
Company
Accelerated Investment Defined benefit
tax depreciation property valuation retirement plans Total
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M HKSM HKSM HK$M
Al 1st January 13 1 34 48 17 16 64 75
Charged/(credited)
to profit and loss
account 1 2 14 (14) (17) 1 (2} (1
At 315t December 14 13 48 34 - 17 62 64
Deferred tax assels
Group
Assets write-down/
impairment provisions Tax losses Others Total
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
HKSM HK$M HKSM HKSM HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M
At 1st January 77 66 60 106 180 120 37 292
Translalion differences - - - {1 {1 - n
Change in Group 4 4 - - - - 4 4
{Charged)/credited
to profit and loss
account (8) 7 (16) {46) 16 46 {8) 7
(Charged)/credited 1o
equity - - - - 12) 15 an 15
Al 315t December 74 77 44 60 183 180 30 317
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32. Deferred Taxation (continued)
Deferred 1ax assets and liabilities are netled off when the taxes relate to the same taxation authority and where
offsetting is legally enforceable. The following amounts, determined after appropriate offsetting, are shown separately

on the balance sheet:

Group Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
HKSM HK$Mm HK$M HK$M
Deilerred lax assets:
- To be recovered alter more than 12 months (68) (84) - -
- To be recovered within 12 monihs (80) (75) - -
(148) (159) - -
Deferred 1ax liabilities:
- To be settled after more than 12 months 17,745 14,258 62 64
~ To be settled within 12 months 3 10 - -
17,744 14,268 62 64
17,600 14,109 62 64

33. Retirement Benefits

The Group operates various retirement benefit plans providing resignation and retirement benefits to staff on both

a contributory and non-contributory basis. The assets of the plans are adminisiered by independent trustees and

are maintained independently of the Group’s finances. The majority of the plans are of the defined benefit type and
contributions 1o such plans are made in accordance with the funding rates recommended by independent qualified
actuaries to ensure that the plans will be able to meet their liabilities as they become due. The funding rates are subject
to annual review and are determined by laking into consideration the difference between the market values of the
plans’ assets and the present value of accrued past services liabilities, on an on-going basis, as computed by

actuarial valuations.

All new employees are offered the choice of joining the retirement benefit plans or the mandatory provident fund
(“MPF) scheme. Where staff elect 1o join the MPF scheme, both the Company and staff are required to contribute
5% of the employees’ relevant monthly income {capped al HK$20,000). Staff may elect to contribute more than
the minimum as a voluniary contribution, Employees engaged outside Hong Kong are covered by appropriate

local arrangements.

Total retirement benefit costs recognised in the profit and loss account for the year ended 315t December 2007
amounted to HK$94 millian (2006: HK$115 millien), including HK$19 million (2006: HK$24 million} in respect of
defined contribution plans.

Defined benefit plans are valued using the projected unil credit melhod in accordance with HKAS 19. Principal plans
in Hong Kong were last valued by qualified actuaries, Watson Wyatt Hong Keng Limited, at 31st December 2006. The
figures disclosed at 31st December 2007 were estimated by Cannon Trustees Limited, the main administration manager
of the Group’s defined benefit plans. Pians in the United States and Taiwan are valued by independent qualified
actuaries in those countries. In addition, the Group operates a post-employment health care and life insurance benefit
plan for certain retired employees in the United States, with accounting and frequency of valuations similar to those
used for defined benefit plans.
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33. Retirement Benefits (continued)
(a) The amounts recognised in the consolidated balance sheet are as follows:
2007
Croup Company
Delined Other post- Defined
benefit  employment benefit
plans benefits Total plans
HKS$M HKS$SM HKS$M HK$M
Present value of funded obligations 1,671 - 1,671 35
Fair value of plan assets (1,770) - (1,770) (187)
929 - 99) (132)
Present value of unfunded obligations - 44 44 -
Net unrecognised actuarial gains 48 3 51 29
Net retirement benefit (assets)/liabilities (51) 47 (C}) (103)
Represented by:
Retirement benefit assets 181) - (181) (103)
Retirement benefit liabilities 130 47 177 -
(31} 47 (4) (103)
2006
Croup Company
Defined Other post- Delined
benefit  employment beneiit
plans beneflits Total plans
HKSM HKSM HK§M HK$M
Present value of funded obligations 1,512 - 1,512 51
| Fair value of plan asscts (1,555) - (1.535) (158}
| (43) - {43) (107)
Present value of unfunded obligations - 44 44 -
Net unrecognised actuarial (losses)/gains {24) 1 {23) 9
Net retiremen! benefit (assets)/liabilitics {67) 45 (22 {98)
| Represented by:
| Retirement benefit assets (187) - (187) {98)
Retirement benefit liabilities 120 45 165 -
(67} 45 (22} (38)
|
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33. Retirement Benefits (continued)
. {(b) Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

’ Croup Company
[ Other posi-
Defined benefit plans empluyment benefits Dcefined benefit plans
+ 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
' HK$M HK$M HES$M HKSM HKSM HKSM
At st January 1,512 1,418 44 41 51 39
Translation differences 3 4 1 - - -
Service cost 115 95 1 2 5 3
Interest cost 64 69 2 2 2 2
Actuarial losses/(gains) 46 58 (1) 1 4 7
Liabilities extinguished on setilements (3) {1 - - (4) -
Change in Group - (48) - - - -
Benefits paid (66) (83) (3) {2) {3} -
Al 31st December 1,671 1,512 44 a4 55 51
Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:
Group Company
Defined benelit plans Defined benefit plans
2007 20006 2007 2006
HKSM HK$M HK$M HKSM
AL 151 January 1,555 1,454 158 140
Translation differences 1 2 - -
Expected return 113 88 n 8
Actuarial gains 13 9 25 10
Assets distributed on settlements (K]] (9} 4) -
Contributions by employer 46 45 - -
Contributions by employees 9 9 - -
Change in Group - (49) - -
Benefits paid (64) (78) (3) -
At 315t December 1,770 1,555 187 158
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33. Retirement Benefits (continued)
{c) Net expenses recognised in the consolidated profit and loss account are as follows:

Group
2007 2006
Oefined  Other post- Defined  Other post-
benefit employment benelit employmeni
plans benefits Total plans beneflis Total
HKS$M HK$M HK$M HK$M HKSM HK$M
Current scrvice cost 115 1 16 95 2 97
Interest cost 64 2 66 69 2 71
Expected return on plan assets (13 - ) (88) - (88)
Past service costs recognised 3 - 3 3 - 3
Net actuarial losses recognised 4 (1) 3 7 1 8
73 2 75 86 3 9
The above net expenses were mainly included in administrative expenses in the consolidated profit and
loss account.
The actual return on defined bencfit plan assets was a gain of HK$226 million (2006: HK$181 million).
(d) The principal actuarial assumptions used are as follows:
Group
Other post-
Defined benefit plans employment benefits
2007 2006 2007 2006
HK Others HK Others us us
% % % Yo Y% %
Discount rate 1.85 3.5-3.5 4.0 3.6-5.5 5.5 5.5
Expected rate of return on plan assets 7.0 2.75-8.25 7.0 2.75-8.25 N/A N/A
Expected rate of future salary
increases 4.0 2.5-5.0 4.0 2.5-5.0 N/A N/A
Expected rate of increase in cost of
covered health care benefits N/A N/A N/A N/A 10.¢ 8.0
(e} Amounts for the current and previous four periods are as follows:
Group
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
HKSM HK$M HKSM HK$M HK$M
Defined benefit plans
- Defined benefit obligations (1,671) (1,512} (1,418) (1,300} (1,089)
- Plan assets 1,770 1,555 1,454 1.304 1,123
- Surplus 99 43 36 4 34
- Experience adjustments on plan liabilities (44) {14) (40 (132) (4)
- Experience adjustments on plan assets 113 93 37 80 147
Post-employmen| medical benefits
- Defined benefit obligations 44 44 4 62 83
- Experience adjustments on plan liabilities m 1 1 {23) -
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34.Share Capital

Company
‘A’ shares of ‘B’ shares of ‘A’ shares ‘B’ shares Total
HK$0.60 each HK$0.12 each HK$M HK$M HKSM
Authorised:
At 31st December 2007 and 2006 1,140,000,000 3,600,000,000 684 432 1,116
Issued and fully paid:
At 15 Janvary 2007 930,375,385 3,003,486,271 558 361 919
Repurchased during the year (14,810,885) - (9} (9
Al 31st December 2007 915,564,500 3,003,486,271 549 361 910

Except for voting rights, which are equal, the entitlements of ‘A" and ‘B’ shareloiders are in the proportion five to one.

During the year under review and up to the date of this repori, the Company purchased 14,810,885 ‘A’ shares and nil

‘8" shares on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. The Company did not issuc any shares during the year. Details of shares

acquired by month, excluding transaction costs of HK$3 million, are as follows:

Number Highest Lowesl

Purchased price paid price paid Total cost
Month HK$ HKS HK$M
March 5,127,500 91.30 74,25 449
April 276,500 91.00 88.90 25
May 3,028,385 90.00 87.45 268
June 5,006,000 87.95 B5.05 431
July 1,372,500 88.35 86.00 120
Total 14,810,885 1,293

130 Swire Pacilic




|
|
35. Reserves
Share Capital flavestment  Cash flow
Revenue premium  redemption  revatuvation hedge Translation
reserve account reserve reserve teserve reserve Total
HKSM HK$M HKSM HX$M HX$M HX$M HK$M
Group
Al Tst lanuary 2006 93,178 342 13 292 10 69 93,924
Profit for the year 22,566 - - - - - 22,566
2005 Final dividend {2,235} - - - - - {2,235)
2006 interim dividend (note 12} {965} - ~ - - - {965)
Net fair value gains on available-for-sale
investments
- recognised during the year - ~ - 1 - - I
- transferred to the profit and loss accounl - - - (122) - - {122)
Changes in cash flow hedges
- recognised during the year - - - - (60) - (60
- deferred tax recognised - - - - 15 - 15
- transferred to net finance charges (note 9} - ~ - - (8) - (8)
~ translerred to initial cost of
non-financial assets - - - - 13 - 13
Share of reserves in jointly conirolled and
associaled companies 207 - - 313 {307) 59 272
Translation differences - - - - - 94 G4
At 31st December 2006 112,751 342 33 484 (337} 222 113,495
Al Ist Janvary 2007
as originally stated 112,818 342 33 484 (337) 222 113,562
fair value adjusiment {note 35¢) (67) - - - - - (67)
as restaied 112,751 342 33 484 {337) 222 113,495
Profit for the year 26,260 - - - - - 26,260
2006 Final dividend {(note 12} {3,356) - ~ - - - 3,356)
2007 Interim dividend (note 12} (1,366) - - - - - (1,366)
Repurchase of the Company’s shares
- premium paid on repurchase {1,287) - - - - - (1,287)
- transferred between reserves 9) - 9 - - - -
Net fair value gains on available-for-sale
investments recognised during the year - - - 159 - - 159
Changes in cash flow hedges
- recognised during the year - - - - 102 - 102
- deferred tax recognised - - - - 12) - 2}
= wransferred 10 net finance charges {nole 9) - - - - 29) - (29)
~ translerred to initial cost of nan-financial
assels - - - - {3 - {6}
Share of reserves in jointly controlled and
associnled companies (1200 - - 65 14 262 n
Translation differences - - - - - 426 426
Al 31st December 2007 132,873 342 42 708 (268) 910 134,607
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35.Reserves (continued)

Share Capital Invesiment  Cash flow
Revenue  premium redemplion revaluation hedge
reserve account reserve reserve reserve Tolal
HK$M HK$M HKS$M HKSM HK$M HKS$M
Company
At st January 2006 14,949 342 33 61 - 15,385
Profit for the year (note 11) 4,065 - - - - 4,065
2005 Final dividend {2,235) - - - - (2,235)
2006 Interim dividend (note 12) {965) - - - - (965)
Net fair value gains on available-for-sale
investmenls
- recopnised during the year - - - (2) - (2)
- transferred 1o the profit and loss account - - - 31 - (31}
Al 3151 December 2006 15.814 342 33 28 - 16,217
Al 151 January 2007 15,814 342 KK} 28 - 16,217
Prolit for the year (note 11) 4,630 - - - - 4,630
2006 Final dividend (note 12) {3,356) - - - - (3,356}
2007 Inerim dividend (note 12) (1,366) - - - - {1,366)
Repurchase of Company's shares
— premium paid on repurchase (1,287) - - - - (1,287)
- transferred between reserves (9) - 9 - - -
Net fair value gains on available-for-sale
investmenls recognised during the year - - - 17 - 17
At 3151 December 2007 14,426 342 42 45 - 14,855

The Group revenue reserve includes accumulated losses from jointly controlled companies amounting to HK$1,837
million {2006: HK$1,926 millien) and retained revenue reserves from associated companies amounting lo HK$20,151
million (2006: HK$17,813 million).

(a) Distributable reserves of Llhe Company at 31st December 2007 amounted 10 HK$14,426 million (2006: HK$15,814

million).

(b) The revenue reserve includes HK$3,533 million (2006: HK$3,356 million) representing the proposed final dividend
for the year (note 12).

{c) During the year Cathay Pacific made certain adjustments, in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standard (“HKFRS") 3 “Business' Combinations®, 1o the fair valves of assets and liabilitics in respect of acquisitions
made in the year ended 315t December 2006 as if these adjustments had been recognised at the date of
acquisition. The impact of these adjustments decreases the Group’s share of net assels in associaled companies
and its revenue reserve by HK$67 million at 31st December 2006,
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36. Minority Interests

GCroup
007 2006
HKSM HK$M
At ist January 610 5,929
Translation differences 43 6
Change in Group - {5.418)
Net capital contribution from/(repaid to) minority interesls 484 (2)
Share of net {air value gains on availahle-for-sale investments 1 (5}
Share of profits less losses for the year 127 20
Dividends paid and payable (104) (107)
Others - 4
Al 31st December 1,161 610
37. Commitments
Group
2007 2000
HK$M HK$M
Outstanding commitments ai the year-end in respect of
{a) Froperty, plant and equipment
Contracted for 7,969 635
Authorised by Directors but not contracted for 2,650 6,099
(b} Invesiment properties
Contracted for 888 2,360
Authorised by Directors but not contracted for 1,859 284
Outstanding commitments al the year-end in respecl of the Croup’s interests in
jointly controlled companies
Contracled for 203 -
Authorised by Directors but not contracted for 4,685 2,652
The Company had no commitmenis in respect of the above items al the year-end {2006: same).
38. Contingencies
Group Company
2007 2006 2007 2000
HK$M HK$M HKSM HKSM
{a} Guarantees provided in respect of bank loans and
other liabilities of
Subsidiary companies - - 23,101 13,552
lointly controlled companies 1,172 1,188 1171 1,187
1172 1,188 24,272 14,739
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38. Contingencies (continued)

(b)

(c}

Conlingent tax liability

Certain wholly-owned Group companies have been unable to finalise their liability 1o profits tax in respect of
the years 1997/98 to 2003/04 inclusive as a consequence of queries raised by the Hong Kong Inland Revenue
Department (IRD). These queries relate to the deductibility, in the assessment of profits tax, of interest on
horrowings of those companies during the periods under review.

A number of discussions have taken place between the companies and the IRD to understand the precise nature
of the IRD queries. However, at this stage there is insufficient information available to reliably determine the
ultimate outcome of the IRD"s review with an acceplahle degree of certainty. Consequently no provision has been
recognised in these accounts for any amounts that may fall due in regard to these queries.

The IRD has issued Notices of Assessment totalling HK$440 million, the estimated contingent liability, in respect
of their queries for the years under review. The companies have objected to these assessments and the IRD has
agreed to unconditional holdover of the assessments.

Cathay Pacific Airways

Cathay Pacific Airways is lhe subject of investigalions in respect of its air cargo operations by the competition
authorities of various jurisdictions including the United States, the European Union, Canada, Australia, Switzerland
and New Zealand, Cathay Pacific Airways has been cooperating with the authorities in their investigations. The
investigations are focused on issues relating to pricing and competition. Cathay Pacific Airways is represented by
legal counsel in connection with the investigations.

Cathay Pacific Airways announced on 24th December 2007 that it had received a Statement of Objections from
the European Commission with regard 10 its air cargo operations, Cathay Pacific Airways is reviewing the Statement
of Objections with legal counsel and will make a timely response to it.

Cathay Pacific Airways has been named as a defendant in a number of civil class action complaints in the United
States, Canada and Australia alleging violations of local competition laws arising from its conduct relating to air
cargo operations. In addition, civil class action claims have been filed in the United States alleging violations of
competition laws arising from Cathay Pacific Airways’ conduct relating o certain of its passenger operations.
Cathay Pacific Airways is represented by legal counsel in the actions filed in the United States, Canada and
Australia, and is defending those actions,

The investigations and civil actions are ongoing and the outcomes are subject to uncertainties. Cathay Pacific
Airways is not in a posilion at the present time to assess any potential liabilities and cannot therefore make

any provisions.
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39. Operating Lease Arrangements
The Group acts as hoth lessor and lessee under operating leases. Details of the Group's commitments under non-

cancellable operating leases are sel out as follows:

(a)

Lessor

The Group leases out land and buildings and vessels under operating leases. The leases for land and buildings

typically run for a period of three to six years. The turnover-related rental income received during the year

amounted to HK$218 million (2006: HK$137 million). The leases for vessels typically run for an initial period of six

months to five years with an option to renew the lease after that date, at which time all terms are renegotiated.

AL 31st December, the future aggregate minimum lease receipts under non-cancellable operating leases receivable

by the Group were as lollows;

Group Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
HKSM HK$M HKS$M HKSM
Land and buildings:
Nat later than one year 4,167 3,425 2 8
Later than one year but not later than five years 8,858 6,981 -
Later than five years 1421 B41 - -
14,446 11,247 2 9
Vessels:
Not later than one year 2,204 1,129 - -
Later than one year but nol ater than five years 2,101 1,166 - -
Later than five years 2,184 268 - -
6,489 2,563 - -
20,935 13,810 2 9
Assels held for deployment in operating leases at 31st December were as lollows:
Group Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
Investment Investment Investment  Investment
properties Vessels  praperties Vessels  properties  properiles
HKSM HK$M HK$M HK$M HKSM HK$M
Cost or [air value 115,284 7,146 96,862 6,699 1,274 374
Less: accumulated depreciation - {1,764) - (1,694) - -
Nel book value 115,284 5,382 96,862 5,005 1,274 374
Depreciation for the ycar - 283 - 229 - -
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39. Operating Lease Arrangements (continued)

(b) Lessee
The Group leases fand and buildings, vessels and other equipment under operating leases. These leases typically
run for an initial period of one to nine years with an option to renew the lease after that date, at which time all
terms are renegotiated. The turnover-related rentals paid during the year amounted to HK$13 million {2006: HK$12

million).

At 315t December, the future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases payable
- by the Group were as follows:

Group
2007 2006
HKSM HK$M
! Land and buildings:
Not later than one year 213 186
Later than one year but not later than five years 269 166
Later than five years 54 27
536 379
Vessels:
Not later than one year B3 10
Later than one year but not later than five years 282 -
Later than five years 613 -
978 10
Other equipment:
Not later than one year 18 16
Later than one year but not later than five years 4 i
22 17
1,536 406

The Company did nol have any material operating lease commitments at 31st December 2007 and 2006.
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40.Related Party Transactions

There are agreements for services (“Agreements®), in respect of which John Swire & Sons (HK) Limited (*)SSHK")
provided services to various companies in the Group and under which costs were reimbursed and fees payable.

In return for these services, ISSHK received annual fees calculated (A) in the case of the Company, as 2.5% of

the dividends receivable from associated and jointly controlled companies of the Company, where there were no
agreements for services with such companies, and (B} in the case of its subsidiary and associated companies with
such agreements, as 2.5% of their relevant consolidated profits before taxation and minority interests after certain
adjustments. The Agreements took effect from 1st January 2005 and terminated on 31st December 2007. The
agreements were renewed on 1st October 2007 and will last for another three years on the same terms and conditions
commencing on Ist January 2008. For the year ended 31st December 2007, service fees payable amounted to HK$155
million (2006: HK$125 million). Expenses of HK$87 million (2006: HK$71 million) were reimbursed at cost; in addition,
HK5140 million (2006: HK$127 million) in respect of shared administrative services was reimbursed.

The above transactions (except shared administrative services) are continuing connected transactions which give rise to
disclosure obligations under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The following is a summary of other significant transactions between the Group and related parties, in addition to
those disclosed elsewhere in the accounts, which were carried out in the normal course of the Group's business. These
transactions were not connected transactions or continuing connected transactions under the Listing Rules.

Jointly contrelled  ~  Associated Fellow Intermediate
companies companies subsidiaries holding company

2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
Notes HKSM  HKSM  HKSM  HKSM  HKSM  HKSM  HK$M  HK$M

Revenue from (a)
- Sales of beverage drinks - - 15 14 - - - -
- Rendering of services 29 28 7 8 - - - -
Purchases of beverage cans {a) 203 168 - - - - - -
Purchases of other goods {a) n 32 m 103 - - - -
Purchases of services {a) - - 2 2 7 7 - -
Rental revenue 1)} - ) 7 4 7 6 40 30
Interest income (c) 8 9 30 33 - - - -
Interest charges (c) 8 n - - - - - -
Disposal of investment

properties - - - - - - - 372

Notes:

{a) Sales and purchases of goods and rendering of services to and from related parties were conducied in the normal
course of business at prices and on terms no less than those charged te/by and contracted with other customers/
suppliers of the Group.

(%) The Swire Properties group has, in the normal course of its business, entered into lease agreements with related
parlies to lease premises for varying periods up to six years. The leases were entered into on normal commercial

terrns.

(¢) Loans advanced to jointly controlled and associated companies at 315t December 2007 are disclosed in notes 19
and 20 respectively, whilst advances from jointly contrelled and associated companies are disclosed in note 28.
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40.Related Party Transactions (continued)

The Company’s subsidiary, Swire Coca-Cola Beverages Xiamen Limited (*SCCXM"), extended a loan facility of not
excecding RMB40 million to each of Swire BCD Co. Ltd., Hangzhou BC Foods Co. Lid., Swire Coca-Cola Beverages
Hefei Lid., Nanjing BC Foods Co. Ltd., Xiamen Huarong Foods Co. Ltd., Swire Linx Trading (Shenzhen) Company
Limited, Taikoo (Guangzhou) Sugar Limited and Sunshine Melody (Guangzhou) Properties Management Limited, all

being subsidiaries of the Company. As security for these loans, another subsidiary of the Company, Swire Beverages
Limited, entered into a Pledge Agreement with SCCXM on 4th January 2006 to pledge the dividends receivable from
SCCXM. These loans and the transaction under the pledge agreement were nol connected transactions which give rise

to any disclosure or other obligations under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Amounts due 10 the intermediate holding company at 315t December 2007 are disclosed in note 28. These balances
arise in the normal course of business, are non-interest-bearing and have no fised settlement dates.

Remuneration of key management is disclosed in note 8.

41. Notes to the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

{a) Reconciliation of operating profit to cash generated from operations

Group

2007 2006

HKS$M HK$M

Operating profit 26,579 23,513
Profit on disposal of invesiment properties 90) -
Change in fair value of investment properties (19,446) (17,045)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 683 562
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment (215} {(78)
Amortisation of deferred expenditure 23 23
Amortisation of leaseheld land and land use rights 5 1
Amortisation of intangible assets 13 12
Prolit on sale of shares in jointly controlled and associated companies (1,122} (1,339
Profit on disposal of available-lor-sale investments - {201)
Other items (2) 22
Operating profit before working capital changes 6,428 5,470
Decrease in long-lerm receivables 3 6
Increase in properties for sale (566) {91)
(Increase)/decrease in stocks and work in progress {190) 42
Increase in trade and other receivables (354) (97)
Increase in trade and other payables 559 418
Cash generaled from operations 5,880 5,748
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41. Notes to the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (continued)

{b) Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Group
2007 2006
HK$M HK$M
Properties 6,133 173
Plant and machinery 548 243
Vessels 1,226 1,255
Tolal 7,907 1,671

The above figures do not include interest capitalised on property, plant and equipment.

{c) Analysis of changes in financing during the year

Group

Loans, bonds and

perpetual capilal securities

Minorily interests

2007 2006 2007 2006

HK$M HKSM HK$M HK$M

At 1st January 13,752 7,434 610 5,929
Neit cash inflow/(outflow) from financing 12,815 6,650 484 (2)
Acquisition of subsidiaries - - - (5,416}
Minority interests’ share of profits less losses - - 1227 20
Dividends paid to minority interests - - (104) (107)
Securily deposits placed 1426) (424) - -
Security deposits uplifted 128 43 - -
Other non-cash movements 46 49 44 5
Al 31st December 26,315 13,752 1,161 610
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42.Business Combinations

(a) Acquisition of trade and assets of Salvin Far East Pte Limited
Swire Pacific Offshore acguired the trade and assets of Salvin Far East Ple Limited, a Singapore-based company, on
1st August 2007. The acquisition included one completed vessel and three others under construction, of which two
were delivered before year-end. Details of the net assels acquired are as follows:

Fair value
HKSM
Plant and machinery (seismic equipment) 70
Vessel 39
Vessels under construction® 52
Fair value of net assets acquired 161
Purchase consideration:
Cash paid on dale of acquisition 161
Cansideration payable on delivery of vessels under consiruction at date of acquisition
- Cash paid before year-end 180
~ Amount payable at year-end 127
Total purchase consideration 468

* The fair value of vessels under construction represents payments on account made by the suller up 1o the date of acquisition.
.
{b) Acquisition of trade and assels of the Aven Gorge Hotel
The Property Division acquired the trade and assets (excluding stocks and cash) of the Avon Gorge Holtel in the
UK on 3rd September 2007. Details of the nei assets acquired are as follows:

Fair value
HK$M
Property, plant and equipment
— Hotel property and hotel plant 209
- Furniture and fittings 22
~ Staff accommodation property 13
Fair value of net assets acquired 244
Purchase consideration:
Cash paid 244

These acquisitions contributed HK$73 million to turnaver in 2007, Had these acquisitions occurred on 1st January
2007 it is estimated they would have contributed an additional HK$110 million to turnover in the year. The actual
contributions in the year, and on an annualised basis, from these acquisitions are not material to the Group’s profit.

43. Immediate and Ultimate Holding Company
The immediate holding company is John Swire & Sons {HK) Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong. The
ultimate holding company is lohn Swire & Sons Limiled, a company incorporitted in the United Kingdom.
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Principal Accounting Policies

1. Basis of Accounting

The accounls have been prepared in accordance with FHong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRS"). The
accounts have been prepared under the historical cost convenlion as modified by 1he revaluation of certain investment
properties and available-for-sale invesiments, which are carried at fair value.

2. Basis of Consolidation
The consolidated accounts for the year ended 31st December 2007 incorporate the accounts of Swire Pacific Limited, its
subsidiary companies (together referred to as the "Group”) and the Group’s interest in joinily controlled and associated

companies.

3. Subsidiary Companies

Subsidiary companies are all entities (including special purpose entities) over which the Group has the power to govern
the financial and operating policies, generally accompanying a shareholding of more than one half of the voting rights.
The existence and effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered when
assessing whether the Group controls another entity.

The results of subsidiary companies are included in the consolidated profit and loss account and minerity interests
therein are disclosed scparately as a component of the consolidated profit afler 1ax. Results atiributable to subsidiary
company interests acquired or disposed of during the year are included from the date on which control is transferred to
the Group or to the date that control ceases.

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for the acquisition of subsidiary companies by the Group. The
cost of an acquisition is measured as the fair value of the assets given, equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred
or assumed at the date of exchange, plus costs directly atiributable to the acquisition, Identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date, irrespective of the extent of any minorily interests. The excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair
value of the Group's share of the identifiable net assets acquired is recarded as goodwill. If the cost of acquisition is
less than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary company acquired, the difference is recognised directly in the
profit and loss account,

intercampany transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between Group companies are eliminated
on consolidation, Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiary companies have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopied by the Group.

Minority interests in the balance sheet comprise the outside sharcholders’ proportion of the net assets of subsidiary
companies. The Group applies a policy of trealing transactions with minority interests as fransactions with parties
external to the Group. Disposals to minority interests result in gains and losses for the Group that are recorded in
the profit and loss account. Purchases from minorily interests resull in goodwill, being the difference between any
consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary company.

In the Company’s balance sheet its investments in subsidiary companies, are stated al cost less provision for any

impairment losses. Income from subsidiary companies is recognised by the Company on the basis of dividends reccived

and receivable,
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4. Jointly Controlled and Associated Companies

lointly controlled companies are those companies held for the long-term, over which the Group is in a position to
exercise joint control with ather venturers in accordance with contractual arrangements, and where none of the
participating parties has unilatera} control over the economic activity of the joint venture,

Associated companies are those companies over which the Group has significant influence but not control or joint
control, over its management including participation in the financial and operating palicy decisions, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voling rights.

Investments in jointly controlled and associated companies are accounted for by the equity method of accounting and
are initially recognised at cost. The excess of the cost of investment in jointly controlled and associated companies over
the fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable net assets acquired represents goodwill. The Group’s invesiments
in jointly controlled and assaciated companies include goodwill {net of any accumulated impairment lasses) arising on
acquisitions.

The Group's share of its jointly controlled and associated companies’ post-acquisition profits or losses is recagnised

in the consolidated profit and loss account, and its share of post-acquisition movements in reserves is recognised in
reserves. The cumulative posl-acquisition movements are adjusted against the carrying amount of the investment. When
the Group's interest, including any other unsecured receivables in a jointly controlled or an associated company is
reduced 10 nil, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on
behalf of the jointly controlled or associated company.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its jointly controlled and associated companies are eliminated
to the extent of the Group’s interest in these companies. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of jointly controlled and associated
companies have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the: policies adopted by the Group.

In the Company’s balance sheet, its investments in jointly controlled and associated companies are stated at cost less
provision for any impairment losses. ncome {rom joinily controlled and associated companies is recognised by the
Company on the basis of dividends received and receivable.

5. Foreign Currency Translation

(3) Functional and presentation currency
items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the enlity operates {"the functional currency”). The consolidated accounts
are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are translated inlo the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting fromn the setilement of such Iransactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are recognised in the profil and loss account, except when deferred in equily as qualifying cash flow hedges or
qualifying net investment hedges.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised direcily in equity, any translation difference on that

gain or loss is recognised directly in equity. When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in the profit
and loss account, any translation difference on that gain or loss is recognised in the profit and loss account.
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(c) Group companies
The results and financial position of all the Group entities (none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy} that have a funclional currency different from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(i) Assets and liabilities for each halance sheet presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of that
balance sheet;

(i) Income and expenses for each profit and loss account are translated al average exchange rates (unless this
average is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and cxpenses are translated at the dates of the transactions); and

(i) All resulting exchange differences are recognised as a separate component of equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translaticn of the net investment in foreign entities, and of
borrowings and other currency instruments designated as hedges of such investments, are laken to equity. When

a foreign operation is sold, such exchange differences are recognised in the profit and loss account as part of the
gain or loss on sale.

GCoodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition af a forcign entity are treatcd as assets and liabilities
of the foreign entity and translated at the closing rate.

6. Investment Properties

Property that is held for fong-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the
Group, is classified as investment property. investment property comprises land held under operating leases and
buildings held under finance leases. Land held under operaling leases is classified and accounted for as invesiment
property when the rest of the definition of investment property is met.

Investment properties are carried at fair values and are valued at least annually by independent valuers. The valuations
are performed in accordance with the Valuation Standards on Properties issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors
and are on an open market basis, related to individual properties, and separate values are not attributed to land and
buildings. Invesiment property that is being redeveloped for continuing use as invesiment properly continues to be
measured at fair value. Changes in fair values are recopnised in the profit and loss account.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying amount only when it is probable that future cconomic benefits
associated with the item will flow (o the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and
maintenance costs are expensed in the profit and loss account during the financial period in which they are incurred.

If an invesiment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified as property, plant and equipment, and its fair value
at the date of reclassification becomes its cost for accounting purposes. Property that is being constructed or developed
for future use as investment property is classified as properly, plant and equipment and stated al cost until construction
or development is complete, at which time it is reclassified and subsequently accounted for as investment property.
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7. Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
Cost includes expenditure that is directly atiributable to the acquisition of the items, Cost may also include transfers
from equity of any gains/losses on qualifying cash (low hedges of foreign currency purchases of property, plant

and equipment. Subsequent cosls are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and
the cost of the item can he measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are expensed in the profit and loss
account during the financial period in which they are incurred.

With the exception of freehold land, all other assets under this category are depreciated at rates sufficient to write off
their original costs to estimated residual values using the straight-line method over their anticipated useful lives in the

following manner:

Properties 2% 1o 5% per annum
Plant and machinery 7% to 34% per annum
Vessels 4% 10 7% per annum

The assets’ expected useful lives and residual values are regularly reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each balance
sheet date 10 lake into accoum operational experience and changing circumstances.

Al each balance sheet date, both internal and external sources of information are considered to assess whether there
is any indication that the assels are impaired. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated and where relevant, an impairment lass is recognised to reduce the asset to its recoverable amoum. Such

impairment losses are recognised in the profit and loss account.

8. Intangible Assets

{a) Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair valure of the Group's share of the net
identifiable assets of the acquired subsidiary, jointly controlled and associated companies at the date of acquisition.
Goodwill is treated as an asset of the enlity acquired and where attributable to a foreign entity will be translated at
the closing rate.

Goodwill on acquisition of a subsidiary company is included in intangible assets. Goodwill on acquisitions
of associated and jointly controlled companies is included in investments in associated and jeintly controlled
companies respectively,

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for

the purpose of impairment testing, which is performed annually. Impairment losses recognised on goodwill are

not reversed.

Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.
{b) Computer software

Acquired computer software licences arc capilalised on the basis of the cosls incurred to acquire and bring to use
the speciflic software. These costs are amortised over heir estimated useiul lives (three to five years).
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Costs associated with maintaining computer soflware programmes are recognised as an expense as incurred. Costs
that are directly associated with the development of identifiable and unique software products controlled by the
Group, and that will probably generate economic benefits exceeding costs heyond one year, are recognised as
intangible assets. Direct costs include the software development employee costs and an appropriate portion of
relevant overheads.

Computer software costs recognised as assets are amortised over their eslimated useful lives.

9. Impairment of Assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation. These assets are at least tested annually for
impairment and are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amournt may not be recoverahle. Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the assel’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable ameunt. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units}.

10. Financial Assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and receivables, held-to-maturily invesiments, and available-for-sale investments. The classification depends on
the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired. Manapgement determines the classification of its financial
assets at initial recognition and re-evaluates this designation at every reporting date.

(a) Financial assets al fair value through profil or loss
This category has two sub-categories: financial assets held for trading, and financial assets designated at fair value
through profit or loss at inception. A financial asset is classified in this category if acquired principally for the
purpose of selling in the shori-term or if so designated by management. Derivatives are also calegorised as held for
trading unless they are designated as hedges. Assets in this category are classified as current if they are either held
for trading or are expected to be realised within 12 months of the balance sheet date.

(b) Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with iixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. They arise when the Group provides money, poods or services directly 1o a debtor with no
intention of trading the receivable. They are included in current assets, except for malurities greater than 12 months
after the balance sheel date where these are classified as non-current assets.

(c) Held-to-maturity investments
Held-to-maturily investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed
maturities that the Group's management has the posilive intention and ability to hold to maturity. During the year,
the Group did not held any investments in this category.

(d) Available-for-sale investments
Available-for-sale investments are non-derivatives that are either designaled in this category or not classified in
any of the ather categories. They are included in non-current assets unless management intends to dispose of the
investment within 12 months of the balance sheel date,
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Purchases and sales of financial assels are recognised on their trade-date - the date on which the Group commits Lo
purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial
assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the investments have expired or have been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially ail risks
and rewards of ownership. Available-for-salc investments and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and receivables and held-to-maturity investments are carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. Realised and unrealised gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of the
“financial assels at fair value through profit or loss” category are included in the profit and loss account in the period in
which they arise. Unrealised gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of available-for-sale investments are
recognised in equity. When available-for-sale investments are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments
are included in the profit and loss account as gains and losses from investments.

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets (such as publicly traded derivatives, and trading and
available-for-sale investments) is based on quoted market prices at the balance sheet date. The quoted market price
used for financial assets held by the Group is the current bid price.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market {for example, over-the-counter derivatives)
is determined by using valuation techniques. The Group uses a variety of methods and makes assumptions that are
based on market conditions existing at each balance sheet date. Other techniques, such as estimated discounted cash
flows, are used to determine fair value for the remaining financial instruments. The nominal value less estimated credit
adjustments of trade receivables is assumed to approximate their fair value.

The Group assesses at cach balance sheet date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. In the case of equity investments classified as available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged
decline in the (air value of the investment below its cost is considered in determining whether the investments are
impaired. If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale invesiments, the cumulative loss - measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that investment previously
recognised in the profit and loss account - is removed from equity and recognised in the profit and loss account.
Impairment losses recognised in the profit and loss account on equity instruments are not reversed through the profit
and loss account.

11. Derivative Financial instruments and Hedging Activities

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured at their fair value. The method of recognising the resulting gain or loss depends on whether the derivative
is designated as a hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being hedged. The Group designates certain
derivatives as either: (1) hedges of the fair value of recognised assets or liabilities or a firm commitment (fair value
hedge); (2) hedges of highly probable forecast transactions (cash flow hedges); or (3) hedges of net investments in
foreign operations.

The Group documents at the inception of the transaction the relationship between hedging instruments and hedged
items, as well as its risk management objective and strategy {or undertaking various hedge transactions. The Group also
documents its assessment, both at hedge inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives that are used in
hedging transactions are highly effective in ofisetting changes in fair values or cash ilows of hedged items.
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(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Fair value hedge

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges are recorded in

the profit and loss account, together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability that are
attributable to the hedged risk. The Group applies fair value hedge accounting for hedging fixed interest risk on
borrowings and foreign exchange risk, The gain or loss relating to the cffective portion of interest rate swaps
hedging fixed rate borrowings is recognised in the profit and loss account within finance income or finance costs.
The gain or loss relating to forward foreign exchange contracts, whether effective or ineffective, is recognised in
the profit and loss account within other net gains.

If the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, the adjustment to the carrying amount of a hedge
item for which the effective interest method is used is amortised through the profit and loss account over the
pertod to maturity.

Cash flow hedge

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges
is recognised in Vequity. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the profit
and loss account,

Amounts accumulated in equity are recycled in the profit and loss account in the periods when the hedged item
will aifect profit or loss (for instance when the forecast sale that is hedged takes place). The gain or loss relating
to the effective portion of interest rate swaps hedging variable rate borrowings is recognised in the profit and

foss account within finance costs. The gain or loss relating to the effective portion of forward foreign exchange
contracts hedging import purchases is recognised in the profit and loss account within cost of sales. The gain or
loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised in the profit and loss account within other pet gains. However,
when the forecast transaction that is hedged results in the recognition of a non-financial asset {for example,
inventory or property, plant and equipment) or a non-financial liability, the gains and losses previously deferred in
equity are transferred from equity and included in the initial measurement of the cosl of the asset or liability.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or when a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting,
any cumulative gain or loss existing in equity at that time remains in equity and is recognised when the forecast
transaction is ultimately recognised in the profit and Joss account. When a forecast transaction is no longer
expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss that was reported in equity is immediately transferred to the profit

and loss account.

Net investment hedge

Hedges of net investments in foreign operations are accounted for similarly to cash flow hedges. Any gain or loss
on the hedging instrument relating to the effective portion of the hedge is recognised in equity; the gain or loss
relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the profit and loss account.

Gains and losses accumulated in equity are included in the profit and lass account when the foreign operation is
disposed of.

Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting

Certain derivative instruments do not qualify for hedge accounting. Changes in the fair value of any derivative
instruments that do not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised immediately in the praofit and Joss account.
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The fair value of interest rate swaps is calculated as the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The fair
value of forward foreign exchange conlracts is determined using forward exchange markei rates at the balance
sheet date,

12. Deferred Expenditure
Expenditure incurred in leasing the Group’s property during consiruction is deferred and amortised on a straight-line
basis to the profit and loss account upen occupation of the property over a period not exceeding the terms of the lease.

13. Stocks and Work in Progress

Stocks and work in progress are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost represents average unit cosl
and net realisable vafue is determined on the basis of anticipated sales proceeds less estimated selling expenses, The
costs of finished goods and work in progress comprise direct material and labour costs and an appropriate proporticn
of production overhead expenses less provisions for foreseeable losses. Cost includes the transfer from equity of any

gains/losses on qualifying cash flow hedges relating to purchase of raw materials or stocks.

14. Properties Under Development for Sale
Properties under development for sale are included under current assets and comprise (rechold and leasehold land,
construction costs and interesl costs capitalised, less provisions for passible losses.

15. Accounts Receivable

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less provision for impairment. A provision for impairment of trade and other receivables is
established when there is objeclive evidence that the Group will not be able to cotlect all amounts due according to the
original terms of receivables. Accounts receivable in the balance sheet are stated net of such provision.

16. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, amounts repayable on demand from banks and financial institutions
and short-term highly fiquid investments which were within three months of maturity when acquired, less bank
overdrafts.

17. Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred for those not held at fair value through
profit or loss. Transaction costs are incremental costs that arg directly attributable to the initiation of the borrowings,
including fees and commissions paid to agents, advisers, brokers and dealers, lavies by regulatory agencies and
securities exchanges, and transfer 1axes and duties. Borrowings are subsequently staled either at amortised cost with
any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value recognised in the profit and
loss account over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method or at fair value through profit or

loss. Borrowings are classified as at fair value through profit or loss where they are economically related 1o a derivalive
instrument which is measured at fair value.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the halance sheel date,

For disclosure purposes, the fair value of horrowings stated at amortised cost is estimated by discounting the future
contractual cash flows at the current market interest rate that is available to the Group for similar financial instruments.
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18. Borrowing Costs

Interest costs incurred are charged to the profit and loss account except for those interest charges attributable 1o the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets (i.e. assets thal necessarily 1ake a substamtial periad of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale} which are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets, Capitalisation of
such borrowing costs ceases when the asscts are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

19. Operating Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases, Receipts or payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives paid to lessees or received
from the lessors) are recognised as an income or expense in the profit and loss account on a straight-line basis over the
period of 1he iease.

20. Deferred Taxation

Deferred 1axation is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the accounts. However, if the deferred tax arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that, at the time of the recognition
has no impact on taxable nor accounting prafit or loss, it is not recognised. Tax rates enacted or substantially enacted
by the balance sheet date are used to determine deferred taxation.

Deferred 1ax assels are recognised to the extent that it is probable thal future taxable profit will be available against
which the lemporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred taxation is pravided on temporary differences arising on invesiments in subsidiary, joinily controlled and

associated companies, except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary diiference is controlled by the Group
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable luture.

21. Revenue Recognition
Provided the collectibility of the related receivable is reasonably assured, revenue is recognised as follows:

{a) Sales of goods are recognised when the goods are delivered 1o the customer and the customer has accepted the
related risks and rewards of ownership.

{b) Sales of services are recognised when the services are rendered.

{c) Sales of properties are recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the properties are
transferred to the buyers.

td} Charter hire income is recognised over ihe period ol the expected utilisation of the vessels,
{e) Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the period of the icase.

{f) Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest method.
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Principal Accounting Policies

22.Related Parties

Related parties are individuals and companies, including subsidiary, fellow subsidiary, jointly controlled and associated
companies and key management (including close members of their families), where the individual, company or Group

has the ability, directly or indirectly, 10 control the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in

making financial and operating decisions.

23. Retirement Benefits

The Group operates a number of defined benefit and defined contribution retirement benefit schemes for its employees,
the assets of which are generally beld in separate trustee-administered funds. The schemes are generally funded

by payments from the relevant Group companies and, in some cases, employeus themselves, taking account of the
recommendations of independent qualified aciuaries.

A defined benefit pfan is a retirement plan that defines an amount of benefil that an employee will receive on
retirement, usually dependent on one or more factars such as age, years of service and compensation. A defined
coniribution plan is a retirement plan under which the Group pays fixed contributions into a separate entity which
are invested in a manner determined by the employee, in a designaied range of funds, The Group has no legal or
constructive obligations to pay further contributions.

The Group’s contributions to the defined contribution schemes are charged to the profit and loss account in the period
to which the contributions relate.

For defined benefit schemes, retirement benefit costs are assessed using the projected unit credit method. Under

this method, the cost of providing retirement benefits is charged to the profit and loss account so as to spread the
regular cost over the service lives of employees. The retirement benefit obligation is measured as the present value of
the estimated future cash outflows using market yields on Exchange Fund Notes in Hong Kong and corporate bonds
overseas which have terms to malurity approximating the terms of the related liability. Plan assets are measured at fair
value. Cumulative unrecognised net actuarial gains and losses at the previous financial year-end, to the extent that the
amount is in excess of 10% of the greater of the present value of the defined benefit obligations and the fair value of
the plan assets, are recognised over the expected average remaining working lives of ihe employees participating in the
plan, Past service costs are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the average period until the benefits
become vested.

24. Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it
is more likely than noi that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount has been
reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar ohligations, the likelihood thal an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

25.Dividend Distribution
Final dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised as a liability in the Group's accounts in the
period in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders.

26.Segment Reporting
In accordance with the Group’s internal financial reporting, the Group has determined that business segments be
presented as the primary reporting format and geographical segments as the secondary reporling format.
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Principal Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled and
Associated Companies and Investments

Showing proportion of capital owned at 31st December 2007
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PROPERTY DIVISION
Subsidiary companies:
Incorporated in Hong Kong:
Cathay Limited 100 - 100 } 807 sharcs of HK$10 Property investment
Cityplaza Holdings Limited 100 - 100 | 100 shares of HK$10 Property investment
Coventry Estates Limited 100 - 100 | 4 shares of HK$10 Property investment
Festival Walk Holdings Limited 100 - 100 | 100,000 shares of HK$10 | Property Investment
Island Delight Limited 100 - 100 |1 share of HK$1 Praperty trading
One Queen’s Road East Limited 100 - 100 | 2 shares of HK$1 Property investment
Oriental Landscapes Limited 100 - 100 | 50,000 shares ol HK$10 Landscaping services
Pacific Place Holdings Limited 100 - 100 | 2 shares of HKS 1 Property investment
Redhill Properties Limited 100 - 100 | 250,000 shares of HK§1 Propertly investment
Swire Properties Limited 100 100 - |612,036,542 shares of Holding company
HKS$1
Swire Properties Projects Limited 100 - 100 |2 shares of HKS) Project management
Swire Properlies Real Estate Agency Limited 100 - 100 |2 shares of HK$10 Real estate agency
Swire Properties Management Limited 100 - 100 | 2 shares of HK$10 Property management
Taikoe Place Holdings Limited 100 - 100 |2 shares of HK$1 Propeny investment
One island East Limited (formerly known as 100 - 100 |2 shares of HK$1 Property investment
Winimak International Company Limited)
Keen Well Holdings Limited 100 - 100 |1 share of HK$1 Propeny trading
Incorporated in Mainland China:
{Sino-foreign joint venture)
TaiKoo Hui [Guangzhou) Developmen Co. 97 - 97 |Registered capiial of Property investment
Lid. {MB1,334,000.000
(Wholily foreign owned enterprises)
Beijing Sanlitun North Praperty Management 80 - 80 |Registered capilal Property investment
Co. Lid. RMB1,042,000,000
Beijing Sanlitun South Property Management 80 - B0 |Regisitered capital Property investment
Co. Lid. RMB1,248,000,000
Beijing Sanlitun Hotel Management Co. Lid. 100 - 100 | Registered capital Hotel investiment
RMB200,000,000
Sunshine Melody (Guangzhou)} Propertics 100 - 100 |Repistered capital Property investment
Management Ltd. RMB195,000,000

Noies:

(1} This table lists the principal subsidiary, jointly controlled and associated companies of the Group which, in the
opinion of the Directors, materially contribute 1o the net income of the Group or hold a material portion of the
assets, or liabilities of the Group. To give full details of these companies would, in the opinion of the Directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.

(2) Unless otherwise siated, the principal country of operation of each subsidiary is the same as its country of
incorporation. The activities of ship owning and operating are international, and are not attributable lo a principal
couniry of operation.

{3) * Group interest held through jointly controlled and associated companies.

{4) * Companies not audited by PricewalerhouscCoopers. These companies account for approximately 21.6% of

attributable net assets at 31st December 2007.
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Principal Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled and Associated Companies and Investments
Showing proportion of capital owned at 31st December 2007

PROPERTY DIVISION (continued)
Subsidiary companies (continued):

Incorporated in the United States:
Swire Developmem Sales Inc.

Swire Pacific Holdings Inc.
(see also Beverages division)

Swire Realty Inc,

Swire Properties One Inc.

FTL/AD Limited

Incorporated in the Brilish Virgin Islands:
Charming Grace Limited

Swire and Island Communication
Developments Limited

Boom View Holdings Limited
tncorporated in the Uniled Kingdom:
New Light Hotels Limited

fointly controlled companies:
Incorporated in Hong Kong:

Hareton Limited

Newfoundworld Investment Holdings Limited
Incorporated in the United States:

Swire Brickell Key Hotel Limited
Incorporated in 1the British Virgin Islands:
Dazhongli Properties Limited

Island Land Development Limited
Incerporated in Mainland China:

{Domestic Company)

Beijing Linlian Real Estate Co. Ltd.
(Wholly foreign owned enterprises}

BY (L) BREBRERHRLA
A EiE) BHnERRARDE)
e (LiF) BeARBRARAE

Associated companies:
Incorporated in Hong Kong:
Queensway Hotel Limited

Shangri-La International Holels
{Pacific Place} Limited

Greenroll Limiled »

Richly Leader Limited
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100 - 100 | 1,000 shares of US¢1 Real estate agency
100 - 100 |8,950.28 shares of US$1 Property development and
manufacture and sale of
non-alcoholic beverages
100 - 100 | 1,000 shares of US¢? Real estate agency
100 - 100 | 100 shares of USq1 Property trading
75 - 75 | Florida Parnership Property trading
100 - 100 |1 share of USSI Property developmeni
60 - 60 {100 shares of HK$10 Property investment
100 - 100 |2 shares of US$1 Property invesiment
100 - 100 | 100 shares ol GBPY Hotcel investment
50 - 50 | 100 shares of HKS10 Property 1rading
20 - * | 5 shares of US$1 Holding company
75 - 75 | Florida Partnership Hotel investmenl
50 - 50 | 1.000 shares of US$) Holding company
50 - 50 ] 100 shares of HK$10 Properly investment
50 - 50 |Registered capilal Praperly investment
RMB50,000,000
50 - * | Registered capital Properly investment
U5$134,500,000
50 - * |Registered capital Property invesiment
U5$50,000,000
50 - * [Reglstered capital Praperty invesiment
US$177,600,000
20 - * | 100,000 shares of HK$10 Holel investment
20 - 20 | 5,000 shares of HK$1 Hotel investment
20 - 20 | 45,441,000 shares of Hotel investment
HKS$ 1D
20 - 20 [1,000,000,000 shares of Property invesiment
HKS$T
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AVIATION DIVISION
Subsidiary company:
Incorporated in Hong Kong:
Swire Aviation Limited 66.67 | 66.67 — | 5,000 shares of HK$10 Investment holding
Associated companies:
Abacus Distribution Systems 21.32 - * | 15,600,000 shares of HK$1 | Computerised reservation
(Hong Kong) Limited « syslems and relued
services
AHMK Air Hong Kong Limited « 23.95 - * 54,402,000 A shares of Cargo airling
HK$1 and
36,268,000 8 shares of
HK$1
Airline Property Limited o 39.91 - * |2 shares of HK$10 Property investment
Airline Stores Property Limited o 39.91 - * |2 shares of HK$1Q Property investment
Airline Training Property Limited » 39.91 - * | 2 shares of HKS10 Property investment
Cathay Holidays Limited « 39.9 - * 130,000 shares of HK$100 | Travel tour operator
Cathay Pacific Airways Limited » 39.91 | 39.91 - 13,940,025,072 shares of Operation of scheduled
HK$0.20 airline survices
Cathay Pacific Catering Services (H.K.) KPR - * | 600 shares of HK$1,000 Airline catering
Limited o
Cathay Pacific Loyalty Programmes Limited o 35.n - * | 2 shares of HK$1 Travel reward programme
Global Logistics System (H.K.} Company 38.57 - * | 100 shares of HK$10 Computer netwark lor
Limited » interchange of air cargo
related information
Goodrich Asia-Pacific Limited 21.44 - * 9,200,000 shares of HK$1 | Carbon brake machining
and wheel hub overhaul
Hong Kong Aero Engine Services Limited » 19.69 - ¢ | 20 shares of HK$10 Commercial acro engine
overhaul services
Hong Kong Air Cargo Terminals Limited 23.99 - |30.00&* | 600,000 shares of HK$100 [ Air cargo handling service
Hong Kong Aircraft Engineering Company 43.75 | 32.80 * | 166,324,850 shares of Aircraft overhaul and
Limited HK$1 maijntenance
Hong Kong Airport Services Limited » 39.91 - ¥ 1100 shares of HK$ !t Provision of ground and
ramp handling services
Hong Kong Dragon Airlines Limited + 19.91 - * 500,000,000 shares of Aitling
HKS$1
Hong Kong Inlernational Airport Services 39.91 - * 110,000 shares of HKS) Ground handling
Limited o
IN-Services Asia Limited 15.5 - * | 7,800,000 shares of HK$1 Aircralt component trading
and repair services
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Principal Subsidiary, }ointly Controlled and Associated Companies and Invesiments
Showing proportion of capital owned at 3151 December 2007
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AVIATION DIVISION {continued)
Associated companies (continued):
Incorporated in Hong Kong (continued):
South China Aero Technology Limited 26.25 - 500,000 shares of HK$1 Aircraft product Irading
HAECQ ATE Component Service Limited 43.75 - 2,000,000 shares of HK$1 | Aircraft componenis repairs
{formerly known as EADS SOGERMA services
HAECO Services Company Limited)
Vogue Laundry Service Limited » 39.91 - 3,700 shares of HK$500 Laundry and dry cleaning
Ground Support Engineering Limited 19.96 - 2 shares of H<$1 Airport ground engineering
support & equipment
maintenance
LSG Lufthansa Service Hong Kong Limited 12.75 - 501 shares of HKS1 Airline catering
Incorporated in Mainland China:
Air China Limited » 7.04 4,405,683,364 H shares of | Operation of scheduled
RMB1 airline services
7,845,678,9049 A shares of
RMB1
(Wholly foreign owned enterprise)
Guangzhou Guo Tai Information Processing 3991 - Registered capital of Information processing
Company Limited » HK$7,000,000
(Sino-foreign joint ventures)
Honeywell TAECO Aerospace (Xiamen) 13.78 - Registered capital of Aircrafl hydraulic,
Company Limited US$$5,000,000 pneumatic, avionic
companent and other
aviation equipment
repairs
Goodrich TAECO Acronautical Systems 9.93 - Registered capital of Aircrafl fuel control, flight
{Xiamen) Company Limited « U5%5,000.000 control and electrical
component repairs
Taikoo (Shandong) Aircraft Engineering 15.96 - Registered capital of Heavy maintenance
Company Limited » RMB200,000,000 services for parrow-
bodied aircraft
Taikoo (Xiamen) Aircrait Engineering Company | 28.37 - Registered capital of Aircraft overhaul and
Limited U$541,500,000 maintenance
Taikoo (Xiamen) Landing Gear Services Co. 2790 - Registered capital of Landing gear repairs and
Lid. J$$13,890,000 overhaul
Incotporated in Canada:
CLS Catering Services Limited o 2395 - 330,081 shares of no par Airline catering
value and 1,500,000
preference shares of
CADI
Incorporated in Bermuda:
Troon Limited » 39.91 - 12,000 shares of US$1 Financial services
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AVIATION DIVISION (continued)
Associated companies (continued):
tncorporated in Isle of Man:
Cathay Pacific Aircraft Services Limited » 3991 - * 110,000 shares of US$1 Aircrafl acquisition
facilitator
Snowdan Limited e 39.91 - * |2 shares of GBP1 Financial services
Incorporated in Japan:
Cathay Kansai Terminal Scrvices Company 19.35 - * | 10,574 shares of |PY50,000 |Ground handling
Limited «
Incorporated in the Philippines:
Cebu Pacific Caiering Services Inc. » 15.96 - * 112,500,000 shares of PHP1 | Airline catering
Incorporated in Taiwan:
China Pacific Catering Services Limited 19.56 - * 1146,000,000 shares of Airline catering
NT$10
Incorporated in Singapore:
Singapore Aere Engine Services Private 3.94 - * | 54,000,000 shares of US$1 | Trent engine overhaul
Limitod o services
Incorporated in Vietnam:
VN/CX Catering Services Limiled 15.96 - *+ 14,062,000 shares of no par | Airline catering
value
BEVERAGES DIVISION
Subsidiary compatnies:
Incorparated in Hong Kong:
Mount Limited 87.50 - 100 | ! sharc of HK$1.00 Holding company
Swire Beverages Foldings Limited 100 100 - {10,002 shares of HK$100 | Holding company
Swire Beverages Limited 87.50 - | 87.50 | 14,600 shares of US$500 Holding company and
sale of non-alcaholic
beverages
Swire Coca-Cola HK Limited 87.50 - 100 |2,400,000 shares of HK$10 | Manufacture of non-
alcoholic beverages
Swire Linx Trading (Hong Kong) Co., Limited 100 100 - | 10,000 shares of HK$1 Holding company
Top Noble Limited 100 - 100 | 10,000 shares of HK$1 Holding contpany
Incorporated in Mainland China:
(Sino-foreign joint venture)
Swire Coca-Cala Beverages Xiamen Lid. 93.63 - 100 | Registered capital of Manufacture and sale oi
US§$52,740,000 non-alcoholic beverages
{Wholly foreign owned enterprises)
Xiamen Luquan Industries Company Limited 100 - 100 | Registered capital of Manufacture and sale of
RMB63,370,000 non-afcohellc beverages
FNASRRRGERLE 100 - | 100 {Registercd capital of Sale and distribution of
RMB2,500,000 packaged foods and
general household items
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Principal Subsidiary, lointly Controlled and Associaled Companies and lovestments
Showing proportion of capital owned a1 315t December 2007
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BEVERAGES DIVISION (continued)
fointly controlled companies:
tncorporated in Bermuda:
Swire Pacific lndustrivrs Limited 100 100 | 12,000 share: of US$1 Holding company
{operating principally in Taiwan}
Incorporated in British Virgin Islands:
Sw{ire Caoca-Cola Bev:;’mgcsTLimiled 80 80 I,BS(;,;)OO%ODO shares of Manlufa}i.;t)llue;i non-
operating principally in Taiwan) .01 alcohalic beverages
Swire Coca-Cola (S&lf;}) LimTiled 80 80 Z,OSg,SOéngsharcs of Sal'g of non-alcoholic
{operating principally in Taiwan) } everages
Incorporated in the United States:
Swire Pacific Holdings Inc. 100 100 |8,950.28 shares of US$) Manufacture and sale
{see also Property division) of non-alcoholic
gevcll'ages and property
evelopment
Incorporated in British Virgin Islands:
Swire Coca-Cola Venlczing Limiled 43.75 50 {100 shares of USIN Salg ol non-alcoholic
(operating principally fn Taiwan) EVErages
Incorporated in Mainland China:
{Sino-fareign joint ventures)
Hangzhou BC Foods Co. Ltd. 44.63 * | Registered capiial of Manufacture and sale of
$520,000,000 non-alcoholic heverapes
Nanjing BC Foods Co. Lid. 44.63 * {Registered capital of Manufac:urialnd ;ale of
5$19,000,000 non-alcoholic beverages
Swire Coca-Cola Beverages Hefei Lid. 59.50 * |Re isstered capital of Manufac:urialnd ts;ale: of
$12,000,000 non-alcoholic beverages
Swire Coca-Cola Beverages Wenzhou Limited | 44.63 * | Registered c(:)q vital of Manufac:urialnd f;nle of
$549,800,000 non-alcoholic beverapes
Swire Coca-Cola Beverages Zhengzhou Lid. 60.68 * [Re isslt;fed %] vital of Manufac:uni*’ alnd ls)ule of
18,000,000 non-alcoholic beverages
Swire Gusngdong Coca-Cala (Huizhou) 44.63 20.4 |Registered capital Manuf.'u:}uu;1 a1nd liale of
Limite: & 555,000,000 non-alcoholic beverages
Swire Guangdong Coca-Cola Limited 44.63 51 | Registered capita! of Manufacture and sale of
RMB510,670,000 non-alcoholic beverages
{Wholly loreign owned enterprises)
Swire BCD Co. Lid. 74.38 85 |Re 'iss_:ts:rse[;iocs;gilal of tnvestment holding
,000,000
Xian BC Coca-Cola Beverages Limiled 74.38 * | Registered capital of Manufacture and sale of
$520.01)0,000 non-alcoholic beverages
MARINE SERVICES DIVISION
Subsidiary companies:
Incarparaled in Hong Xong:
Swire Pacific Ship Management Limited » 100 100 {1,000 shares of HK$100 Ship personnel
managemen!
Incorporated in Azerbaijan:
Swire Pacific Offshare (Caspian} LLC 100 100 |US$5,000 Charleri?g and operaling
vessels
Incorporated in Australia:
Swir%Paciﬁc Ship Management (Australia) Pty. 100 100 | 20,000 shares of A$1 Ship personnel
Ltd. management
Swire Pacific Offshore Pty Limited 100 100 {40,000 shaies of AS1 Ship owning and operating
Incorporaled in Bermuda:
SPO Ships Limited 100 100 | 120 shares of US$100 Ship owning and operating
Swire Pacific Ofishore Holdings Limited 100 100 | 500,000 shares of US$100 | Holding company
Swire Pacific Offshore Limited 100 100 | 120 shores of US$100 Management services
Incorporated in the United Kingdom:
Swire Pacific Offshore (North Sea) Limited 100 100 |2 shares of £1 Management services
Incorporated in Singapore:
Swire Pacific Offshore Scrvices (Pte) Limited 100 100 | 500,000 shares of §%1 Management services
Swire Pacific Ofishore Operations (Ple} Limited [ 100 100 | 500,000 shares of 531 Ship owning and operating
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MARINE SERVICES DIVISION (continued)
lointly controlled companies:
incorporated in Hong Kang:

Hongkong United Dockyards Limited

HUD General Engincering Services Limited

The Hongkong Salvage & Towage Company
Limited

Associated companies:

Incorporaled in Malaysia:

Bahtera Wira Sdn Bhd

Samudra Keris Sendirian Berhad

Samudra Wijaya Sendirian Berhad

Wira Swire Sendirian Berhad

Incorporated in the Philippines:

Anscor Swire Ship Management
Corporation »

Incorporated in UAE:

Swire Pacific QOffshore {Dubai) LLC

TRADING & INDUSTRIAL DIVISION -
INDUSTRIAL

Subsidiary companies:
Incarperated in Hong Kong:
Swvire Duro Limited

Swire Industrial Limited
Taikeo Sugar Limited

Jointly controlled companies:
Incorporated in Hong Kong:
CROWN Beverage Cans Hong Kong Limited

Far East Land{ill Technologics Limited
IC1 Swire Paints Limited »

Swire SITA Waste Services Limited
Waylung Waste Services Limited

Nl
o
o
50 50 - | 7,600,000 shares of HK$10 | Ship repairing, marine
towage and general
engineering
50 - * 14,120,000 shares of HK$10 | General engineering
survices
50 50 - | 2,000,000 shares of HK$10 [ Leasing of tugs
48.48 -| 48.48]99,000 shares of MYRI Investmen! holding
49 - * | 100 shares of MYRI Ship owning
49 - * | 100 shares of MYR1 Ship owning
20 - 20 250,000 shares of MYR1 Ship operating
25 - 25 20,000 shares of Peso100 | Ship personnel
management
49 ~ 491300 shares of AED1,000 Management services
100 - 100 {38,460 sharcs of HK$100 [ Marble fabrication
100 100 - {2 shares of HK$1 Helding company
100 - 100 | 300,000 shares of HK$1Q0 | Packing and trading of
branded jood products
44,57 — | 44.57 {17,300,000 shares of Beverage can trading and
HK$10 distribution
26.50 - * 11,000,000 ordinary shares | Design, construction and
of HKS1 operation of landf{ill
40 - 40 | 10,000 shares of HK$1 Sales of paints and
pravision of related
services
50 - 50 |58,200,000 shares of HK§1 | Waste management
50 - * 121,310,000 ordinary shares | Waste management
of HK$1
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Principal Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled and Associaled Cempanies and Investments
Showing proportion of capital owned at 315t December 2007
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Incorporated in Mainland China:

(Sino-foreign joint ventures)

CROWN Beverage Cans Beijing Limited 41.30 - * | Registered capital of Beverage[ can

US$27,600,000 manulacturing

CROWN Beverage Cans Huizhou Limited » 44.12 - * | Registered capital of Beverage can

8 gUSSN 887p000 man%:faclurin
.B87, ]
CROWN Beverage Cans Shanphai Limited 26.74 - * | Registered capital of Beverage can
U$$19,000,000 manulfacturing
Foshan Continental Can Company Limited o 22.29 - * | Registered capital of Beverage can
U5%$9,900,000 manufacturing
Foshan Crown Easy-Opening End Company 22,29 - * | Registered capital of Bevernge{ can
Limiled » UsS$6,000,000 manufacturing
ICI Swire Paints (China} Limited » 36 - 36 |Registered capital of Paint manufacturin
!i'iKSlBD OIFJJO 000 8
SCIP Swire SITA Waste Services Company 20 - * |Registered capital of Hazardous wasle
Limited HK$182,000,000 incineration
{Wholly foreign owned cnterprise)
ICI Swire Paints (Shanghai} Company Limited » 0 - 30 | Regisiered cipital of Paint manufacturing
U5$25,640,000
Incorporaled in Macau:
CSR Macau-Companhia de Sistemas de 40 - * | MOP25,000 Wasle management
Residuos, Lda

Incorporated in Vietnam:

CROWN Beverage Cans Hanoi Limited 3737 - * | US524,910,000 IE.ce\--r:ragef can
manufacturing

TRADING & INDUSTRIAL DIVISION -

TRADING

Subsidiary companies:

Incorporated in Hong Kong:

Bel Air Motors Limiled 100 - 100 |1 share of HK$1 Automobile distribution

Beldare Motors Limited 100 - 100 | 10,000 shares of HK§100 | Automobile distribution

Liberty Motors Limited 100 - 100 |2 shares of HK$10 Automobile distribution

Swire Resources Limiled 100 - 100 14,010,000 shares of HK$10 | Marketing, distribution
and retaiting of branded
sports and casual
footwear, apparel and
accessarics

Taikoo Commercial Vehicles Limited 100 - 100 ({2,000 shares of HX$1 Automobile distribution

Yuntung Motors Limited 100 - 100 {2 shares of HKS ! Automabile distribution

Incorporated in Mainland China:

{Whoily foreign owned enterprise)

Swire Resousces (Shanghai) Trading Company 100 - 100 | U5%6,040,000 Marketing, distribution

Limiled and retailing of branded
sports and casual
footwear, appare! and
accessories

Incorporated in Bermuda:

Taikog Maotors Oifshore Limited 100 - 100 | 12,000 shares of US$1 Holding company

Incorporated in the British Virgin Islands:

Taikoo Motorcycle Limited 100 - 100 | 1 share of US$1 Automobile distribution

Taikoo Motors Limited 100 - 100 |1 share of US$) Automobile distribulion

Incorporaled in Macau:

Swire Resources (Macau) Limited 100 - 100 | MOP25,000 Marketing, distribution
and retailing of branded
sports and casval
footwear, apparel and
accessories

Incorporated in Taiwan:

Beldare Limited 100 - 100 | 80,000 shares of NT$1,000 | Automobite distiibution
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TRADING & INDUSTRIAL DIVISION -
TRADING (continued)

lointly controlled company:

Incorporated in Hong Kong:

Intermarket Agencies (Far East) Limited 70 - 70 | 10 shares of HK$100 Marketing and distribution
of branded sports and
casual footwear, apparel
and accessories

Associated companies:

Incorporated in Hong Kong:

Liberty Sports Marketing Limited 49 - * | 500,000 shares of HK$10 Marketing and distribution
of branded sporis and
casual footwear, apparel
and accessorics

Incorporated in Mainland China:

(whoally foreign owned entesprise)

Liberty Shanghai Limited 49 - * |Registered capital of Marketing and distribution

US$6,040,000 ci branded sports and
casual footwear, apparel
and accessories

OTHERS

Subsidiary companics:

Incorporated in Hong Kong:

Swire Finance Limited 100 100 ~ {1,000 shares of HK$10 Financial services

Incorporated in the Cayman islands:

Swire Pacific Capital Limited 100 100 - {10 shares of US$t Financial services

Swire Pacific MTN Financing Limited 100 100 = [ 1 share of US$t Financial services

Incorporated in Isle of Man:

Spaciom Limited 100 100 - | 650,000 shares of HK$1 Insurance underwriting

3,800,000 redeemable
preference shares of
HK$0.01

lointly controlled company:

incorporaled in Taiwan:

China Pacific Laundry Services Limited o 45 - 45 |25.000,000 shares of Laundry services

NTS10
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Cathay Pacific Airways Limited -
Abridged Financial Statements

To provide shareholders with information on the results and financial position of the Group’s significant listed associated
company, Cathay Pacific Airways Limited, the foHowing is a summary of its audited consolidated profit and loss account
for the year ended 31st December 2007 and consolidated balance sheet at 31si December 2007,

CATHAY PACIFIC AIRWAYS LIMITED

Consolidaled Profit and Loss Account
for the year ended 31st December 2007

2007 2006
HKS$M HKS§M
Turnover 75,358 60,783
Operaling expenses (67,619) (55,565)
Operating profit 7,739 5,218
Finance charges (2,451) (1,818}
Finance income 1,664 1,353
Net finance charges (787) (465)
Share of profits of associated companies 1,057 kiol}
Profit before taxation 8,009 5,054
Taxation 799 782
Profit for the year 7,210 4,272

Profit atiributable to:
- Cathay Pacific shareholders 7,023 4,088
- Minority interests 187 184
7,210 4,272

Dividends

Interim ~ paid 985 786
Final - proposed 2,325 1,260
Special - paid ' - 1,259
3,310 3,305
HK¢ HK¢
Basic earnings per share 178.3 115.9
Diluted earnings per share 178.1 18.7
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
At 31st December 2007

2007 2006
HK$M HK$Mm
{Restated)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Non-current assets
Fixed assets 62,388 57,602
Intangible assets 7,782 7,749
Investments in associated companies 10,054 8,826
Other long-term receivables and investments 3,519 3,406
83,743 77,583
Current assets
Stock 882 789
Trade and other receivables 11,376 8,735
Liquid funds 21,649 15,624
33,907 25,148
Current liabilities
Current portion of long-term liabilities 4,788 7,503
Related pledged security deposits (910) (1.352)
Net current portion of {ong-term liabilities 3,878 6,151
Trade and other payables 14,787 10,999
Unearned transportation revenue 6,254 4,671
Taxation 1,475 2,902
27,394 24,723
Net currenl assels 6,513 425
Total assets less current liabilities 90,256 78,008
Non-current liabilities
Long-term liabilities 40,323 33,956
Related pledged security deposits (7,833} {(8.164)
Net long-term liabilities 32,490 25,792
Retirement benefit obligations 268 170
Deferred taxation 6,771 6,508
39,529 32,470
NET ASSETS 50,727 45,538
CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share capital 788 787
Reserves 49,761 44,599
Funds attributable to Cathay Pacific shareholders 50,549 45,386
Minarity interests 178 152
TOTAL EQUITY 50,727 45,538
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Cathay Pacific Airways Limited — Abridged Financial Statements

' Notes to the Accounts
: at 31st December 2007

Restatement of opening balance sheet

During the year Cathay Pacific has made certain adjustments, in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standard (“HKFRS”) 3 “Business Combinations”, to the fair values of assets and liabilities in respect of acquisitions made
in the year ended 31st December 2006 as if these adjustments had been recognised at the date of acquisition.

Contingencies

{3) At 31st December 2007, contingent liabilities exisled in respect of guarantees given by Cathay Pacific group on
behalf of associated companies and staff relating to lease obligalions, bank loans and other liabilities of up to
HK$219 million {2006: HK$217 million).

(b) Cathay Pacific Airways has under certain circumstances undertaken to maintain specified rates of return within
Cathay Pacific group’s leasing arrangements. The Directors of Cathay Pacific Airways do not consider thai an
estimate of the potential ifinancial effect of these contingencies can practically be made.

{¢) Cathay Pacific Airways operates in many jurisdictions and in certain of these there are disputes with the 1ax
authorities. Provisions have been made to caver the expected outcame of the disputes to the exient that outcomes
are likely and reliable estimates can be made. However, the final cutcomes are subject to uncertainties and

resulting liabilities may exceed provisions.

(d) Cathay Pacific Airways is the subject of investigations in respect of its air cargo operations by the competition
authorities of various jurisdictions including the United States, the European Union, Canada, Australia, Switzerland
and New Zealand. Cathay Pacific Airways has been cooperating with the authorities in their investigations. The
investigations are focused on issues relating to pricing and competition. Cathay Pacific Airways is represented by

legal counsel in connection with the investigations.

Cathay Pacific Airways announced on 24th December 2007 that it had received a Statement of Objections from
the European Commission with regard to its air cargo operations. Cathay Pacific Airways is reviewing the Statement
of Objections with legal counsel and will make a limely response lo il,

Cathay Pacific Airways has been named as a defendant in a number of civil class action complaints in the United
States, Canada and Australia alleging violations of local competition laws arising from its conduct in relation to
air cargo operations. In addition, civil class action claims have been filed in the United States alleging violations
of competition laws arising from Cathay Pacific Airways' conduct relating to certain of its passenger operations.
Cathay Pacific Airways is represented by legal counsel in the actions filed in the United States, Canada and
Australia and is defending those actions,

The investigations and civil actions are ongoing and the outcomes are subject to uncertainties. Cathay Pacific
Airways is not in a position at the present time o assess any potential liabilitics and cannot therefore make

any provisions.
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Schedule of Principal Group Properties

At 31st December 2007

Grou Naor aseas In square feet

Hong Kong Mzinland China USA UK Tolah
Held throuxh
Held through Held through Held through subsidiarfes
Held through olber Held through other Held through other Held through Held 1hrough and other

subsidiarles  companies  subsidiaries  companies  subsidiaries  companies subsidiaries  subsidiaries  companies

Campleted properties for

invesimen|

Relail 3,299,800 49,566 - - - - - 3,299, 4G 3,399.3h6
Ofiice 6,744,540 300,850 - - - - - 6,749,540 7,056,390
Techno-centres 1,814,393 - - - - - - 1,814,393 1,814,393
Residential 481,399 - - - - - - 481,399 481,399
Hotels - 381,680 - - - 258,750 103,556 183,556 823,906

1

12,345,132 783,096 - — 258,750 183,556 12,528,688 13,575,534

Praperty developments for investment

Retail - - 2,600,021 615,950 - - -~ 2,600,027 3.235.97)
Office 1,982,814 - 1,556,774 845,800 - - - 1,539,588 4,385,388
Horels 357,203 - 980,943 307,200 - - - 1,138,146 1,645,346
Resideniial 68,242 - - - - - - 068,242 68.242
2,408,259 - 5,137,738 1,78R,950 - - - 7.545,997 9,334,947

Property developments for sale
Retail - 11,490 - - - - - - 11,490
Industrial - 191,250 - - - - - - 191,250
Residential 338,212 45,388 - - 741,800 - - 1,080,012 1,125,400
Mixed Use - - - - 800,000 - - 800,000 800,000
338.212 248,128 - - 1,541,800 - - 1,880,012 2,128,140
Al 315t Decembur 2007 15.091.603 1,016,224 5,137,738 1,788,950 1,541,800 258,750 181,556 21,954,697 25,038,062

Significant post balance sheet acquisition:

Properly develop s for invest t

Retail - - - 464,512 - - - - 460,512

Office - - - 301,852 - - - - 301,852

Holels - - - 184,240 - - - - 184,240
- - - 946,604 - - - - 946,604

At 61h March 2008 15,091,603 1,036,229 5,137,738 2,735,554 1,541,800 258,750 183,556 21,954,697 25,985,225

MNoles:

All properties held through subsidiary companics are wholly owned excepi for Island Place (60%}, TaiKgo Hui (97%), Sznlitun Projeci (Retail: 80%,
Huiel: 100%), the development site in Fort Lauderdale (75%) and the develapment sites in Mid Levels (82.5%) and $ai Wan Terrace (80%), The
above summary table includes the {loor areas of these b properties in total.

“Qther companies” comprise juinily controlled or associated companies and ather invesiments. The floor arcas of properties held through such
companics are shown on an attributable basis.

Gross floor areas exclude carpark spaces; over 7,600 completed carpark spaces in Hong Keng are held by subsidiaries for invesiment,

When a Hong Kong property is held under a renewabile lease, the expiry date of the rencwal period is shown,

All prapertices in the United Siates are frechald,
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Schedule of Principal
| At 315t December 2007

Completed properties for
investiment in Hong Kong

Group Properties

e\
&
(\
N

\'0

Retail and Office

1. Pacific Place,
88 Queensway,
Central

One Pacific Place

Two Pacific Place

The Mall at
Pacific Place

IL 8571 (part)
IL 8582 & Ext. (part)

IL 8571 /1L 8582 & Ext.
(parl)

2135

2047

2135/
2047

¥15,066
{parnt)

203,223
{part)

318,249
{part)

863,266

695,310

711,182

508

1988

1990

1988/
90

Oflfice building.
Office building.

Shopping centre with
restaurants and a cinema,
Access to Admiraity MTR
staifon. Paciflc Place also
comprises service apartments
and hotels, details of which are
given in the Residential and
Hatel categories below.

2. Three Pacific
Place,
One Queen's
Road East

IL 47A sA RP

IL 47A sB RP

i, 47A sC RP

IL 478 sC RP

IL 47A RP

IL 47C A ss1 RP

IL 47C sA RP

IL 478 sA RP

IL 47B sB RP

IL 478 RP

IL 47A sB ss2

IL 47A 5D

I 47B sD

IL 47C RP

IL 4712 RP

IL 47D sA RP

IL 47 sA ssl

IL 47 sA RP

IL 47 58 s51 & RP

It 47 sC ss1 & $52 sA & ss2
RP & 553 sA & 553 RP & s54
& 555 & ss6 sA & ssbRP &
557 RP & RP

IL 47 sP

IL 47 RP

1. 47 sC ss5 Ext.

IL 47 s5C ss51 Ext

2050-
2852

40,236

627,351

m

2004/
07

Oiffice building linked 10 The
Malt and Admiralty MTR
Siation,

3. Tai Sang
Commercial
Building,
Wanchai

ML 23
IL 2244 RP
IL 2245 RP

2843

9,623

185,447

1977

Office building with ancillary
retail.
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Completed properties for o o e Ny YN N
invesiment in Hong Kong .~ & P o o A
4. Festival Walk, NKIL 6181 2047 | 222,282 Retail: 830 | 1998 |Comprises a 980,081 square
Yau Yat Tsuen 980,081 foot shopping centre, including
Oifice: ice skating rink and cinemas,
228,663 228,663 square feet of office
space and a transport terminus
linked 10 Kowloon Tong MTR
station.
5. Cityplaza, QBML 2 & Exi. sK ss5 2899 | 334,475 | 1,105,227 | B34 | 1982/ |Shopping centre with
Taikoo Shing QBML 2 & Ext. sR RP (part) 87/97/ | restaurants, ice-skating rink,
QBML 2 & Ext. sR sst sA 2000 |cinema and access to Tai Koo
QBML 2 & Ext. sQ RP MTR station.
QBML 2 & Ext. 5Q) 557 5A
QBML 2 & Ext. sQ ss7 RP
QBML 2 & Ext. sQ 552 sB
QBML 2 & Ext. sQ 552 5A 551
QBML 2 & Ex1, sQ 552 sA RP
QBML 2 & Ext. s) RP
6. Cityplaza One, |QBML 2 & Ext. sR RP 2899 | 146,184 | 628,785 - 1997 | Qffice building over part of
Taikoo Shing QBML 2 & Ex1. sR ss1 sA (part) Cityplaza shopping centre.
QBML 2 & Ext, 53 RP
QBML 2 & Exl. s} 557 SA
QBML 2 & Exi. 5Q ss7 RP
QBML 2 & Ext. sQ ss2 sB
QBML 2 & ExI. sQ) 552 sA s5]
QBML 2 & Ex1. 5CQ} ss2 sA RP
QBML 2 & Exl. s) RP
7. Ciyplaza Three, |QBML 2 & Exi. sK RP {part) 2899 | 33,730 447,709 10 1992 | Office building linked by
Taikoo Shing footbridge 1o Cityplaza.
8. Chyplaza four, |QBML 2 & Ext. sK RP (part) | 2899 | 41,864 | 556,427 - 1991 | Office building linked by
Taikoo Shing foolbridge to Cityplaza.
9. Commercial SML 1 5A ss1, SML 1 sARP | 2081/ - 331,079 | 3,826 | 1976- | Neighbourhood shops, schools
areas in Stages S5ML 1 58, SML 2 sC RP 2899 85 [and carpark spaces.
1-X of Taikoo SML 2 sCss2
Shing SML 2 sD, SML 2 RP
QBML 2 & Ext, 5] 551
QBML 2 & Ext. 5 58]
QBML 2 & Ext. sl
QBML 2 & Ext. sN
QBML 2 & Ext, sQ 554 & 355
QBML 2 & Ext, 5Q 352 sC
QBML 2 & Ext. 55 ss1
QBML 2 & Ext. sH s8]
QBML 2 & Ext. sH 553 sA
QBML 2 & Ext. 5K ss3 sA
QBML 2 & ExI, sU ss
QBML 2 & Ext, 5K ss3 RP
QBML 2 & Ext. 5K ss4sA&RP
QBML 2 & Ext. sT sst & RP
QBML 2 & Ext. sU RP
QBML 2 & Ext. sK 559 &
ss10 & ss11 & 5513 & 5516
{part)
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Schedule of Principal Group Properties

At 315t December 2007

%
Campleted properties for \,o“oe @5‘6
investment in Hong Kong ./, & \3-3‘,
, 10. Devon House, QBML 1 sF 551 2881 70,414 803,448 n 1993 | Ofiice building linked to
, TaiKoo Place QBML I sF RP {part) Quarry Bay MTR station by a
| ML 703 sN foothridge.
QBML 1 sE ss2 {part)
11. Dorsel House, QBML 15Q, QBML | SRRP | 2881 | 238,582 | 609,540 | 215 | 1994 | Office building linked to Devan
TaiKoo Place GQBML 1 55, QBML 1 5T ssl (part) House.
QBMIL, 1 sT 552
QBML 1 sT RP
QBML 1 sU, QBML | sW
QBML 1 RP (part}
12. Lincoln House, |QBML 1sQ, QBML 1sR RP | 2881 | 238,582 | 333,350 | 164 | 1998 | Office building linked to
TaiKoo Place QBML 1 55, QBML 1 5T s51 {part) Dorset House.
QBML 1 sT 552
QBML 1 sTRP
QBML 1 sU, QBML 1 swW
QBML 1 RP (part)
13. Oxford House, QBML 1 sC ss4 2881 | 33.434 501,249 182 1999 | Office building linked to
TaiKoo Place QBML 1 sC 557 (part) Somerset House.
QBML 2 & Ext. sD
14. Cambridge QBML 1 sE 552 2881 { 70,414 | 208,793 - 2003 | Office building linked to Devon
| House, QBML 1 sF 551 House.
| TaiKoo Place QBML 1 sF RP
' ML 703 sN (part)
15. Island Place, I, 8849 2047 | 106,498 | 150,167 288 1996 |Floor area shown represents
500 King's Road, {part) the whote shopping cenire
North Point podium of which the Group
owns 60%.
16. StarCrest, IL 8853 2047 | 40,871 10,758 83 | 1999 |Floor area shown represents
9 Star Street, the whole of the retail area
Wanchai including 83 carparks retained
by the Group.
17. 23 - 29 Wing IL 5206 sA ssi sB RP 2856 | 2,397 11,306 - 2006 |Floor area shown represents a
Fung Street, IL 526 sA ss1 5B sst 3-siorey retail podium.
Wanchai IL 526 sA ss2
IL 526 sA ss3
Total held through subsidiaries 10,049,340 | 7.362
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18. PCCW Tower, QBML 1sQ, QBML 1 sR RP | 2881 | 238,582 | 620,148 217 | 1994 | Office building linked to
TaiKoo Place QBML 1 55, QBML 1 sT s8] (parl) Dorset House.

QBML ¥ sT 552 Floor area shown represents
QBM4L 1 ST RP the whaole development of
QBML T sU, QBML 1 swW which the Group owns 20%.
QBML 1 RP {part}

Held through assaciates 620,148 | 217

- of which allrihutable 1o the Group 124,030

19. 625 King's Road, |IL 7550 2108 { 20.000 | 30,062 84 1998 | Ofiice building. Floor area
North Point shown represents the whole

development of which the
Group owns 50%.

20. Tung Chung TCTL 2047 | 331,658 34,983 - 1998/ [Fleor area shown represents
Crescent (Site 1), 1999 |ihe retail space of which the
Tung Chung, Group owns 20%,.

Lanlau

21. Citygate (Site 2), |TCTL 2 2047 | 358,557 | Retail: | 1,156 | 1999/ | A 161,446 square foot office
Jung Chung, {parl) 462,848 2000 |tower above a 462,848 square
Lantau Oflice: foot shopping centie of which

161,446 the Group owns 20%. (Part of
Site 1, Site 2 Nonh and Site 3
included on pages 168 and 170}
Total held through jointly controlled companies | 960,339 | 1,240
- of which attributable to the Group 282,386
Techno-centres
22. TaiKeo Place 2881 | 238,562 2: Data centres/offices/logisiics
{part) warehousing.
Warwick House JQBML 1 sQ, QBML 1 sR RP 552,537 1979
QBML 1 55, QBML 1 T ssl
Cornwall House | QBML 1 ST s52, QBML, | sTRP 338,500 1984 | Floor area excludes eight floors
QBML 1 sU, QBML 1 sW owned by Government.
Somerset House | QBML 1 RP (part) 923,356 1958
Total held \hrough subsidiaries 1,814,393 | 292

Residential

23. Pacific Place 1. 8582 & Ext. (part) 2047 | 203,223 | 443,075 - 1990 | 270 scrvice suites wilhin the
Apariments, (part) Conrad Hong Kong Hotel
88 Queensway tower.

24. Rocky Bank, RBL 613 RP 2099 | 28,197 14,768 - 1981 | Three pairs of semi-detached
6 Deep Water houses.

Bay Road

25, 36 Island Road, RBL 507 & Exx, 2097 20,733 5773 - 1980 | Two detached houses.
Deep Water Bay

26. 6 Peel Rise, RBL 730 2032 | 35,580 17,783 - 1988 | Six scmi-detached houses.
The Peak

Tomal held through subsidiaries 481,399 -
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168

Schedule of Principal Group Properties
At 31st December 2007

¢!
. o \bz+ W
Completed properties for o x° %@?
investment in Hong Kong \’0\0 \_te.'-"=J o
Hotels
Pacific Place,
88 Queensway,
Central
1. IW Marriott IL 8571 (part) 2135 | 115,066 | 525,904 1989 | 602 room hotel, in which the
Hotel {part) Croup owns a 20% interest.
2. Conrad Hong iL 8582 & Ext. {part) 2047 | 203,223 | 540,115 1990 1513 room hotel, in which the
Kong Hotel (part) Group owns a 20% Interesi.
3. lIsland Shangri-La [IL 8582 & Ext. (part) 2047 | 203,223 | 605,728 1991 | 565 room haotel, in which the
Hotel {part) Croup owns a 20% interest,
Total held through associates 1,671,747
- of which attributable 10 the Group 314,349
Citygate (Site 2 Narth),
Tung Chung,
Laniau
4. Novotel Citygate [TCTL 2 2047 | 358,557 | 236,653 2005 |440 room hotel, in which the
Hong Kong Hotel (part) Group owns a 20% interest.
Held through jeimly controlled companies 236,653
- of which attributable to the Group 47,331

¥
@
Property developments i (‘o“‘
for investment in 0“‘0 Qé-‘e'b .,&‘""
Hong Kong & A\ L5 QS'&
1. EAST, QBML 2 & Ext. sR RP 2899 1 146,184] Hotel 199,067 Superstructure| 2009 |Floor area
Taikoo Shing [QBML 2 & Ext. sR ss1 sA (part) in progress shown
QBML. 2 & Ext. sQ RP represents a
QBML 2 & Ext. sQ 557 sA proposed hotel
QBML 2 & Ext. sQ ss7 RP building of 350
QBML 2 & Ext. sQ 552 sB rooms. Target
QBML 2 & Ext. 5Q 552 sA ssl to open in Q1
QBML 2 & Ext. 5Q 552 sA RP 2010.
QBML 2 & Ext. 5] RP
2. Cityplaza One(QBML 2 & Ext, sR RP 2899 | 146,184 Office | 443,817 - On [16-storey
{Phase 2), QBML 2 & Ext. 5R ssl sA {part) Hold |vertical
Taikoo Shing |QBML 2 & Ext. sQ RP exiension to
QBML 2 & Ext. sQ s57 5A the existing
QBML 2 & Ext, 503 ss7 RP Cityplaza One
QBML 2 & Ext. s} ss2 sB office building,
QBML 2 & Ext, s(Q 552 sA ss} subject 10
QBML 2 & Ext. sQ 552 sA RP payment of fand
QBML 2 & Ext. s| RP premium,
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Property developments o b"ow o
for investment in o QD& 6"’&
Hong Kong P < e
3. One Island QBML 1 5C s55 2881/)109,929| Ofiice |1,536,997{ - |Superstructure | 2008 |Floor area
East, TaiKeo (QBML 1 5C s56 2899 in progress shown
Place QBML 2 & Exi. sF represents a
QBML 2 & Ext, G single office
QBML 2 & Ext. sH 556 sB RP tower.
QBML 2 & Ext. sH RP
QBML 2 & Ext, RP
QBIL 15 sD
4, The Amium, ]IL B571 (part} 2135 | 115,066 Hotel 158,136 - |Conversian 2009 |Conversion to
Paciiic Place (part) in progress a small tuxury
hotel with 117
rooms abave
Lthe )W Marriott
Hotel. Target
to open in Q3
2009.
5. 53 Stubbs RBL 224 2074 | 32,496 |Residential | 68,242 - [Vacanl 2010 |Floor area
Road ssession shown
The Peak ing represents
obtained a proposed
residential
lower,
Total held through subsidiaries 2,408,259| -
c\ea\ e
» o
\e'e\ (’&\9 & .0(\6
& & AF 00 03
¥ e o
Properly devetopments o PPt . A o &
4 o s ao” O 5
for sale in R x° o "‘,\ oy e(’\e. ¥
Hong Kong o IS S s
1. 4, 4A,6,6A |IL 577 sC 2857 122,957 | Residential | 173,702 | 22 [Demolition 2010 [Floor area shown
Castle Steps Il 577 sD completed represents the
2A-E IL 577 sE whole development
Seymour Road|IL 577 sF of which the Group
23, 25,27, 29 |IL 577 sG awns 87.5%.
Castle Road, |IL 577 sH
Mid Levels IL 577 sl
IL 577 s)
IL 577 sL ss1
IL 577 sL ss2
IL 577 5L 553
IL 577 sL RP
HE 577 sm
2. Sai Wan SIL 761 2057 | 28,490 Residentiat | 164,510 58 |Vacam 2011 (Target to obtain
Terrace, possession a total gross floor
No, 1 5ai Wan being area of 227,920
Terrace obtained square feet
Taikoo Shing through a lease
Hong Kong modification,
Demolition work
will commence
after obtaining
vacant possession.
Floor area shown
represents the
whole development
of which the Group
owns 80%.
Total held through subsidiaries 338,212 | BO
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Schedule of Principal Group Properties
Al 3151 December 2007
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Propertly developments o \bc*q - o o o

for sale in o x° & 5\\0 c(_\"' .,\“"’

Hong K o° & O (_,(Os 4 &

g Kong N N S & A

3. MTRC Tung
Chung
{Package 1),
tantau
- Tung Chung{TCTL 1 2047 {331,658 | Carparks - 418 {Completed in 418 unsold carparks

Crescent 1998/1999 of which the Group
(Site 1) owns 20%.,

- Seaview TCTL 3 2047 | 230,348 Retail 30,617 282 |Completed Floor area shown
Crescenl in 2002 represents unsold
{Site 3) retail space of which

the Group owns
20%.

4. 8-10 Wong  |AIL 338 2119 ] 25,500 | Industrial | 382,500 | 39 |Foundation On [Floor area shown
Chuk Hang  |AIL 339 2120 completed hold [represents the whole
Road, developmeni of
Aberdeen which the Group

owns 50%.
Total held through jointly controlled companies 413,117 | 739
- of which attributable to the Group 197,373

Other holdings

5. Belair Monte |FSSTL 126 2047 1223,674 Retail 67,083 - |Completed in Floor area shown
Fanling 1998 represents the

whole of the retail
arca including 17
carparks of which
the Group owns 8%.

6. Island Lodge |IL 7105 2104 | 17,868 |Residential/{ 181,552 50 [Superstructure} 2009 |Comprises 184
180 Java Retail in progress residential units and
Road, retail space of which
North Point 97 residential units

have been sold,
Group appointed
as a developer to
develop the site
and subsequently
sell all units of the
developmenl.
248,635 50
- Attributable holding 50,755
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1.

TaiKoo Hui

Morth of Tianhe Road 2051
and west of Tianhe Dong
Rand, Tianhe Districl,

Guangzhou

526,936

Retail
Qifice
Hotel

1,227,710
1,556,774
611,943

Excovation
and

site formation
in progress

2000

Grass floor area

is based on
September 2007
submission 10

the Guangzhou
Planning Bureau.
A cultural centre
of 671,668 square
feet is to be built
and handed over
to Guangzhou
Government upon
completion. Floor
areas shown
represent the whole
development of
which the Group
owns 97%.

The Village
at Sanlitun

North of Gongtibei Road | 2044
and west of North Sanlitun
Road,

Chaoyang District, Beijing

566,332

Retail
Hotel

1,287,000
169,000

861
26

Interior
works
in progress

2008

Floor areas shown
represent the whole
(levelopment of
which the Group
owns B0% and
100% of the retail
portion and 1he
hatel respectively.

Retail Podium
of Beavmonde

Wes! of Tianhe Dong 2044
Road,
Tianhe Districl,

Guangzhou

174,380
{Part)

Retail

85,31

100

Superstructure
camplcted

2008

Floor areas
shown represent
3 shopping cenlre
in the podium

ol Beaumonde
residential

development.

Total held through subsidiaries

5,137,718

1,854
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Schedule of Principal Group Propertics
Al 31st December 2007

& 5
e\ 2o
'\K‘\ o’a‘ Q\c'
Property development o o o
perty developments > o ¢
for investment In ‘d"’ o 5&3 5 é}e 3':""
Mainland China 7\66 \’c?s e O ()\°5 & LT
4. Dazhongli [South of Nanjing West| 2056 |676,220| Retil [1,271,900( 1,730 [Resetilement | 2012 |Gross floor area
Project Road Office [ 1,691,600 work in is based on the
and east of Shimenyi Hotel 614,400 progress Master Layout Plan
Road prepared in May
Jingan District, 2007. Floor areas
Shanghai shown represent Lhe
whole development
of which the Group
owns 50%.
Held through joimtly controlled company at 31st 3,577,900( 1,730
December 2007
- of which attributable to the Group 1,788,950
5. liang South of Jiang Tai 2054 |631,070| Retail 921,024 | 1,245 | Site cleared | 2010 |Floor areas shown
Tai Project jRoad {Office Ofiice 603,704 represent the whole
and east of and Hotel 368,481 development of
Jiuxiangiao Road carparks: which the Group
Chaoyang District, 2044) owns 50%.
Beijing
1,893,209] 1,245
Total held through jointly controlied companies at 5,471,109 2,975
6th March 2008
- of which attributable to the Group 2,735,554
&\e.“ ’
> 2
Completed properties o & o @
for investment in the & ‘,,,\\0
United States o* S (&
Hotel
1. Mandarin Oriental, 124,000 Hote! 345,000 2000 329 room hotel in central Miami, in
South Brickell Key, which the Group has a 75% interest.
Miami, Florida
Held through jointly contrelled 345,000
company
- of which attributable 1o the Group| 258,750
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5 e
Properly developments 5 o
for sale in the United & & e
3 3 v
States o® 12? &
1. Asia, 900 Brickell Key, 173,531 Residential 320,000 2008 32-siorey residential condominium tower
Miami, Flerida comprising 123 units with 5-storey
parking garage. Tower construction
recently completed.
2. South Brickell Key, 106,868 Resideniial 421,800 - Development site in central Miami
Miami, Florida acquired in January 1997 along with
Mandarin Oriental site.  Plans {or
condominium tower currently on hold.
3. Devclopment Site, 204,305 Residential/ 800,000 - Future developmenl site in Fort
Fort Lauderdale, Florida Office/ Holel Lauderdate acquired in October 2006, in
which the company has a 75% interest.
Total held through subsidiaries 1,541,800
\e"}
-
G o
. & < N o
Completed properties 'S o ke &
for investment in the g‘@ 5\\ &° %‘\-"
United Kingdom N K G°" & o
Hotels
1. Alias Hotel Kandinsky, 34,875 Hotel 24,502 2000 48 room freehold hotel in Chelienham.
Cheltenham
2. Alias Hotel Barcelona, 46,888 Hotel 23,030 2001 46 room freehold hotel in Exeter.
Exeter
3. Alias Hotel Seattle, 22,755 Hotel 48,416 2003 71 room hotel in Brighton. 35 year
Brighton leasehold commenced in November
2002.
4. Avon Gorge Hotel 71,547 Hotel 87,608 1855 76 room freehold hotel in Bristol.
Bristol Floor area includes external terrace.
Total held through subsidiaries 183,556
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Group Structure

Chart

S\NIREE PACIFIC LIMITED

2

g

Property Division

56.6

Aviation Division

Calhay Padine
Airwavs Lied

Hang, Kung Air ;
Teeminals Lid

Huroyg, Kung Aircrait
Fnginecring Co Lid

HALCO AL
Compunrm
Service Limited

Hinug Rung Avro

Cagine Senvices Ltd

Singapore Aero
Engine Services Pie Ltd

Publicly Quoted

Hong Kong,

lapan l

[ Macau —J

Mainlanrd China

[ Singapore |

l Taiwan . j

| Vietnam ]
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aldings e

Swire Beverages 1id

Swire Coca-Cola
WK 1td

Swire Guangdung
Cova-Cola Ltd

viamen Luguan
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Swire Coca-Cola
Beverages Xiameo L1d
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100

Marine Services
Division

I
Swire Pacific
Ofishore

Swire Pacific
Ship Managemenl Ltd

Hunghong United
Dackyards Lid

Hunghong Salvage
& Towage

Trading & Indusirial
Division

Tiading

100,  Swire Resources
i (Macau) Lid

Swire Resvoreus
Shanghai) Trading
Compaoy Ltd

Taikoo Molors
Olfshore Ltd
Taiwen Branch

Yuntung Motors Ltd
Taiwan Branch

Beldare Motors Lid
Taiwan Branch

tiborly Meators Lid
Taiwan {iranch

Industrial

1C) Swire
Paints tChina) L

1CP Swire Paints

(Shanghai Lid

Swire SITA
Waste Sertices Lid

Far £asl Landiill
Technalagies Lud

SCIP swire SIA
Waste Survices Co Ltd

CROWN Beverage
Cams Hanoi Ltd

37.4

CROWN Buverage
Can~ Hong Kong |t

CROWN Beserage
Cars Shanghai |t

CROWN Beverage
Cans Beijing Lid

CRUAVN HBeverage
Cans Huizbuu Ltd

Bal Aw Molors
Limi led
Taiwan Branch

Taikoo Commercial
Vohiches Ltd
Taiwan Branch
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Glossary

Terms
Financial
Gross barrowings or Consolidated borrowed money
Tota} of loans, bonds, overdrafts and perpetual capital
securities.

Net debt Total of loans, bonds, overdrafts and perpetual
capital securities net of short-term deposits, bank
balances, security deposits and cerlain avaitable-for-sale
investments.

Adjusted consolidated net worth Total of share capital,
reserves and minority interests.

Adjusted consolidated langible nel worth Adjusted
consolidated net worth less goodwill and other intangible
assets,

Equity attributable 1o the Company’s shareholders Equily
before minarity interests.

Underlying equity atiributable to the Company’s
shareholders Reported equity before minority interests,
adjusted for the impact of deferred tax on fair value
changes in investment property.

Ratios

Financial
Profit/(loss) attributable
to the Company's
shareholders
Weighted average number
of shares in issue for the
year

Earnings/{loss) per share =

Profit/{loss) attributable
to the Company’s
shareholders
Average equity during the
year attributable to the
Company’s shareholders

Return on average
equity attributable to the =
Company’s shareholders

Underlying profit/{loss)
attributable to the
Company's shareholders
= Average underlying equity
during the year aitributable
to the Company’s
shareholders

Return on average

underlying equity

attributable to the
Company's shareholders

Operating profit/(loss)
Net finance charges

Interest cover =

Operating profit/{toss)
Total of net finance charges
and capitalised interest

Cash interest cover

176 Swire Pacific

Underlying profit Reported profit adjusted for the
impact of fair value changes in investment property and
assaciated deferred tax,

Net assets employed Total equity plus net debt.

Aviation

Available tonne kifometres (ATK) Overall capacity,
measured in tonnes available for the carriage of
passengers, excess baggage, cargo and mail on each
sector multiplied by the sector distance.

Available seat kilometres (ASK) Passenger seal capacity,
measured in seals available for the carriage of passengers
on each sector multiplied by the seclor distance.

Revenue passenger kilometres (RPK) Number of
passengers carricd on each sector multiplied by the sector
distance.

On-time performance Departure within 15 minutes of
scheduled departure time.

Profit/(loss) attributable
to the Company’s

Dividend cover = shareholders
Dividends paid and
proposed
Gearing ratio a Net debt
& Total equity
Aviation

Revenue passenger
kitometres/Cargo and mail
tonne kilometres
Available seat kilometres/
Available cargo and mail
tonne kilometres

Passenger/Cargo and
mail load ractor

Passenger turnover/Cargo
and mail turnover
Revenue passenger

kilometres/Cargo and mail

tonne kilometres

Passenger/Cargo and
mail yiuid

Total net operating
expenses
ATK

Cost per ATK
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The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited takes no responsibility for the contents of this notice, makes no

represeniation as 1o ils acclracy or completeness and expressly disclaims any liability whaisoever for any loss
hawsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this notice.
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SWIRE PACIFIC LIMITED on 2 ’?1
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability) »Z T A
Stock Codes : 00019 and (0087, =l -
f ! = 0 ™
NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING %5, & ©

Pt

my, A
The 2008 Annual General Meeting of Swire Pacific Limited (the “Compaﬁy”) will be

held at the Pacific Place Conference Centre, Level 5, One Pacific Place, 88 Quecnsway, Hong
Kong on Thursday, 8" May 2008 at 10:00 a.m. to receive the report of the Directors and the
audited accounts for the year ended 31st December 2007 and:

1. to declare final dividends;

2. to re-elect Directors;

to re-appoint auditors and authorise the Directors to fix their remuneration.

As special business, to consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following Ordinary
Resolutions:
4, THAT:

(@) subject to paragraph (b), the exercise by the Directors during the Relevant Period of all

the powers of the Company to make on-market share repurchases (within the meaning of
the Code on Share Repurchases) be approved;

(b) the aggregate nominal amount of any class of the Company’s shares which may be
repurchased pursuant to the approval in paragraph (a} above shall not exceed 10 per cent
of the aggregale nominal amount of the shares of that class in issue at the date of passing
this Resolution; and

()

for the purpose of this Resolution:

“Relevant Period” means the period from the passing of this Resolution until the earliest
of:

(i the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company;
(ii) the expiration of the period within which the next annuzl general meeting of the
Company is required by law Lo be held; and

{(iii}  the revocation or variation of the authority given under this Resolution by
ordinary resolution of the shareholders in general meeting; and

references to “shares” include securities which carry a right to subscribe for or purchase
shares.
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(a)

(®)

(©)

5. THAT:

subject to paragraph (b), the exercise by the Directors during the Relevant Period of all
the powers of the Company to allot, issue and deal with additional shares and to make or
grant offers, agreements and options which will or might require the exercise of such
powers during or afer the end of the Relevant Period be approved,

the aggregate nominal amount of shares of any class allotted or agreed conditionally or
unconditionally to be allotted {whether pursuant to an option or otherwise) by the
Directors pursuant to the approval in paragraph (a), otherwise than pursuant 10 (i)a
Rights Issuc or (ii) any scrip dividend or similar arrangement providing for the alloiment
of shares in lieu of the whole or part of a dividend on shares, shall not exceed the
aggregate of 20 per cent of the aggregate nominal amount of the shares of that class in
issue at the date of passing this Resolution provided that the aggregate nominal amount
of the shares of any class so allotted (or so agreed conditionally or unconditionally 1o be
allotted) pursuant 1o this Resolution wholly for cash shall not exceed 5 per cent of the
apgregate nominal amount of the shares of that class in issuc at the date of passing this
Resolution; and

for the purpose of this Resolution:

“Relevant Period” means the period from the passing of this Resolution until the carliest
of:

0] the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company; and

(ii) the expiration of the period within which the next annual general meeting of the
Company is required by law to be held; and

(iii)  the revocation or variation of the authority given under this Resolution by
ordinary resolution of the shareholders in gencral meeting; and

“Rights Issue” means an offer of shares to holders of shares or any class thereof on the
register on a fixed record date in proportion to their then holdings of such shares or class
thereof (subject to such exclusion or other arrangements as the Dircctors may deem
necessary or expedient in relation to fractional entitlements or having regard to any
restrictions or obligations under the laws of, or the requirements of any recognised
regulatory body or any stock exchange in, any lerritory outside Hong Kong).

By order of the Board
David Fu
Secretary

Hong Kong, 9™ April 2008

- v
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Notes:

Any member entitled to attend and vole at the meeting convened by the above notice is
entitled to appoint one or more proxies to attend and, on a poll, vote instead of him. A
proxy need not be a member of the Company.

All proxies must be deposited with the Company’s Reglstrars Computershare Hong
Kong Investor Services Limited, Rooms 1806-1807, 18" Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for the

meeting.

The Directors have recommended the payment of final dividends for 2007 of HK¢233
per ‘A’ share and HK¢46.6 per ‘B’ share. 1f approved by sharcholders, it is ¢ £cctcd
that the dividends will be paid on 3™ June 2008 to sharcholders registered on 8" May
2008.

The registers of shareholders will be closed from 5" to 8™ May 2008, both days
inclusive. To rank for the final dividends, all transfers should be lodged with the
Company’s RC%ISU’HI’S Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, Rooms
1712-1716, Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen 5 Road East, Hong Kong, for
registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 2" May 2008,

The Directors retiring are M Cubbon, Baroness Dunn, C Lee, M C C Sze, T G
Freshwater, M Leung and A N Tyler. Separate resolutions will be proposed for their
election / re-election.

The Chairman intends to direct that each of the resolutions set out in this notice be voted
on by poll.

As at the date of this announcement, the Directors of the Company are:

Executive Directors: C D Pratt (Chairman), P N L Chen, M Cubbon, D Ho, K G Kerr, J R
Slosar; and A N Tyler; Non-Executive Directors: Baroness Dunn, J W J Hughes-Hallett, P A
Johansen and Sir Adrian Swire; and Independent Non-Executive Directors: T G Freshwater, C
K M Kwok, C Lee, M Leung, M C CSze and M M T Yang,
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This document is important and requires
your immediate attention
If you are in any doubt about this document, you should consult your

stockbroker, bank manager, solicitor, professional accountant or other
professional adviser..

If you have sold or transferred all your shares in Swire Pacific Limited
(“the Company”), you should at once hand this document and the
accompanying form of proxy to the purchaser or transieree or to the
bank, stockbroker or other agent through whom the sale or transfer was
effected for transmission to the purchaser or transferee.

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
takes no responsibility for the contents of this document, makes no
representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaims
any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance
upon the whole or any part of the contents of this document.

-

SWIRE PACIFIC LIMITED

(Incorporated in Hong Kong under the Companies Ordinance)
{Stock Codes : 00019 and 00087)

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
AND
PROPOSALS FOR
GENERAL MANDATES TO ISSUE SHARES AND
REPURCHASE SHARES
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Executive Directors:

C D Pratt, CBE, Chairman

P N L Chen

M Cubbon, Finance Director
D Ho

K G Kerr

J R Slosar

A N Tyler

Non-Executive Directors:
Baroness Dunn, DBE

} W ) Hughes-Hallett, SBS
P A Johansen

Sir Adrian Swire

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
T G Freshwater

C KM Kwok

C Lee

M Leung

M C C Sze, GBS, CBE, 1SO

MMT Yang

Registered Office:

35th Floor, Two Pacific Place,
88 Queensway,

Hong Kong.

A Chinese version of this circular is available upon request from the Company’s Registrars.
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SWIRE PACIFIC LIMITED

{incorporated in Hong Kong under the Companies Ordinance)

9th April 2008
To the shareholders
Dear Sir or Madam,

NOTICE OF MEETING

1. Notice of the annual general meeting ("AGM") for 2008 is set out on pages 5 to 6 of this circular.
Enclosed with this circular is a form of proxy for use at that meeting. Whether or not you intend to be
present at the 2008 AGM you are requested to complete the form of proxy and return it to the Registrars
of the Company in accordance with the instructions printed thereon not less than 48 hours before the
time fixed for holding that meeting.

2. The completion of a form of proxy and returning it to the Registrars of the Company will not preclude
you from attending and voting in person at the meeting or poil concerned and, in such event, the
appointment of the proxy will be deemed to be revoked.

GENERAL MANDATES

3. Atthe AGM of the Company held on 10th May 2007, ordinary resolutions were passed giving general
mandates to Directors (i) to make on-market share repurchases (within the meaning of the Code on
Share Repurchases) of up to 10 per cent of the issued share capital of the Company as at 10th May
2007; and {ii} to allot, issue and otherwise deal with shares equal to 20 per cent of the shares of the
Company in issue at 10th May 2007 provided that the shares which may be allotted wholly for cash
shall not exceed 5 per cent of the shares in issue at 10th May 2007. No shares have been repurchased
or allotted, issued or otherwise dealt with pursuant to these mandates.

4. Under the Companies Ordinance and the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (“Listing Rules”), these general mandates lapse at the conclusion of the AGM for 2008, unless
renewed at that meeting. Resolutions (Resolutions 4 and 5) will be proposed to renew the mandates for
on-market share repurchase and issue of additional shares. The Explanatory Statement required by the
Listing Rules to be sent to shareholders in connection with the proposed repurchase resolution is set out
in the Appendix to this circular.

ELECTION/RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

5. In relation to Resolution 2, M Cubbon, Baroness Dunn, C Lee, M C C Sze will retire at the forthcoming
. AGM and will offer themselves for re-election in accordance with Article 93 of the Company’s Articles

of Association. T G Freshwater, M Leung and A N Tyler who have been appointed as Directors of the
Company since the last AGM will also retire pursuant to Article 91 and offer themselves for election.
Separate resolutions will be proposed for the election/re-election of these Directors. Their particulars
and interests in the shares of the Company are provided in the “Directors and Officers” section and the
“Directors’ Report” in the Company’s Annual Report 2007 which accompanies this circular. Other than
as disclosed therein, they are not related to any Director, member of senior management or substantial
shareholders of the Company.

6. Each of the persons proposed for election/re-election as Directors has entered into letter of appointment,
which constitutes a service contract, with the Company. In accordance with the Company’s Articles of
Association, they will retire at the third AGM after election/re-election and will be eligible for
re-election.




n.

Baroness Dunn, a Non-Executive Director, does not receive any emolument or director’s fee from

the Company. The remuneration of M Cubbon and A N Tyler, Executive Directors, are determined in
accordance with the policy reviewed by the Remuneration Committee. Those elected as independent
Non-Executive Directors, i.e., T G Freshwater, C Lee, M Leung and M C C Sze, are entitled to the
Director’s fees determined by the Board.

The Company’s remuneration policy and the fees paid to Independent Non-Executive Directors are
set out in the “Corporate Governance” section of the Annual Report 2007 and particulars of all the
Directors’ remuneration are given in note 8 to the Accounts.

Save for the information set out in paragraphs 5 to 8 above, there is no information to be disclosed
pursuant to any of the requirements of the provisions under paragraphs 13.51(2)(h) to 13.51(2)(v) of the
Listing Rules nor are there other matters that needs to be brought to the attention of shareholders in
respect of the persons proposed for election/re-election as Directors at the 2008 AGM.

PROCEDURE BY WHICH A POLL MAY BE DEMANDED

. Under the Articles of Association of the Company, at any general meeting, on a show of hands every

member present in person shall have one vote and on a poll every member present in person or by proxy
shall have one vote for every fully paid up share of which he is the holder. A resolution put to the vote of a
meeting shall be decided on a show of hands unless, before or on the declaration of the result of the show
of hands or of the withdrawal of any other demand for a poll, a poll is duly demanded. Article 72 provides
that, subject to the provisions of the Companies Ordinance, a poll may be demanded by:

(i) the chairman of the meeting; or
(ii} at least three members present in person or by proxy and entitled to vote at the meeting; or

(iii) any member or members present in person or by proxy and representing in the aggregate not less
than one-tenth of the total voting rights of all members having the right to attend and vote at the
meeting; or

(iv} any member or members present in person or by proxy and holding shares conferring a right to attend
and vote at the meeting on which there have been paid up sums in the: aggregate equal to not less
than one-tenth of the total sum paid up on all shares conferring that right.

Pursuant to this, | intend to direct that each of the resolutions proposed at the forthcoming AGM be
voted on by poll.

Your Directors believe that the proposals described in this document are in the best interests of the
Company and its shareholders and accordingly recommend you to vote in favour of all of the resolutions
to be proposed at the AGM. ‘

Yours faithfully,

Christopher Pratt
Chairman




SWIRE PACIFIC LIMITED

APPENDIX

The following is the Explanatory Statement required to be sent to shareholders under the Listing Rules
in connection with the proposed general mandate for repurchase of shares and also constitutes the
Memorandum required under section 49BA of the Companies Ordinance.

1.

It is proposed that up to 10 per cent of any class of the Company’s shares in issue at the date of the
passing of the resolution to approve the general mandate may be repurchased. As at 20th March 2008,
the latest practicable date for determining such figure (“Latest Practicable Date”), the number of ‘A
Shares in issue was 915,564,500 and the number of ‘B’ Shares in issue was 3,002,486,271. On the basis
of such figures {and assuming no shares are issued or repurchased after 20th March 2008 and up to the
date of passing such resolution) the Directors would be authorised to repurchase up to 91,556,450 ‘A
Shares and up to 300,248,627 ‘B’ Shares.

The Directors believe that the ability to repurchase shares is in the interests of the Company and its
shareholders.

Repurchases may, depending on the circumstances, result in an increase in net assets and/or earnings
per share. The Directors are seeking the grant of a general mandate to repurchase shares to give the
Company the flexibility to do so if and when appropriate. The number(s) and class(es) of shares to be
repurchased on any occasion and the price and other terms upon which the same are repurchased will
be decided by the Directors at the relevant time having regard to the circumstances then pertaining,

It is envisaged that the funds required for any repurchase would be derived from the distributable profits
of the Company.

There could be a material adverse impact on the working capital or gearing position of the Company

(as compared with the position disclosed in its published audited accounts for the year ended 31st
December 2007) in the event that the proposed share repurchases were to be carried out in full at any
time during the proposed repurchase period. However, the Directors do not propose to exercise the
general mandate to such extent as would, in the circumstances, have a material adverse effect on the
working capital requirements of the Company or the gearing levels which in the opinion of the Directors
are from time 10 time appropriate for the Company.

There are no Directors or (to the best of the knowledge of the Directors, having made all reasonable
enquiries) any associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) of Directors who have a present intention, in
the event that the general mandate is granted by shareholders, to sell shares to the Company.

The Directors have undertaken to the Stock Exchange to exercise the power of the Company to make
purchases pursuant to the general mandate in accordance with the Listing Rules and the laws of Hong
Kong,




7. If as the result of a repurchase of shares a shareholder’s proportionate interest in the voting rights of the
Company increases, such increase will be treated as an acquisition for purposes of the Hong Kong Code
on Takeovers and Mergers (“Takeover Code”). As a result, a shareholder, or group of shareholders acting
in concert depending on the level of increase of shareholders’ interest, could obtain or consolidate
control of the Company and become obliged to make a mandatory offer in accordance with Rules 26
and 32 of the Takeover Code.

8. The Directors are not aware of any consequences which would arise under the Takeover Code as
a consequence of any purchases pursuant to the general repurchase mandate. In the event of full
exercise of the repurchase mandate and the maintenance by John Swire & Sons Limited of its present
shareholding (amounting to approximately 55.67% of the votes attaching to the issued share capital of
the Company at the Latest Practicable Date), the percentage of the votes attaching to the share capital
owned by John Swire & Sons Limited would increase to 61.85%. Accordingly, such increase would not
give rise to an obligation to make a mandatory offer under Rules 26 and 32 of the Takeover Code.

9. The Company has in the previous six months immediately prior to the Latest Practicable Date purchased
nil ‘A’ Share and 1,000,000 ‘B’ Shares on the Stock Exchange. Details of the repurchase are as follows:

‘B’ shares

Date Number of Shares purchased Highest price paid Lowest price paid
(HK$) (HK$)

7th March 2008 1,000,000 17.50 17.20

10. No connected persons (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company have notified it of a present
intention to sell shares of the Company to the Company and no such persons have undertaken not to
sell any such shares to the Company in the event that the general mandate is granted by shareholders.

11. The highest and lowest prices at which shares of the Company have traded on the Stock Exchange in
each of the previous twelve months are as follows:

Highest (HK$) Lowest (HK$)
‘A’ Shares ‘B’ Shares ‘A’ Shares ‘B’ Shares
March 2007 91.50 17.00 83.50 15.46
April 2007 95.40 17.64 88.75 16.70
May 2007 91.85 17.58 87.40 16.86
June 2007 88.90 17.10 84.75 16.28
July 20607 92.75 18.28 85.95 16.72
August 2007 90.35 17.90 79.40 16,40
September 2007 99.00 19.40 85.20 17.00
Qctober 2007 116.00 22.15 92.00 18.50
November 2007 112.00 21.00 92.05 17.50
December 2007 115.00 20.80 97.50 19.06
January 2008 113.00 21.55 92.35 17.50
February 2008 107.90 19.90 89.55 17.14
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NOTICE OF MEETING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that an ordinary general meeting of the shareholders of Swire Pacific Limited,
being the annual general meeting for 2008, will be held at the Pacific Place Conference Centre, Level 5,
One Pacific Place, 88 Queensway, Hong Kong on Thursday, 8th May 2008 at 10:00 a.m. to receive the
report of the Directors and the audited accounts for the year ended 31st December 2007 and:

1. To declare final dividends.
2. To re-elect Directors.
3. To re-appoint auditors and authorise the Directors to fix their remuneration.
As special business, to consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolutions:
Ordinary Resolutions
4. THAT:

(a) subject to paragraph (b}, the exercise by the Directors during the Relevant Period of all the powers
of the Company to make on-market share repurchases (within the meaning of the Code on Share
Repurchases) be approved;

(b) the aggregate nominal amount of any class of the Company’s shares which may be repurchased
pursuant to the approval in paragraph (a) above shall not exceed 10 per cent of the aggregate
nominal amount of the shares of that class in issue at the date of passing this Resofution; and

{c) for the purpose of this Resolution:
“Relevant Period” means the period from the passing of this Resolution until the earliest of:
(i) the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company;

(ii) the expiration of the period within which the next annual general meeting of the Company is
required by law to be held; and

(jii) the revocation or variation of the authority given under this Resolution by ordinary resolution of
the shareholders in general meeting; and

references to “shares” include securities which carry a right to subscribe for or purchase shares.

5. THAT:

(a) subject to paragraph (b), the exercise by the Directors during the Relevant Period of all the powers of
the Company to allot, issue and deal with additional shares and to make or grant offers, agreements
and options which will or might require the exercise of such powers during or after the end of the
Relevant Period be approved;




(b} the aggregate nominal amount of shares of any class aflotted or agreed conditionally or
unconditionally to be allotted (whether pursuant to an option or otherwise) by the Directors
pursuant to the approval in paragraph (a), otherwise than pursuant 1o (i} a Rights Issue or (i) any
scrip dividend or similar arrangement providing for the allotment of shares in lieu of the whole or
part of a dividend on shares, shall not exceed the aggregate of 20 per cent of the aggregate nominal
amount of the shares of that class in issue at the date of passing this Resolution provided that the
aggregate nominal amount of the shares of any class so allotted (or s0 agreed conditionally or
unconditionally to be allotted) pursuant to this Resolution wholly for cash shall not exceed 5 per
cent of the aggregate nominal amount of the shares of that class in issue at the date of passing this
Resolution; and

(c) for the purpose of this Resolution:
“Relevant Period” means the period from the passing of this Resolution until the earliest of:
(i) the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company; and

(i) the expiration of the period within which the next annual general meeting of the Company is
required by law to be held; and

(ili) the revocation or variation of the authority given under this Resolution by ordinary resolution of
the shareholders in general meeting; and

“Rights Issue” means an offer of shares to holders of shares or any class thereof on the register on

a fixed record date in proportion to their then holdings of such shares or class thereof {subject to
such exclusion or other arrangements as the Directors may deem necessary or expedient in relation
to fractional entitlements or having regard to any restrictions or obligations under the laws of, or
the requirements of any recognised regulatory body or any stock exchange in, any territory outside
Hong Kong).

By order of the Board
David Fu
Secretary

Hong Kong, 9th April 2008

Notes:

1
2.

| 3.

Any member entitled to attend and vote al the meeting convened by the above notice is entitled to appoint one or more proxies to attend and, on
a poll, vote instead of him, A proxy neced not be 2 member of the Company.

All proxies must be deposited with the Company’s Registrars, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limiled, Rooms 1806-1807, 18th Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's Road East, Hong Kong, not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for the meeting.

The Directors have recommended the payment of final dividends for 2007 of HKe233 per ‘A’ share ind HK¢46.6 per ‘B share. If approved, it is
expected that the dividends will be paid to shareholders on Tuesday, 3rd func 2008,

The registers of sharehalders will be closed from 5th to 8ith May 2008, both days inclusive. To rank for the final dividends, alf transfers should be
lodged with the Company’s Registrars, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, Rooms 1712.1716, 17th Floor, Hopewel] Centre, 163
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 2nd May 2008.

The Directors retiring are M Cubbon, Baroness Dunn, C Lee, M C C 5ze, T G Freshwater, M Leung and A N Tyler. Separate resolutions will be
proposed for their election/re-election,

The Chairman intends to direct that each of the resolutions set out in this notice be voted on by poll,




FORM OF PROXY for use at the Annual General Meeting on 8th May 2008,

SWIRE PACIFIC LIMITED

I/We

of

being a Member/Members of Swire Pacific Limited (“the Company”), hereby appoint CHRISTOPHER DALE
PRATT of Hong Kong or failing him MARTIN CUBBON of Hong Kong or failing him Chairman of the meeting or
(see Note 1)

of

as my/our proxy 1o vote for me/us and on my/our behalf at the annual general meeting of the Company to be held on
Thursday, 8th May 2008 and at any adjournment thereof on the under-mentioned resolutions as indicated:

For
{see Note 2)

Against
{sce Note 2)

1. To declare final dividends.

2. (a) To re-elect M Cubbon as a Director.

(b) To re-elect Baroness Dunn as a Director.

(c} To re-elect C Lee as a Director.

{d) To re-elect M C C Sze as a Director.

(e) To elect T G Freshwater as a Director,

() To elect M Leung as a Dircctor.

(g) To elect A N Tyler as a Director,

3. To re-appoint PricewaterhouseCoopers as Auditors and to autherise the

Directors to fix their remuneration.

4. To grant a general mandate for share repurchase.

5. To grant a general mandate to issue and dispose of additional shares
in the Company.
Number of ‘A’ and ‘B’ shares
Signature : to which this proxy relates.
{see Note 3)
Date : 2008 ‘A’ shares
‘B’ shares
Noles:

N

Il you wish 1> appoim any other person iwha need not be a Member of the
Company) as proxy the names as shown should be deleted and the name
and address of the viher person inserted.

. Please indicate with an *v™ in 1he apprapriate space opposlic each

resolution how you wish Lhe proxy to vole on your behalf, B this form of
proxy is signed and retumed without any indicalion as to how the proxy
shall vote, he will exercise his discretion as 1o whether or not he abstains
from voting and, if appropriate, as 1o how he votes, Unless instructed
otherwise, your proxy may also vote or abstain from voting as he thinks fit
on any other business (including amy amendment to any resolution) which
may property come bufore the meeting.

. Please imser! the number of ‘A'/*B’ shares 1o which this proxy relates in the

box provided. i a number is inserted, this form of proxy will be deemed
10 relaie only to those shares. I no numher is inserted, this form will

be deemed to refate to all tha ‘A'*B° shares in the Company which are
registered in your name (whether alone or jointly with others).

wn

bl

~

. In the case of juint sharehalders, this form uf proxy must be signed by the

sharehulder whuse name s1ands first in the Register of Sharcholders.

. In the case of a corparation, this form of proxy should be under s common

seal or under the hand of an officer of the corpuration dufy authorised.
To be effective this form of proxy together with any power of altorney or
ather authority {if any} under which i is signed or a notarially certified
copy of such power or authority must be depasited with the Company’s
Registrars, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Sorvices Limited, Rooms
1806-1807, 181h Floor, Hopewell Cenire, 183 Queen's Road East, Hong
Kong not less than 48 hours befor: the ime appointed for the halding of
the meeting.

. Whethur or not you intend 10 be present at the annual general meeting,

you are requested to complete the form of prowy. The completion of a form
of proxy and returning it to the Registrars af the Company will not preclude
you from attending and voting in person at the meeting or poll concerned
and, in such event, the appointment of the proxy will be deemed 10 be
revoked.




BERUBHCDAETANR BFRABEX AR «

A4 A A

EA(BA)

it B

HAERHNERDE ( [2F)] ) BE - LEFOLE  MHFRILE - KB (KSEYRFEEIR) - PR

THEHME - AARER - H (SRHE)

ibur s

AXA (BA) 2RE - KRFA (BA) LEAFANR-FSNFEANRA (RHR) BT2REAFXER

HEMAE - BRRTHARRE - RUTHTRRRERR

=74 R4
(2HmME2) | (2HME2)

1. ERERBRE -

2. (a) HIREBIRHIE -

(b) HRFHNHEB RS -

(©) BEFREAWD -

(d) HBMGAEFALT -

(e) BEBERRME -

(N VERBIBR/EE -

(g BBAZRANE -

3. HREERKBRHMESAAEBMYRETSRMELNR -

4. BT RURBMER -

5. BT —RUEBERTE IR RIMNA

B

B —B¥NE A =]

HE:

1LOAWBRERRATAER -RIDM EFIASEM - SEFHEP
NMARBEZATZRESRBL RRBAHDENZBK -

ZRES-RAARFIEEARVEHAMHRKROBKABERR -
BEARMZEERREHCHEFRRDTIARTARARE -PRER
TafTARRT AKX DEERR - RAGHTN - ARZRRFT
AN RS HBL I ERAGTNREN AR ZBMETR
MR ERAMRN -

ILMEMNAERSBERARBGNZ AR TREB » MALE
BruAEASRSHNAABRAERRAGM - T - KRITH
BRANKGHERBHRAAKAREALTSDBEZRHDE
W/ BRI

REZERRRBEMZ AR
BB AREE (@BHE3)
‘Wi
‘B'A%

L ERRERE ARBAGERNEBLEAEHEET -

5 0ALTREN -RERBERNALE AR TEARAZAIR
AREE-

o HEARRRBEEARPIFTLRBEZRBOUIABIN - REG
RENTUIHESCRASEERZ A ATHERNINET IR
A+NAPRAESKTECNZBRABERTRPRESBLEAR
L8 - HELRFHEERXAR-—NAZREHFLHNAR-NEARE
—N\RLE

TRASUETREFRIEGFAY HOARSEERARA - &
HMBTRRRBAZYLRAQTZRABERL DIRALUR
A - PURRABRAEALER BHELMRT HERERR
RABAIG L AR -




Financial Calendar and Information for Investors

Financial Calendar 2008

Annual Report sent to shareholders 9th April

‘A" and ‘B’ shares trade ex-dividend 30th April
Share registers closed 5th - 8th May
Annual General Meeting 8th May
Payment of 2007 final dividends 3rd June
Interim results announcement August 2008
Interim dividend payable October 2008

Registered Office
Swire Pacific Limited

35th Floor, Two Pacific Place
88 Queensway

Hong Kong

Registrars

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Room 1806-1807

18th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road Last

Hong Kong

Website: http://www.computershare.com

Depositary

The Bank of New York
investor Services

P.O. Box 11258

Church Street Station

New York, NY 10286-1258
USA

Website: http://www.adrbny.com
E-mail: ADR®bankofny.com

Tel:

Calls within USA — toll free: 1-888-BNY-ADRS
International callers: 1-212-815-3700
Fax: 1-212-571-3050

Stock Codes ‘A’ ‘B’
Hong Kong Stock Exchange 19 az
ADR SWRAY SWRBY

Except for voting rights, which are equal, the entitlements
of ‘A’ and ‘B’ shareholders are in the proportion 5 to 1.

Principal Bankers
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

Auditors

PricewalerhouseCoopers

Investor Relations

E-mail: corporateaffairs@swirepacific.com

Public Affairs

E-mail: publicaffairs@swirepacific.com

Tel: (852) 2840-8098
Fax: (852) 2526-9365
Webhsite: htip://www.swirepacific.com

Request for Feedback

In order that we may improve our reporting, we would
be grateful to receive your views and comments on any
aspect of our public announcements and disclosure via
email to corporateaffairs@swirepacific.com
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